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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Springland International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
in October 2010 under stock code 1700. The Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) engage in the operation
and management of department stores and supermarkets
in PRC with the following characterize:

Regional focus on Greater Yangtze River Delta

The Group is a geographically focused and
dual-format retail chain operator in the Greater Yangtze
River Delta. The Group operates and manages total 50
stores in 16 cities, which are in Jiangsu Province, Anhui
Province and Zhejiang Province, the PRC.

Dual-format retail operator

The business on department store and supermarket
benefits each other complementary. This dual-format
retail business creates “one-stop” shopping experience
for the customers and caters for a diversity of client-tail
in order to well serve their needs and preferences from
daily necessities to valuable goods and accessories. The
Group’s department store and city centre supermarkets
are in the distance close to each other, either in adjacent
sites or the same building. It forms a retail hub that offers
consumers a more convenient and comfortable shopping
environment and experience.

This retail business model generates diversified revenue
sources while lowering the operational risks, creating
synergies between department store and supermarket
businesses and enjoying greater economic of sales.
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CORPORATE PROFILE
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Stores situated on prime sites and self-owned
properties

The prime locations of the stores occupied are absolute
advantage of the success of the Group’s retail business.
All of the department stores and city centre supermarkets
are located in prime retail space and shopping districts
of the cities with high population density. The community
centre supermarkets are located in encircling communities
with dense population and convenient logistics. The
Group obtains a maximum exposure and direct access
to customers’ attention. The strengthen empowers the
Group’s strategic advantage over the competitors and

guarantees the leading position on the market.

The total gross floor areas of the properties occupied
by the Group is 1,017,000 sg. meters among which,
660,000 sqg. meters owned by the Group. The Group’s
department stores and supermarkets are sited in self-
owned properties reach 80.6% and 30.8% of the total
gross floor areas respectively. This arrangement benefits
the Group is immune from any affection of rental increase
and minimizes the risks of relocation and disruption of
business operation in future as well. Other premises
secure through long-term leases that typically have a long-
term lease of 10-20 years.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRREE

TOTAL SALES PROCEEDS - GROUP (RMB MILLION)
HEMSHRARE -8 (AR% 881

2014 I 1,049
201 G 11,135

o

TOTAL SALES PROCEEDS - DEPARTMENT STORE BUSINESS (RMB MILLION)
HEMBNEAE-FEEYE (ARE  AET)

2014 M. 8,262

2013 8,470

o

|
N
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TOTAL SALES PROCEEDS - SUPERMARKET BUSINESS (RMB MILLION)
HEMSREARE-BHWER (ARK :58T)

2014 NE— 2,787
2013 2,665

o

.
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OPERATING PROFIT (RMB MILLION)
REBNARE -BAST)

2014 W 983

2013 mmmm— 1,026

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT (RMB MILLION)
BARHEEAEGEERERN (AR B&ET)

2014 I 34

2013 I 730

EARNINGS PER SHARE (in RMB: (cents))
BREFN (ARE D)

2014 I 20
2013 I 29
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

QOur Group witnessed a challenging year in 2014 in
which the global economic performance varied. While
US economy was steadily recovering during the year, the
quantitative easing policy in the Eurozone clouded the
global economy and undermined the market demand.
The strong US dollar initiated capital outflow and
exerted pressure on commodity prices, thus dragging
the development of emerging economies, including
China. Being the world’s second largest economy, China
recorded annual growth in GDP of 7.4% in 2014, which
is the lowest record since 1990. Under the “New Normal”
phase, China managed to deliver stable economic growth
in 2014. Nevertheless, given the complicated situation
in China and other countries, challenges prevailed in
the course of economic development. Also, since China
is in the midst of an economic makeover and plans to
switch the economy to a domestic consumption driven
mode, the economic growth of China slows down
and deflation pressure becomes eminent. Despite the
business opportunities in the retail industry brought
by the progress of modern urbanization in China, the
effectiveness of which was yet to be seen. On the other
hand, the consumption behavior of consumers was
eventually shaped by the mobile Internet technology and
the increasing number of modern shopping malls, thus
generating great impact to the existing environment of the
retail industry.

In light of the challenging environment, our Group focused
on efficiency enhancement and system development.
Accordingly, we have achieved our targets set at the
beginning of the year. In 2014, the total sales proceed
of the Group decreased by 0.8% to RMB11.05 billion as
compared with 2013. The profit attributable to owners of
the parent fell by 13.2% to approximately RMB634 million
as compared with 2013 and the basic earnings per share
was RMB26 cents. The Board proposes a final dividend
of HK9 cents per share for the year ended 31 December
2014.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETRHRES

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES

The market was characterized by the demand for quality
as well as that for experiential and lifestyle consumption.
Since consumers became more demanding on life quality,
the retail industry called for advancement. Our Group
was able to restore the nature of the retail industry and to
satisfy the consumer demand by enhancing the selection
process over the quality of goods, the combination of
product resources, the industry integration in different
markets and our customer services.

Our department store business was committed to
establish linkage between goods and customers. For
the purpose of providing desirable merchandise to cater
for the shoppers’ taste and demand, we have further
optimized our supply chain channel so as to ensure
the variety of our goods and the availability of the
respective models in department stores. An annual brand
substitution rate of 20% also enabled selected brands to
suit the taste of the new generation of consumers. For
shopping experience, the upgrading and improvement
in the hardware of our stores in Yixing and Changshu,
as well as the introduction of shopping mall elements,
such as “no-flame” restaurants and dessert joints, upbeat
fast trendy food catering and beauty centers, were all
targeted to attract more customers to gather around the
desired areas on each floor and to satisfy the demand
for social networking and experimental consumption of
customers. Meanwhile, after years of exploration, apart
from mastering the ability for festive campaigning and
organizing drum-up activities, our department stores
were experienced in membership management, media
networking and marketing activities on Weibo and
WeChat. The increasing number of themed marketing
activities and interactions was able to enhance the
designated theme and experimental nature of our stores.
All our stores were covered by free WIFI and mobile
payment was also available, thereby providing our
customers with more convenient shopping experience.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

In our supermarket business, the Group continued to
emphasize on policy adjustments made to, and resources
diverted to, the freshness of food and community-
based stores. All year round provision of fresh food, the
expansion of direct sourcing and the establishment of
processing and logistic centers all served to widen the
clientele of our fresh food business, thereby bringing
about steady growth in sales. Meanwhile, leveraging on
opportunities created by refurbished Dagang and Wuxi
stores, the Group upgraded our supermarket business to
a standardized supermarket (“SM”) model, standardized
product types and operation modes to advance the
operation system and further optimized the corporate
structure and the management system. As a result, the
Group was able to develop a comprehensive business
management mechanism and opened Xicheng Street
No.1 supermarket in Wuxi (5 —4) in January
2015 as a model of the newest SM with characteristics of
Datonghua.

Our Group adopted a steady expansion strategy. In 2014,
we established a new supermarket store in Luoshe, Wuxi,
and entered into contracts for Anhui Wuhu Project and
Changzhou Jiahong Yunding Supermarket Project.

PROSPECTS

Looking forward, consistent demographic dividends will
be generated by the official launch of the second-child
policy. Subsequent to the short-term suppression of the
high-end consumption market caused by anti-corruption
campaigns, normal demand for consumption has been
seen in the market again. Together with an open request
of protecting labor welfare proposed by the General
China Federation of Trade Unions, the consumption of
labor protection items will be back to normal. High-end
consumption will also be recovered.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETRHRES

However, the slower growth of the social economy will
persist because the industry is still under the impact of
switching consumption mode. Externally, the Group is
facing a constant increase in all kinds of costs as well as
the pressure from the change in consumption channels.
Internally, the Group needs to redefine its business model
and gain consumers’ support. Under the circumstances,
continuous upheavals and adjustments will be seen in the
retail industry and the diversification and consolidation
of the whole industry will accelerate, thus facilitating the
further concentration of the industry.

The healthy financial position of our Group and the
scale of our chain operation in the strategic region will
effectively benefit the Group by enhancing its competence
in management, sales and marketing activities and risk-
taking. Our Group will adopt a pragmatic way for business
operation and stick to its direction for future development.
With adjustments made for each business segment,
including innovative operation, stores upgrading and
service improvement, our Group will be able to satisfy the
shopping demand of local consumers precisely and to
satisfy their demand for a better living style. Also, we will
be committed to maintain the Group’s competitiveness
and profitability and to implement stringent cost control
measures. All these can work together to strive for growth
in a sluggish market, thereby bringing about a higher
return for our shareholders.

Our achievement in China is the best evidence of our hard
work and contributions for the last two decades. It cannot
be achieved without the efforts of all our management
and staff members, the trust of our shareholders and the
support from our business partners and customers. On
behalf of the Board, | would like to send my gratitude and
thanks to all parties and express my sincere appreciation
for their continual contributions to the long term
development of the Group.

Chen Jiangiang
Chairman

16 March 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW

The complicated financial situation of China and other
countries persisting and challenging the economic
development remained and the Group focused on
efficiency enhancement and system development. The
Group barely achieved the targets set at the beginning of
the year. In 2014, the total sales proceeds of the Group
decreased by 0.8% to RMB11,049 million as compared
with the previous year. The profit attributable to owners
of the parent company reached RMB634 million and the
basic earnings per share was RMB26 cents.

New Store Openings and Network Expansion

In November 2014, the Group acquired the land
use rights of a piece of land with a total site area of
approximately 38,000 square meters for a consideration
of RMB401 million. The land is situated at the intersection
of Zhongshan North Road, Yinhu South Road and
Changjiang Zhong Road, Wuhu City, Anhui Province, the
PRC and is an ideal location for expansion of the network
of department stores and supermarkets of the Group. The
Group intends to develop the land into a shopping mall,
and plans to incorporate a department store, supermarket,
dinning, entertainment and recreation function in the
shopping mall and an estimated gross floor area of around
150,000 square meters.

In December 2014, the Group acquired the land use rights
of a piece of land, which is situated adjacent to Danyang
Springland department store, with a total site area of
approximately 7,000 square meters for a consideration of
RMB177 million. The land is for expansion of phase Il of
Danyang Springland department store with an additional
estimated gross floor area of approximately 43,000 square
meters.

In January 2015, the Group bid for the remaining 50%
equity interest of Zhenjiang Baisheng Commercial Center
Co., Ltd I A EEM AR X A) with consideration of
RMB176 million. After the acquisition, Zhenjiang Baisheng
Commercial Center Co., Ltd became a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group and it operates two department
stores, Zhenjiang Commercial Building (#2817 %) and
Zhenjiang Hengsheng Shopping Plaza ($E/T BB Y& 5),
in Zhenjiang City, Jiangsu Province the PRC. The stores
have a total gross floor areas of 78,000 square meters.
Moreover, the Group successfully is acquired the land
use rights of a piece of land, which is situated in north
of Yangquan Road, Yicheng Town, Yixing City, with a
total site area of approximately 20,000 square meters for
a consideration of RMB91 million. The Group intends to
develop the land into a supermarket.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the year, one new supermarket was opened in
Wuxi cities, Jiangsu Province, the PRC, and it is located
along the existing logistic routes. The opening of the
new supermarket enhanced the Group “1+N” expansion
strategy for the supermarket business, improved the
logistics efficiency and had an influence on the market
share in the region.

As of 31 December 2014, the Group had a total
operational floor area of 711,000 square meters (2013:
692,000 square meters), in which 530,000 square
meters (2013: 517,000 square meters) is operated by
the department store business and 181,000 square
meters (2013: 175,000 square meters) is operated by the
supermarket business. Based on the sites secured by
the Group for its new store expansion, it is anticipated
that these stores will increase the gross floor areas of the
Group’s chain stores by over 900,000 square meters in
the next five years. This will further increase the proportion
of the Group’s department stores operating at self-
owned properties. Furthermore, the Group will continue
to focus on high-quality premises that are suitable for
the comprehensive lifestyle-one-stop shopping concept
and the Group will continue to seek opportunities of
investment, co-operation, merger and acquisition that can
fulfil the Group’s development and investment strategies
and objectives, hence laying a solid foundation for the
Group’s business expansion.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE D

FINANCIAL RESULTS MBEEE

The Group’s total sales proceeds (“TSP”)" were HE2014F12A31H I FE  EEMHEERT
RMB11,049 million for the year ended 31 December BHIEEE ABAREI1,049EET - FE %
2014. Profit for the year and after non-controlling interests IR IEIE R ER B HMN A ARKE34HB &
was RMB634 million, as compared with RMB730 million I MEEHSEINAELII0OEETT - AN
last year. The Directors of the Company recommended AEEEZMEE2014F12A31H IEFEIR
the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 IR HIR BBl (20134 | IR AL
December 2014 of HK$9 cents per share (2013: HK$8.5 8.5) -

cents per share).

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31BLEE
2014 2013 Charge
—E-ME =% =)
(RMB million)
(AR®EET)

Total sales proceeds (“TSP”)’ HEMBHIERE 11,049 11,135 -0.8%
Department store BEG 8,262 8,470 -25%
Supermarket &in 2,787 2,665 +4.6%

Revenue A 4,276 4,162 +2.8%

Operating profit? (Note) mEEFP () 983 1,026 -4.2%

Profit attributable to owners of the parent & 72 &% & A JE(5 4 7l 634 730 -13.2%

Earnings per share (RMB: cents) FREFI(ARE : 5) 26 29 -12.2%

Calculated in term of TSP: W EF A BB E -

Operating margin® Fpinpipa
— department store (Note) -BEE (i) 10.3% 10.3%

- supermarket -8 4.9% 5.7%

Net profit margin* E g ] 2 5.8% 6.6%

Note: 7

excluded impairment of goodwill TEIEEEREER

1 Total sales proceeds (“TSP”) = revenue from direct sales + gross revenue from concessionaire sales + rental income
HEMSFIREE -ERHERA+FTELHEMSKABR+HEBA

2 Operating profit = operating profit of department store + operating profit of supermarket
KERN=AELE RN+ BT E R

3 Operating margin = operating profit/TSP
MR R R TS B

4 Net profit margin = profit for the year/TSP
SFm AR = FERF S E TSR IE AR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Revenue & TSP
WAFEEFRBRIBELE

EEENWE D

Year ended 31 December 2014

Year ended 31 December 2013

BE014E12BHALEE HEN13E12R31 B ILER
Department Department
store  Supermarket store  Supermarket
business business Total business business Total
BEER BhEH Bt BEXE BER At
(RMB million)
(\R¥EET)
Revenue WA
Direct sales E#HE 32 2,478 2,790 277 2,380 2,657
Commission income from BHELRE
concessionaire sales Bl 1,319 | 1,360 1347 40 1387
Rental income AehA 7 48 120 b1 4 105
Provision of food and beverage services REEGRE - 6 6 - 13 13
Total &t 1,703 2,573 4,276 1,685 2417 4,162
TSP HEfRRELE
Direct sales E#HE 32 2,478 2,790 277 2,380 2,657
Gross revenue of concessionaire sales BIEERENGIE 7878 261 8,139 8,132 21 8,373
Rental income AehA 7 48 120 b1 4 105
Total Bt 8,262 2,787 11,049 8,470 2,665 1113
Same store sales change REHES L -1.8% 0.2% 7.1% -0.9%
Department store business: BEX¥K:

TSP from the department store business reduced to
RMB8,262 million (2013: RMB8,470 million) and same
store sales dropped by approximately 1.8% due to
decrease in sales of gold and jewelry. Direct sales as a
percentage of TSP from the department store business
increased from 3.3% to 3.8% while gross revenue of
concessionaire sales as a percentage of TSP from the
department store business decreased from 96.0% to
95.3% in the year ended 31 December 2014.

BEEBHEHEMSRELAERIEARE
8,262H BT (2013%F : A R¥8,470H &
L) BEEHEEHD1.8%  FTEARESHE
REEIEE THRAE - XEAN - EEHEEY
BEEKHEHENSRERENE MK L3.3%
BREE3S% FITEEHEHAEERHE
FT 18 s TB 48 58 /) B BA £ 96.0% 08 > =20144F
12H31B IEFEM95.3% °

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  # b BB 1% i G BR A &)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE D

TSP by top five largest stores BT K5 i #1 8Y & AT 8 5L R A2 BB 1) & Bt
Due to the increase in TSP contributions from younger AREEFENEEHEBRFENETS S
stores and keen market competition, the top five largest FHYE RRAAAERYAEEEBFEEMN
stores aggregate contribution to TSP decreased from SREAEN 2T AR EFN60.7%HEE
60.7% of last year to 59.5% for 2014. 20145 #59.5% °
Top 5 largest department stores by TSP: AAAXBAEEHEEMSHRIBRLE
2014 2013
—E-mF —E2—=
TSP TSP TSP TSP
$§EFB  Contribution HEME Contribution
MIEHEE HEF SRIBAERE HE TS
(RMB million) FMIEMAEE  (RMB million) NIBEE
(AREEBEEBR) Rt (ARBBET HRIE
Wuxi Yaohan ST UANERS 1,435 17.4% 1,607 19.0%
Zhenjiang Yaohan BTN\ EHF 1,210 14.6% 1,167 13.8%
Jiangyin Springland L 961 11.6% 966 11.4%
Yixing Springland HEEM 708 8.6% 809 9.5%
Nantong Yaohan EREPANERE= 602 7.3% 572* 6.8%*
Liyang Yaohan B A B 568* 6.9%* 591 7.0%
Others Hi 3,346 40.5% 3,330 39.3%
8,262 100% 8,470 100%
* The store’s TSP is included in others * HIFEMGRELERETEME S
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TSP by merchandise categories

In 2014, fashion and apparel accounted for approximately
39.0% (2013: 38.7%); merchandise related to cosmetics
accounted for approximately 5.6% (2013: 5.0%); watches,
gold and jewelry accounted for approximately 25.0%
(2013: 26.8%); footwear accounted for approximately
10.6% (2013: 10.4%) and the remaining categories
including athletic apparel and casual wear, children’s and
home furnishing, household and electronic appliances,
rental income and others accounted for the remaining
19.8% (2013: 19.1%) of TSP of the department stores
business. The proportion of sales proceeds of department
stores from various merchandise categories are presented
in the below charts.

Department Store - 2014

Fashion and apparel
iR 3 2 AR £
Watches, gold and jewelry
Ek - =2 E RALH
- Cosmetics
bt
Footwear
HE
Others
HAh

10.6%

@

Commission rate from concessionaire sales and
comprehensive gross margin®

In 2014, the commission rate from concessionaire
sales was 16.7% and it was similar to 16.6% in 2013.
The Comprehensive Gross Margin of department store
business was 21.1% in 2014, representing a mild growing
of 0.4 percentage point from 20.7% in 2013. The growth
resulted from the change in the merchandise mix and
improving operational efficiency in the regional retalil
network.

BE
19.

EEENWE D

B an B AT RS B AR B B 77
2014F  HELRMGHEEMSRNIBERLSE
#7/539.0% (20134 : 38.7%)  {L AL Sk 49
5.6% (20134 : 5.0%) * f#Etk - ES KB R
{5 4)25.0% (20134F : 26.8% ) : EE G A
10.6% (20134 : 10.4%) : EtrmEBER| (&
FBEHRELAER ERLREAR R
BREFHR HSBRAREM) (4% T
19.8% (20134 : 19.1%) - LB MmmEE D
HENWEEEBHEEMSRELSENLANT
B AR o

Department Store — 2013
BE

£

10.4%

FABEHEN T FRGEEENES

R2014F  BERFTEEHEREXA
16.7% * B120134F16.6%H#H - A E X KK
4RE EFER2013F H20.7% + B AIEKO0.4
BEDEE2014F/21.1% - I EHXK A E
REHEAENSEL RN RETEREREEN
RERF -

5 Comprehensive Gross Margin = (gross profit of direct sales + commission income from concessionaire sales + rental
income + other income (service fee collected from concessionaire and suppliers))/TSP.

HAEENEXAGEEMNGUHEMSHARENE - GAENEERERHEEN  HHELHERS KA - HEKRA

REMBA(EEXRERFEEARNEBRNRFE)

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  # b BB 1% i G BR A &)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

Supermarket business:

In 2014, TSP of the supermarket business reached
RMB2,787 million (2013: RMB2,665 million). Growth
in TSP generated from newly opened supermarkets.
Intensified competition and economic slowdown in PRC
resulted a mild same store growth of 0.2%.

TSP by top five largest stores

The aggregate contribution to TSP generated from the
supermarket business from the top five largest stores
decreased from approximately 39.7% in 2013 to 37.6%
in 2014. The proceeds from supermarkets opened in
2013 and 2014 (proceeds not included in calculating the
same store sales change) accounted for 8.1% of TSP for
the supermarket business. These stores are expected to
become a new driving force for the supermarket business
of the Group.

TSP by merchandise categories

Fresh food accounted for approximately 40.0%
(2013: 38.6%), dry foods accounted for approximately
29.8% (2013: 30.2%), non-food accounted for
approximately 26.0% (2013: 26.7%) and the remaining
categories including rental income and others accounted
for the remaining 4.2% (2013: 4.5%) of the TSP of the
supermarket business. The proportion of sales proceeds
of supermarket business from various merchandise
categories are presented in the below charts.

Supermarket - 2014
Bm

Fresh food

MR

Dry food

wZERM

Non-food merchandise
FRmME

Others

Hh
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2014%F  MMERBEEMBHREATEAR
¥ 787H BT (2013F : AR¥26658 &
JL) BT EBMEEMSHNERTERT
DREAFARBTOER - BRINTSEBF
N33 /Y AR B A 8 R R S S B AUE &
0.2% °

B K S 4 4 3 B BT 78 3 1B AR BE i) B Bt

A ARNEMEBMESHEEMSRIERLR
B 25T HRLAH2013F #939.7 % £2014F 1Y
37.6% ° M20134F K20144F 159 38 Ay B T &
B EFHEEMSREAEERES1% (Z
HEMSHRELRETANTERIEHEE
&) ZEEREER AN EEBTESHE
EMENFTHESS -

FZ 7 qnan BB B B AT R 5L B AE BE F 7

FHEMEBMEBHEHEMSRNELED
40.0% (20134 : 38.6%) & HBERE L
29.8% (20134 : 30.2% ) : kR BB B
15 #126.0% (20134 : 26.7% ) : A #47 @
HA (REES WA REM) G T H4.2%
(201834 : 4.5%) - EmmiBE D E(GEBm
EBHEEMGRBALENOLAINTEATR -

Supermarket — 2013
i)




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE D

Direct sales margin and comprehensive gross margin

Revenue from direct sales in the supermarket business
increased from RMB2,380 million in 2013 to RMB2,478
million in 2014, representing a rise of 4.1%. The
direct sales margin stayed at 12.6% (2013: 12.9%).
The Comprehensive Gross Margin reached 22.6%
(2013: 283.3%). The Group intended to maintain the
Comprehensive Gross Margin stable by increasing
investments in equipment and technology to expand the
contribution from fresh food and to enhance products

quality and reduce wastage.

BEBHEENEREEEFE

BHERREEEHEENKAB2013FH
AR®23808 BLig N E2014F AR
2478BE &L FLLIER4A% - EEHENTE
A& E12.6% (2013%F : 12.9%) ' R A EF
R 522 6% (20134 : 23.3%) - EE BB
IR MM ARBANER BEER
Bl IRAMEEE  BREEBERE MRFEBEM

ES TN

EMNRNIBE °

Expenses
=8
Year ended 31 December 2014 Year ended 31 December 2013
HENUEANALER HEN1E2 A AL EE
Department Department
store  Supermarket store  Supermarket
business business  Headquarter Total % of TSP Dusiness business Headquarter Total % of TSP
BERE LSS & 3t fiHE [[-£3) #nzh &3 i i
(RMB million) F&5E (AMB milion) EHE
(AR%EER) BERA (AR%RER) FEED)
Staff costs EIRA m 283 n 562 5.3% %7 21 85 578 51%
Depreciation and TEREH
amortisation 258 n 4 33 3.0% 218 66 4 318 2.9%
Rental expenses EERY n 66 5 9% 09% 0 54 5 81 0.71%
Other expenses EHRR 360 125 4 526 4% 339 129 % 494 4.5%
included: i
Impairment of goocwil ~~ BEHEEE % - - % 0.2% - - -
Total fir 917 495 121 1,539 13.9% 876 410 120 1466 18.2%

Expenses consisted of staff costs, depreciation and
amortisation, rental expenses and other expenses.
Other expenses mainly include impairment of goodwill,
utility expenses, advertising and promotion expenses,
losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment,
office expenses, maintenance costs, travelling expenses,
entertainment expenses, property tax and government

surcharges and other miscellaneous expenses.

ERBREINA FEREE MEMX
REMAX - HibHAX BEEEREER
KERAX EEEEER UE BEER

R EEIE
R ZRE XBREE

MERME MR

MAERX  BHELEME
FAEM - B
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

In 2014, total expenses of the Group as a percentage of
TSP were 13.9% (2013: 13.2%). Total expenses increased
by 5.0% to RMB1,539 million (2013: RMB1,466 million)
as the Group continued to expand the store network,
upgrade the shopping environment, and impairment of
goodwill and net exchange losses have been recognised
in the year.

Fee income from suppliers and operating profit

In 2014, fee Income from suppliers increased to RMB528
million (2013: RMB517 million), fee income from suppliers
as a percentage of TSP increased to approximately 4.8%
for 2014 from 4.6% for 2013.

Operating profits for the Group (excluded impairment
of goodwill, share of loss of a joint venture, interest
and dividend income and unallocated gains, corporate
and other unallocated expenses and finance costs)
decreased to approximately RMB983 million in 2014
from RMB1,026 million for the same period in 2013,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 4.2%. Operating
profits for the department store business decreased
from RMB874 million in 2013 to approximately RMB847
million in 2014, representing a year-on-year decrease of
3.0%. However, the operation margin as a percentage of
TSP for the department store business stayed at 10.3%
(20183: 10.3%). For the supermarket business, operating
profits decreased to approximately RMB136 million.
However, the operating margin as a percentage of TSP
for the supermarket business was 4.9%, representing
a decline of 0.8 percentage point from 5.7% in 2013.
The decrease in operating margin for the supermarket
business was due to pre-operation costs and higher
operating costs contributed by the newly-opened
supermarkets.
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R2014F - REEE B ABGHEEMESHE
B E DL A13.9% (20134 : 13.2%) - &
AEE I IN5.0%E AR #1,5305 & Jt (2013
F:ARB1466887L) TEHRAEE
BEERTEHS  RABYERE  UER
FANRROERBEEBERELBRMY -

RESHERMNEMBAREEER

20144 - REMEMHEMBAZENEAR
528 E &L (2013F « ARMB17TEEL) -
I EFTSFIEAZE T H L 2013F H4.6%
EANE2014F 494.8% ©

AEEMEE S (BREEREER 216
AETERE - FERBREWA - KoB WK
@ ARIMHEMASERT RBERA) A
2013F ) AR #1,026F & Ll L 220144
MARMBISSEE L  HFETHR4I2%-BHE
EEHN KL H AN H2013FEMARKS7TAHE
LR E2014F M ARBBATEE L IHF
TPE3.0% - AMIBLIHENBSRBEBHED
Ao EEEBKEERMNERFMLI0.3%
(2013%F : 10.3%) ° BT E 75 0 & &% FIR
LEAREAS6EE L - RIGHEEMEHRER
BB DL T E K &R H R4.9% » B
2013F MI5.7% M LL P& 1K T O.81E & 79 Bh - &8
MEBKEEFNETREZHNRIFEEY
BE RS IEN AR R E RGN
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW Bt 7% 2] B8
An analysis of the results attributable to owners of the BRRHEAREEZSNOT

parent set out below:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2014 2013

B 22014F EH Z=20134F
12A31H 12H31H
ItHEE IEFE

(RMB million)  (RMB million)
(AR®EER) (ARKBEET)

Business unit E$ 3= a
Department store BE 847 874
Less: Ve
Impairment of goodwill AR EER (25) -
822 874
Supermarket fidh) 136 152
958 1,026
Net finance income FEWANFE 79 68
Dividend, investment income BE - BERA
and unallocated gains kAR5 B = 60 64
Corporate overheads and others T¥#&EE R Ht X% (127) (119)
Share of loss of a joint venture S hEagLEFE (49) (4)
Income tax expense FrEHmAx (275) (299)
Non-controlling interests FERRRER (12) (6)
Total a% 634 730
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

Impairment of goodwill

The amount comprised impairment of goodwill related
to the acquisition of Yangzhou Fengxiang Commerce
Co., Ltd. The company is engaged in operation of a
department store, Yangzhou Wanjiafu Commercial
Building, in Yangzhou, Jiangsu Province, the PRC.

Net finance income

This comprised interest income from the Group’s surplus
cash and structured deposit net interest expenses on
bank borrowings and short-term financing notes. There
were no material changes in gross interest income and
gross interest expense. The increase in net finance income
was due to the interest expense of RMB40 million (2013:
RMB29 million) has been capitalized as property under
development.

Dividend, investment income and unallocated gains
This mainly comprised of dividend and investment income
received by the Group from its investment in the shares
of Wuxi Commercial Building Dadongfang Co., Ltd (%5
3R E AR D AR A E]) and subsidy income. Up to
October 2014, the Group disposed all the investment and
recognized a net gain on disposal of RMB31.3 million.

Share of loss of a joint venture

The Company held investment in the joint venture of
Zhenjiang Baisheng Commercial Center Co., Ltd (&I &
B ik A BR 22 B]). The joint venture operates 2 department
stores in Zhenjiang City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC. In
2014, the Company shared the joint venture operating
loss of RMB49 million. The loss in the joint venture arose
from that its self-owned department store was closed
down for refurbishment and costs for optimized staffing.

Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses for the current year remained
relatively stable as compared with the previous year and
the effective tax rate kept at 29.8% (2013: 28.8%).
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AEREES
SEARBHMNEFEARARAFNEER
BEEG HWARRTEIHEHBMNEE R
HARGMNERXEBOHBERE -

FEWAEEE
FEREAREERKBE S REBETROF
BUWAIRBITER R EHEBRESNFEX
e AR B WATRANE ST LB ERE
B FBBRASEREFZRAFEAIA
REAWEBEETLEREARLREREE TR
(2013%F : ARME20EHE L)

BRE - REWARAD B W

FERRAEEREEEGNERNERRS
f& 1D B BR A BRI A% B A% 15 3% & UL A K #i B
WA - B ZE2014F108 - AEBEHE RS
KREVERDE FHREARKI1IIEET -

AR ERREMBEMLN ARG EILIT
MBAEE - R2014%5 - RRARDHEEED
ERLEZFEBRARBIOBET -BEIEHN
ZAECEEEREEMERANRABEL
FXANFER

FrEREX
AFEEMESHRAYEEFHELMEHREE
F B R 529.8% (20134 1 28.8%) ©



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Assets base
The total assets and net assets of the Group are
summarised as follows:

Total assets BEBE

Net assets BEFE

Net assets per share (Note) SRFEE (3F)
Note:

Equity attributable to owners of the parent/Number of issued
shares at the end of year

Total assets of the Group did not change materially for
the year ended 31 December 2014, as compared with the
previous year. The increase in net assets of the Group and
the net assets per share was attributable to the profit for
the year.

EEENWE D

EEER
SEMEERELREEFEMRRNT :

31 December 31 December

2014 2013
20145 20134
12H31H 12H31H

(RMB million) (RMB million)
(AR®BEER) (AR¥BE&ET)

11,602 12,132
5,197 5,026
RMB RMB

AR® AR®

2.03 1.92

it
BATHEA ARIEERD EROBETRMOE -
EEMN2014F12 31BN EEREBEBREFIT

R BBEAZY KEEEFENEREE
FF B IR D02 A 0 R s M P B
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

An analysis of the major assets, which remained relatively
stable, is set out below:

Assets use in operation EEGHANEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB K&
Prepaid land premiums ENTHHES
Long-term prepayments REFFETFRIB

Cash and cash equivalents,

long-term time deposits MREIEBER
at banks, restricted cash and BEeMEBETR
structured deposits

Others assets EMEE

Total assets BEBE

Property, plant and equipment, prepaid land
premium and long-term prepayments

Property, plant and equipment, prepaid land premium
and long term prepayments amounted to approximately
RMB7,936 million (2013: RMB7,213 million). Those assets
were held for long-term and for the use in operation.

Capital expenditure of the Group during 2014 amounted
to approximately RMB646 million (2013: RMB678
million). The amount represented contractual payments
made for the acquisition of land use rights, buildings
and construction of greenfield projects and store
expansion. Capital commitment as of 31 December 2014
amounted to RMB1,314 million (2013: RMB1,064 million),
representing mainly capital works and construction of
Yixing, Jiaxing, Anging and Wuhu shopping malls.
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TBEEENAESHEERE  2WHEINWT :

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

201445 20134
12A31H 12H31H
(RMB million) (RMB million)

(AR®BER) (AREBAET)

ReMREFEY FRIR/T

XRER

6,449 6,132
872 899
615 182

7,936 7,213

2,328 3,455

1,338 1,464

11,602 12,132

ME -BERZE BEfIHHESERRES
EARIE

W BMERZRH EANIHESEEH
B FRIBEEEL AR 79368 & T (2013
F:ARK721388 L) - Ll BETIRE
BE - UEREEMFR-

REBR014FANERFAZOABARE
646E BT (2013F : ARKEG7T8EHETL) - &
AFAZFEZEERERE S UEN LA
BT HEEFRABEBEENGONR R
2014512 A31H  AEEBEMNEXREAERAR
#1,3148 & 7T (2013F : AR ¥1,0648 8
L) EFFEAEHE - 2 2F - BEYH
BEARMEEDPLER -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Cash and cash equivalents, time deposits

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for
varying periods of between three month and five years
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash
equivalents and time deposits approximate to their fair
values.

Restricted cash

Pursuant to the relevant rules and regulations issued by
the Ministry of Commerce of the People’s Republic of
China, the Group was required to deposit bank balances
(or through issuing the letter of bank guarantee to deposit)
in the Group’s designated accounts, which amount
was no less than 30% of the balance of advances from
customers for sales of prepaid cards. As at 31 December
2014, certain of the Group’s restricted cash amounted
to RMB100 million (2013: RMB554 million) represents
the above balances deposited in the Group’s designated
accounts. As at 31 December 2014, certain of the
Group’s restricted cash amounted to RMB127 million
(2013: Nil) were pledged to banks for bank loans facilities
granted to the Group.

Structured deposits

The amounts included structured deposits in licensed
banks in the PRC. These structured deposits have terms
of less than three months and have expected annual
rates of return up to 5.9% (2013: 6.3%). Pursuant to the
underlying contracts or notices, these structured deposits
are capital guaranteed upon the maturity date.

EQUITY, FINANCING AND GEARING

As at 31 December 2014, the equity attributable to
owners of the parent amounted to RMB4,984 million,
representing an increase of RMB188 million from 31
December 2013. During 2014, the Company repurchased
approximately 49.1 million shares for a total consideration
(including expenses) of approximately HK$148 million.

EEENWE D

RERREEEY EHRER
RITFRRESTHRITFERNEREOZHH
B-EHEFE=ZEAZEAFHRIAF &
FAEENANERSFRME  LRFEH
EHESRARBRERAME - RITEBRTFARE
BRT-RERBASEFEY  EHEROK
EEEEQFEEBE

FRENES

IR PR AR 2 AR AN g 75 3008 3 A0 B R VE 4R,
REBFFA (SRBEBIRITR K AER)
TOREEENEBERNE P BN RIEHRE
S0%HIHIBEREEIB TR, o Bl 22014512
A31H, AEEARB1008E T (20134 : A
RES4ABT)NEREEESETFALR
HIEERRP ° R20145F12 A31 B, ARBE AR
E127E BT (2013F - E)MXREKES
EERARBITEAR TAEERITERAOE
R o

ERMEEX
CERERPEAREMBEFEBITNGERE
MR- P ABETRHAR IR =EA -
I 78 H1 & = A 5.9% (20134F : 6.3% ) BI4F Fl|
K- RBELEZBNEL  BELEBUTETX
REH B ZRAE o

REER MERBEBHR
MR2014F12H318 ARG B RREEB A
G = A AR 49848 & T 820134
12A31EEMARMEIS8E B IL o AR AR
2014F AR ENI48AEE L(BEER)
EE40 1B EREG -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

Over the past years, we have actively diversified our
funding sources, maintained strong long-term relations
with lenders and investors and have spread out maturities
to reduce refinancing risk. The Group maintained a strong
cash position. Cash and cash equivalents, time deposits
and restricted cash total stood at RMB2,213 million
(2013: RMB1,568 million). Net bank and financial notes
borrowings of the Group represented bank borrowings
and financial notes, net of cash and cash equivalents,
time deposits and restricted cash, and amounted to
RMB381 million as at 31 December 2014. Compared with
RMB1,296 million as at 31 December 2013. The decrease
in net bank and financial notes borrowings during 2014
was mainly due to the Group’s surplus cash placed in time
deposits.

The maturity profile of the Group’s bank and financing
notes borrowings are set out below:

Bank and financing notes FE(EBIRITIE R

EBREHRTF  RAFRMERBLZE/  HER
ARREERFBRPBENBFR  WHEEB
EIE B DB AR BB ERER - ANE B %
BRHETHNERS BHehkRESED T
HEFMIREEECEEHNAARE2213
BEL(20183F : ARM1568EHE L) ° K
2014512 A31H » £EBRRITERMEE &
FRE(AIRITEZIRES  HBRBEe MRS
ELEY  THERANZIBREEES) BARK
381E &L M2013F12A31BEEMRTT
B EFFHEANABARE 206EHETT ©
R2014F A @ IR{TIERMBEFFRR D
FTEARAEEBREESCHERTEHER -

SERTERMBEFNHBHBERMOT

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

20144 2013
12A31H 12H31H
(RMB million) (RMB million)

(AR®EHER) (AREAET)

borrowings repayable: MEh& % -
Within one year 1F AN 300 1,872
Over one year but within 1 LA EE2F R
two years 738 308
Over two years but within 2F LA FB5FER
five years 1,556 684
Total bank and financing notes ITIERMBLE H 458
borrowings 2,594 2,864
Cash and cash equivalents, e kReEEY  THEX
time deposits (1,985) (1,013)
Restricted cash XREBES (228) (555)
Net bank and financing notes RITIERMBE 5 758
borrowings 381 1,296
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group has been careful in using debt gearing to
expand our business in accordance with our business
strategy. As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s gearing
ratio stayed at 39% (2013: 37%). The gearing ratio
is calculated by net debt (including bank borrowings,
financing notes, trade and bills payables and other
payables and accruals minus structured deposits, cash
and cash equivalents, time deposits and restricted cash)
divided by the capital plus net debt of the Group.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group’s financing and treasury activities are centrally
managed and controlled at the corporate level.

The Group has always pursued a prudent treasury
management policy and is in a strong liquidity position
with sufficient standby banking facilities to cope with daily
operations and future development demands for capital.
The Group relied principally on cash flow generated from
its operating activities as a primary source of liquidity.

The Group conducted its business operations in the
PRC and its revenues and expenses were denominated
in RMB. Certain of the Group’s bank balances, bank
borrowings and deposits were denominated in HK$ or
US$ which exposed the Group to foreign exchange risks
attributable to fluctuations in exchange rates between
HK$/US$ and RMB. The Group manages its foreign
exchange risk by performing regular reviews of the
Group’s net foreign exchange exposures.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
recorded net foreign exchange losses of approximately
RMB13 million (2013: net foreign exchange gains of
RMB26 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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PERFORMANCE INDICATORS ERIBES W
ANALYSIS
The following is the key financial ratios used to interpret A0 AR AN 2 B B 7 R 4B MR Y A 5 B
the financial performance and position of the Company. T o
Return on equity FEEWKZFE
RMB'M .
(AR  TH7) Net incorne
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MRS A FEEREE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Net asset per share FRFEE
RMB Equity attributable to
);Em T owners of the parent
Net asset BAREEABEER
per share = Number of issued s
102 2.03 Hﬁ/%ﬁﬁ umoer or Issued shares
5 1.79 at the end of year
FEREBTROE
’
2012 2013 2014
Gearing ratio BEEEMEHE
é"tb Net debt
60): Gearing ratio EHFE
AEARNE Equity and net debt
S0 ERREBEE
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20
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Interest cover ratio FI B 1R & 1= &
Times Profit before income tax and interest
(34 Interest SR
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Dividend yield
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RE W FE
Dividend per share
Dividend yield SREE
hekzaz Closing share price

Dividend yield was between 3.9% to 6.3% in
the past years.

BE =T B NS R IRIFE3.9%E6.3%2
f o

BREREE
Yearly dividends per share
Dividend payout FESHRKA
REREE Earnings per share
sl

After the Company was listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on October
2010, we have declared and paid out interim
and final dividends in each year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND
PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the
Group had no material contingent liabilities.

As at 31 December 2014, certain of the Group’s restricted
cash amounted to RMB127million (2013: Nil) were
pledged to banks for bank loans facilities granted to the
Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group employed a total of
approximately 7,731 full-time employees, of which 3,281
served the department store business and of which 4,349
served the supermarket business (2013: 8,612 full-time
employees, of which 3,502 served the department store
business and of which 4,946 served the supermarket
business). Employees included management staff, sales
people, workers for the logistics supporting system and
other supporting staff. The Group has been trying its best
to provide employees with a stimulating and harmonious
working environment advocating lifelong learning, offering
training and encouraging them to broaden their field of
vision, improving the standard of our employees, supporting
their personal growth and offering promotion opportunities.
The Group provided additional support on staff training to
enhance their performance in their current roles or prepare
them for further advancement.

While staff costs are continuously grew stably during
2014, employee remuneration packages are maintained
at competitive levels and employees are rewarded on a
performance-related basis.

SOCIAL OBLIGATION

The Group continues to focus on sustainable development
of the business and actively supports and constructs local
urban green space. During 2014, the Group sponsored
a series of environmental activities including adoption of
green space of 1,240 square meters and some precious
trees in Wuxi Li Lake Park. Springland Charity Foundation
has carried out a series of activities to help the poor from
further expand coverage to student, elderly and sick
people.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Jiangiang

aged 57 (appointed on 23 June 2006)

Mr. Chen, the founder of the Group and Chairman of
the Company, is responsible for the overall corporate
strategies planning, business development and investment
of the Group. Since the Group’s incorporation in
1996, Mr. Chen has been engaging in retail business
and actively participating in the management and
development of the Group’s business. He holds an
Executive Master’'s degree in Business Administration
from China Europe International Business School.
Mr. Chen is the chairman of honors of the World
Chinese Traders General Association (Hong Kong) Ltd.
(ESERHAZE HLE). Mr. Chen is also the sole director
and shareholder of Octopus Holdings Foundation, the
controlling shareholder and an associated corporation of
the Company.

Mr. Tao Qingrong

aged 54 (appointed on 23 June 2006)

Mr. Tao has been the Chief Executive Officer of the Group
since January 2011 and is primarily responsible for the
day-to-day management of business and operation of
the Group. Mr. Tao joined the Group in October 2002
as general manager of Shanghai Springland Enterprise
Investment Co., Ltd (EBFEMPEIEEHRR A A) and
later was appointed as general manager of the department
store unit of the Group. Mr. Tao is a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Tao worked for Shanghai Soap Co., Ltd. (E/&HI2HR
/A 7)) as sales and marketing director from 1997 to 2000,
and Shanghai Soap (Group) Product Sales Co., Ltd. (&£
BH B (SEH) EREEBMRAQAR) as general manager
from 2000 to 2002. Mr. Tao holds a Master’'s degree
in system engineering from the Shanghai Institute of
Mechanical Technology (/8 ## 267) (ater known as
University of Shanghai for Science and Technology) and
an Executive Master’s degree in Business Administration
from China Europe International Business School. Mr. Tao
is interested in approximately 38.46% of the shareholding
of Celestial Spring Limited, being a shareholder holding
approximately 1.14% of the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yu Yaoming

aged 45 (appointed on 23 May 2011)

Mr. Yu joined the Group in October 2007 as a financial
director and was appointed as vice president of the
Group in May 2011. Mr. Yu is primarily responsible for the
accounting and financial reporting of the Group. He is a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Yu has
over 20 years of experience in finance and accounting
and is also a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Yu holds a Bachelor’'s degree
in accounting from Shanghai University of Finance
and Economics. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yu
worked as an accounting manager of Shanghai SECCO
Petrochemical Company Limited (E&&ERAMIETAR
HEAT) from 2001 to 2007. Mr. Yu also worked as a
deputy director of the finance department of SINOPEC
Shanghai Jinshan Engineering Co., Ltd. (FA{t E&&
T2 7R]) from 1999 to 2001 and worked in relevant
units under SINOPEC Shanghai Petrochemical Company
Limited (FBIAL BB AMBIEIRMDABRAF) from 1992
to 1999.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, John

aged 47 (appointed on 19 July 2010)

Mr. Fung is members of the nomination committee and
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Fung is
currently the Managing Director of Global Link (CHINA)
Company Limited, a company engaged in supply of TV
media programmes. He had previously worked as a senior
manager of the North Asia division of ESPN ASIA Limited,
a diversified sports, entertainment and media company
from 1995 to 1997. Mr. Fung holds a Bachelor of Science

degree from Cornell University in Ithaca, New York.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Lin Zhijun (&)

aged 60 (appointed on 17 February 2008)

Dr. Lin is the Chairman of the audit committee and
members of the nomination committee and remuneration
committee of the Company. Dr. Lin is now the Dean of
School of Business in Macau University of Science and
Technology. Dr. Lin holds a Master of Science degree in
Accounting from University of Saskatchewan in Canada
and a Ph.D degree in Economics (Accounting) from
Xiamen University. Since 1983, Dr. Lin served various
facilities in many academic institutes, including Xiamen
University, and was a Visiting Professor in the University
of Hong Kong, Tenured Professor in the Faculty of
Management of Lethbridge University in Canada and
Head of the Department of Accountancy and Law in Hong
Kong Baptist University. He worked at an international
accounting firm, Touche Ross & Co. Canada (now known
as “Deloitte”) in Toronto from 1982 to 1983. Dr. Lin is also
a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (AICPA), the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (CICPA) and the Australian Institute
of Certified Management Accountants (CMA). He is a
member of various educational accounting associations
including the American Accounting Association, the
International Association for Accounting Education and
Research and the Hong Kong Association for Accounting
Education. He is currently an independent non-executive
director of China Everbright Limited (stock code: 0165.
HK) and Sinotruk (Hong Kong) Limited (stock code: 3808.
HK), both of which are companies listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. From 2012 to April
2014, Dr. Lin served as independend non-executive
director of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited (stock code: 0564.HK), a company
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. Zhang Weijiong (3R #E 4io)

aged 62 (appointed on 17 February 2008)

Dr. Zhang is the Chairmen of the nomination committee
and remuneration committee and a member of the audit
committee of the Company. Dr. Zhang joined China
Europe International Business School (“CEIBS”) in 1997.
Dr. Zhang is currently serves as professor of Strategy,
vice president and co-dean at CEIBS and director of the
Centre of Chinese Private Enterprises at CEIBS. He holds
a Bachelor’'s degree in power mechanical engineering
from Shanghai Jiaotong University and Master’s and
Doctorate’s degrees in business administration from
University of British Columbia in Canada. Dr. Zhang
was associate dean and associate professor at the
Management School of Shanghai Jiaotong University. He
is currently an independent director of HUAYU Automotive
Systems Co., Ltd (stock code: 600741), a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and an independent
non-executive director of Shanghai Fosun Pharmaceutical
(Group) Co., Ltd (stock codes: 600196 and 2196.HK), a
company dual listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Cheung Yat Ming (3% — &)

aged 46 (appointed on 11 March 2014)

Mr. Cheung is the members of the audit committee,
nomination committee and remuneration committee of the
Company. Mr. Cheung is currently an executive director,
chief executive officer and responsible officer of New
Century Asset Management Limited, a REIT manager of
New Century Real Estate Investment Trust (stock code:
1275), a REIT listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Mr. Cheung holds a bachelor degree in
accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) and
a chartered accountant of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW).
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Mr. Cheung has extensive experience in the fields of
investment, real estate and property market research,
corporate finance and auditing. Mr. Cheung worked at
Arthur Andersen & Co. in Hong Kong and China from
1991 to 1994. In September 1994, Mr. Cheung joined
Citibank (now named Citigroup) as an accountant and
administration manager and held the position of assistant
vice president from September 1996. In October 1997,
he started working in Salomon Smith Barney (now named
Citigroup) as an equity research analyst. Since May 1999,
Mr. Cheung worked at Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette.
He joined HSBC Securities (Asia) Limited as the head of
Hong Kong and China property research in November
2000 where he worked until April 2005. Mr. Cheung
joined Cohen & Steers Asia Limited in 2005 as a senior
vice president and executive director, supervising its Asia
Pacific real estate investment and research functions. Mr.
Cheung worked as the head of research of DBS Vickers
(Hong Kong) Limited from June 2009 to 2011. From
August 2011 to 2013, Mr. Cheung has been the chief
investment officer of Neutron INV Partners Limited and
has been involved in work such as setting up the Neutron
Greater China Equity Fund and marketing to local and
overseas institutional investors, consultants, distribution
intermediaries. Further, in 2010, Mr. Cheung received the
Outstanding Chinese Business Leader Award from the
HongQi and China Report. He currently is an independent
non-executive director of Best Pacific International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 2111. HK), a company
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Saved as disclosed, the Directors have not held any

directorship in other listed public companies currently and

in the last three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Xu Zhigiang (#%58), aged 40, has been a vice
president of the Group since December 2013. He is
primarily responsible for the operation and management
of the department store business of the Group. Mr. Xu
has almost 20 years of experience in retail sales since
his joining the Group in 1996. Mr. Xu holds a Bachelor’s
degree in international trade from Chongging School
of Commerce (EERZM) and a Master’'s degree
in business administration from Guanghua School of
Management of Peiking University.

Mr. Zhu Tao (%J8), aged 44, has been a vice president
of the Group since December 2013 and he is responsible
for assets management, store opening, business
expansion and logistic support of the Group. Mr. Zhu
joined the Group in 1996 and has previously taken up
various positions in the Group. Mr. Zhu has almost
20 years of experience in department store and retail
businesses. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhu worked
for Yixing Wine Factory (EEHR). Mr. Zhu obtained
a diploma in food processing from Shanghai Fisheries
University (E/8KEKREZ) (later known as Shanghai
Ocean University) in 1991. Mr. Zhu is a director of and is
interested in approximately 30.77% of the shareholding
of Celestial Spring Limited, being a shareholder holding
approximately 1.14% interest in the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Hon Yin Wah, Eva (%# %), HKICPA, FCCA, aged
44, joined the Group in August 2010 as the Company
Secretary of the Company. Ms. Hon holds a Bachelor
of business administration degree in accounting from
the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.
Ms. Hon is a certified public accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA)
and a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (ACCA). She has almost 20 years of
experience in accounting and financial management and
corporate governance. Prior to joining the Group, she was
an audit manager at PricewaterhouseCoopers and senior
executive of companies listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited or Nasdaqg Stock Market.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) and
management are committed to compliance of statutory
and regulatory corporate governance standards and
adherence to the principles of corporate governance
emphasizing transparency, independence, accountability,
responsibility and fairness. The Board reviews the
corporate governance practices from time to time to
ensure alignment of interests and expectations from
our shareholders, the public investors and the other
stakeholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2014, the
Company complied with all the code provisions (“Code
Provision”) set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practice (the “Corporate Governance Code”) under
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), except for
certain derivations as specific with considered reasons
below. No incident of non-compliance by Directors was
noted by the Company in 2014.

Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules provides that every board
of directors of listed issuers must include at least three
independent non-executive directors. Moreover, Rule 3.21
of the Listing Rules provides that the audit committee of a
listed issuer must comprise a minimum of three members.
Subsequent to resignation of Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company by Mr. Wang Shuaiting on
17 January 2014, the Company had two Independent
Non-executive Directors and two audit committee
members, the number of independent non-executive
directors and the number of the audit committee members
fell below the minimum number as required under Rules
3.10(1) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules. Further, the number
of independent non-executive Director of the Company
fell below one-third of the Board members, which did not
comply with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

On 11 March 2014, the Board appointed Mr. Cheung
Yat Ming as an Independent Non-executive Director
and member of the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee of the
Company. Following the appointment of Mr. Cheung, the
Company has fully complied with the requirements of
Rules 3.10(A), 3.10(1) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

Under Code Provision E.1.2, the chairman of the Board
should attend the annual general meeting of the Company.
Due to other pre-arranged business commitments which
must be attended to by him, Mr. Chen Jiangiang, the
Chairman, was not present at the 2014 annual general
meeting held on 30 April 2014. However, Mr. Tao
Qingrong, being an Executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, was present at the
2014 annual general meeting and was elected chairman
thereof pursuant to the Articles of the Company to ensure
an effective communication with the shareholders thereat.
The chairman of the audit committee also attend the 2014
annual general meeting and answer enquires raised by
shareholders.

THE BOARD

Roles and responsibility of the Board

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of
corporate governance and is ultimately accountable
for the Group’s activities, strategies and financial
performance. The Board has established various
committees to manage and oversee the specified affairs
of the Group. Certain important matters involving finance
and shareholders’ interest are reserved for approval by the
Board, including annual budget, annual and interim results
announcements, dividends, major investment, equity-
related capital market operations, mergers and acquisition
and disposal, major connected transactions, annual
internal control evaluation and appointment of Director(s)
following the recommendation(s) by the Remuneration and
Nomination Committees. The Board has to make decision
objectively in the best interest of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

All operational decisions are delegated to the Executive
Directors. The day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Company are the responsibilities of
senior management and their functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed.
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Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven
members, including three Executive Directors and four
Non-executive Directors, among which three of them
are Independent Non-executive Directors. The current
composition of the Board is set out as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chen Jiangiang (Chairman)
Mr. Tao Qingrong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yu Yaoming

Non-executive Director
Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, John

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Lin Zhijun
Dr. Zhang Weijiong
Mr. Cheung Yat Ming

The composition, structure and size of the Board are
reviewed at least annually by the Nomination Committee
to ensure that it has a balance of appropriate skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives to meet the
needs of the business of the Group.

Members of the Board have brought a wide spectrum
of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
delivery of the Board functions. Details of the Directors
and relevant relationships amongst each other are set
out in “Director and Senior Management” section in this
report.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 3§

RARERY EFemEtRKEHEK 8
B-BHTEFTMOEFATEZR (ER=A
RBIFRTES) EFS@HAEKENT :

HITEF
BRERSTE (£ /F)
B8 BB 2R ST A (TTICARZL)
MEALL

HHITEF
ISR SE A&

BUFHNTEF
MEEBL
SR A NATE £
R—ISEL

Exemdl RELAAERRRZESSE
FrrIfRd R UEREEFSAEHEA
DeAKEXGATHNEE NE Rk
TLALEA -

EFeREBEZMBECXBRBABMEE
X ENEFTERERLSRNEITHER
B -BENHERREERHER BRI 2 HH R
FHRARE[EERSNERABISH -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

An analysis of the current Board composition is set out in
the following chart:
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The role of the Chairman is separate from that of the
Chief Executive Officer to enhance their respective
independence, accountability and responsibility.
Mr. Chen Jiangiang acting as the Chairman is
responsible for providing leadership in the Board
to set strategies to achieve the Group’s goals.
Mr. Tao Qingrong, the Chief Executive Officer, is
responsible for managing the business of the Group and
leading the management team to implement strategies
and objectives adopted by the Board.
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Appointment, re-election and removal of the
Directors

The Company follows a formal, considered and
transparent procedure for the appointment of new
directors. Appointments are first considered by the
Nomination Committee. The recommendations of the
Nomination Committee are then put to the full Board for
decision. Thereafter, all Directors are subject to election
by shareholders at the annual general meeting in their first
year of appointment.

Each of the Non-executive Director of the Company has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company,
for a specific term of not more than three years subject to
re-election. Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the
Company, any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
until the next following general meeting or the next annual
general meeting of the Company respectively and shall
then be eligible for re-election at the meeting. In addition,
all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least
every three years and one-third (or the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) of Directors shall retire
from office every year at the Company’s annual general
meeting.

Board Committees

The Board has established the following committees
(all chaired by Independent Non-executive Director)
with defined terms of reference in compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code of the Listing Rules:

° Audit Committee
° Remuneration Committee
° Nomination Committee

Each Committee has authority to engage outside
consultants or experts as it considers necessary to
discharge the Committee’s responsibilities. To further
reinforce independence and effectiveness, all Audit
Committee members are Independent Non-executive
Directors, and the Nomination and Remuneration
Committees have been structured with a majority of
Independent Non-executive Directors as members. Details
of the Committees are set out below.
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Board and Board committee meetings

The Board meets at least four times each year and more
frequently as the needs of the business demand. Apart
from the Board meetings, the Board would from time to
time devote separate sessions to consider and review the
Group’s strategy and business activities.

The Directors can attend meeting in person or through
other electronic means of communication. During the year
ended 31 December 2014, the Board met four times and
discussed matters relating to the re-election of Directors,
discussed and approved the overall business strategies,
reviewed and monitored the financial and operation
performance of the Group and approved the annual
budget for the Group. Notice and board papers were
given to all Directors prior to the meetings in accordance
with the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance
Code.

A representative of the external auditor attended the
Company’s 2014 annual general meeting to answer
questions from the shareholders on the audit of the
Group.

According to the current Board practice, any material
transaction involving a conflict of interest with a substantial
shareholder or a Director will be considered and dealt
with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting.
The Company’s Articles and Association also contain
provisions requiring the Directors to abstain from voting
and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for
approving transactions in which such Directors or any of
their associates have a material interest.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is appointed by the Board and
has three members, all of whom are Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Chairman, Dr. Lin Zhijun
has appropriate professional qualifications, including
membership of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (AICPA), the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (CICPA) and the Australian
Institute of Certified Management Accountants (CMA)
and experience in financial and accounting matters.
Dr. Zhang Weijiong has extensive experience in business
administration. Mr. Cheung Yat Ming has appropriate
professional qualifications, including membership of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICAP) and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales (ICAEW) and extensive experience on
the fields of investment, real estate and property market
research, corporate finance and auditing.
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Role and Duties

The Board has given the Audit Committee written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules
and Code Provision C.3 as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules. The terms of reference are set out on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
Committee meet regularly, at least twice a year, as that full
attention can be given to the matters submitted.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee
include the review of both the Group’s consolidated
financial statements and the effectiveness of its internal
control systems. The Committee also oversees the
engagement of the external auditor of the Group and
reviews its independence as well as the effectiveness
of the audit process. The Board expects the Committee
members to exercise independent judgment in conducting
the business of the Committee. A high level review of the
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Group
is performed at each year end.

Summary of Work Done
During the year, the Audit Committee:

e reviewed and discussed with management and
external auditor the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013 (including estimates and judgments
of a material nature made by management in
accordance with the accounting policies of the
Group) and the related final results announcement,
with a recommendation to the Board for approval;

e reviewed the disclosures in the Corporate
Governance Report included in the 2013 Annual
Report of the Company, with a recommendation to
the Board for approval;

° reviewed and discussed with management the
unaudited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the six months ended 30 June 2014
(including estimates and judgments of a material
nature made by management in accordance
with the accounting policies of the Group) and
the related interim results announcement, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;
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° reviewed and considered the reports and
management letters submitted by the external
auditor, which summarised matters arising from
its audit of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2013;

e considered and endorsed the proposed connected
transactions, with a recommendation to the Board for
approval;

° reviewed and considered the scope of work and fee
proposals of the external auditor for the audit of the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2014; and

e conducted a high level review of the effectiveness of
the internal control systems of the Group (covering
financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions) by considering the
work of the management, including a review of
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, and training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function.

Subsequent to the end of the financial year, the
Committee has reviewed the Group’s audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2014, including the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, in conjunction with the
external auditor, with a recommendation to the Board for
approval.

The Committee was satisfied with the external auditor’s
work, its independence and objectivity, and therefore
recommended to the Board the re-appointment of Ernst
& Young as the Company’s external auditor for 2015 for
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.
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Remuneration Committee
The members of the Remuneration Committee during the
year and up to the date of this report are shown below:

Dr. Zhang Weijiong (Chairman)
Dr. Lin Zhijun

Mr. Cheung Yat Ming

Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, John

With the exception of Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, John who
is a Non-executive Director of the Company, all the
other members of the Committee are Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company.

Roles and Duties

The Board has given the Remuneration Committee
written terms of reference in compliance with Rule
3.25 of the Listing Rules and Code Provision B.1. The
terms of reference are set out on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company. The Committee
shall meet at least once a year. The Committee making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure of all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and reviewing the special remuneration
packages of all executive Directors. Human Resources
Department of the Group is responsible for collection and
administration of the human resources data and makes
recommendations to the Committee for consideration.
The Committee consults with the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company about these
recommendations on remuneration policy, structure and
remuneration packages.

Summary of Work Done
During the year, the Remuneration Committee:

e reviewed and determined the amount of bonuses
awarded to the Executive Directors based on
personal and company performances for the year
ended 31 December 2013; and

e approved and reviewed senior management’s
remuneration, including annual incentive payment for
2013 and 2014 and annual pay review for 2014 and
2015.
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Nomination Committee
The members of the Nomination Committee during the
year and up to the date of this report are shown below:

Dr. Zhang Weijiong (Chairman)
Dr. Lin Zhijun

Mr. Cheung Yat Ming

Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, John

With the exception of Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, John who
is a Non-executive Director of the Company, all the
other members of the Committee are Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company.

Roles and Duties

The Board has given the Nomination Committee written
terms of reference in compliance with Code Provision
A.5. The terms of reference are set out on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Committee
shall meet at least once a year. The Committee is
responsible for the review of Board structure and
composition, identification and recommendation to
the Board of possible appointees as Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on matters relating to
appointment or reappointment of Director, succession
planning for Directors and assessing the independence of
the Independent Non-executive Directors.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. All Board appointments will be based on
merit, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service), having due regard
for the benefits of diversity. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and the contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.
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Summary of Work Done
During the year, the Nomination Committee:

e reviewed the structure, size and composition of
the Board, including the independence of the three
Independent Non-executive Directors;

° interviewed and selected the proposed candidates for
the vacancy of independent non-executive director,
with a recommendation to the Board for approval,

e considered the proposed changes to the
composition of the Nomination Committee, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval; and

e considered the nomination of three retiring Directors
for the Board’s recommendation to stand for
re-election by shareholders at the 2014 annual
general meeting of the Company.

An analysis of the current Board composition based
on the Board Diversity Policy’s criteria is set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on page 49. The
Committee considers that the existing members of the
Board have a diverse range of business, financial and
professional expertise in light of the current business
needs of the Company. While the Committee does
not think setting specific requirements for such criteria
as gender and age for the Board composition are
appropriate, it does believe that these are important
elements which will bring a diversity of perspectives
into the Board and, along with a diverse mix of skills,
experience and knowledge that the Board should
have in view of the prevailing business strategy of the
Company, should be taken into consideration for all Board
appointments in the future.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the Company has received a
written confirmation from each Independent Non-executive
Director of his independence to the Group. The Company
considers all of the Independent Non-executive Directors
to be independent with respect to the Group.
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Board and Committee Meetings

Meetings of the Board are held regularly and at least four
times a year at about quarterly intervals. The Directors
can attend meeting in person or through other electronic
means of communication. During the year ended
31 December 2014, the Board met four times and
discussed matters relating to the re-election of Directors,
discussed and approved the overall business strategies,
reviewed and monitored the financial and operation
performance of the Group and approved the annual
budget for the Group. Notice and board papers were
given to all Directors prior to the meetings in accordance
with the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance
Code. A representative of the external auditor attended
the Company’s 2014 annual general meeting to answer
questions from the shareholders on the audit of the
Company.

The attendance record of each Director for the meetings
held during the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out
as follows:
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Attendance/Number of meetings during the year

FREERE E3RH
Audit Remuneration  Nomination Annual
Board Committee = Committee = Committee general
Name of Director meetings meetings meetings meeting meeting
ERZBE HFMWZEE REZEE RREFAE
Bsng Ezeel g3 E g3 E
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Chen Jiangiang (Chairman) BREELE(FE) 4/4 - - - 0/1
Mr. Tao Qingrong WEREE(TTHER) 4/4 - - - 11
(Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Fung Hiu Lai BEREE 0/ - - - n/a
(resigned on 11 March 2014) (20143 B11HEEE)
Mr. Yu Yaoming MERLE 4/4 - - - 0/1
Non-executive Director FYTES
Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, John BRMEE 4/4 - 2/2 17 11
Independent Non-executive BIYFYTES
Directors
Dr. Lin Zhijun MEERT 4/4 3/3 2/2 11 il
Dr. Zhang Weijiong RAEME L 4/4 3/3 2/2 il 0/1
Mr. Wang Shuaiting FREEE n/a n/a 11 n/a n/a
(resigned on 17 January 2014) (20141 B17HERT)
Mr. Cheung Yat Ming RIS LA 4/4 2/2 n/a n/a 0/

(appointed on 11 March 2014) (R2014%3A11BEERT)
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Directors’ commitments

Each Director confirmed that he has given sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2014. All Directors have disclosed
to the Company the number and nature of offices held in
public companies or organizations and other significant
commitments, with the identity of the public companies or
organizations. Each Director is also requested to provide a
confirmation to the Company semi-annually and notify the
Company Secretary in a timely manner of any change of
such information.

Induction, training and continuing development

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive
induction on the first occasion of his appointment so as
to ensure that he has appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Group and that he is fully
aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

Strategy session is organised by the Company for the
Board once a year to discuss and review the long-term
business and corporate strategy of the Group.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills for discharging their duties and
responsibilities as Directors of the Company. All Directors
are required to provide the Company with the records of
the training they received annually. For the year ended 31
December 2014, all Directors have confirmed that they
have attended the training sessions by reading regulatory
updates or attending briefings/seminars/conferences
relevant to the business or directors’ duties.

The Board is provided with monthly management updates
which contain the latest financials and highlight of key
matters of the Group. The management updates gives
a balanced and understandable assessment in sufficient
detail to assess the performance, position and prospects
of the Group.

Directors’ insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover
for the Directors in connection with the discharge of their
responsibleness.
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THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
as its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. Directors are reminded of their obligations
under the Model Code on a regular basis. Specific
confirmation has been obtained from each Director to
confirm compliance with the required standards set out in
the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2014.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment in respect of annual and
interim reports, announcements of inside information and
other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and
other regulatory requirements. The Directors acknowledge
their responsibility for preparing the financial statements of
the Company for each financial period.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of
financial statements, which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group at the end of the financial
year and profit or loss for the financial year. The Directors
have prepared the financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards approved by
the International Accounting Standards Board and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the Listing Rules. The Directors consider
that in preparing the financial statements, the Company
has used appropriate accounting policies, consistently
applied and supported by reasonable and prudent
judgments and estimates, and that all applicable
accounting standards have been followed.

The Directors are not aware of any material or significant
exposures exist, other than as reflected in this report.
The Directors therefore have a reasonable expectation
that the Company has adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The
financial statements are continually prepared on a going
concern basis.
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HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND THE
REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

All the five highest paid individuals of the Group during
the year were the Directors and the senior management
members of the Group. Details of the Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s remuneration and the five highest paid
individuals in the Group are set out in notes 11 and 12
respectively of the financial statements. The remuneration
of the senior management whose profiles are included
in the Directors and Senior Management section of this
report fell within the following bands:

o < &8 &

Remuneration band

EEHFMALTURESRERE
BEAEBHNME

FA AEEREESHFMALZEHRN
EEEENSREEAE - BEERITHAR
MFHEARELRESFTMALOFEH
REBMERMTI1212 - HEE RIS R A H®
SEZREREEABIEH2RREEREA
BOMENFIATHRE :

Number of individuals
A

2014

—E-MF

0 to RMB1,000,000 TEEARE—BET
RMB1,000,001 to
RMB1,500,000

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments are
determined by the Remuneration Committee, with
reference to their duties, responsibilities and performance
and the results of the Group and comparable market
statistics, including the prevailing market rate for
executives of similar position.

The Group’s remuneration policy is primarily based
on duties, performance and length of service of each
individual employee with reference to the prevailing market
conditions.
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RETIREMENT FUND SCHEMES

The Group’s employees in the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement schemes administered and
operated by the relevant PRC municipal governments.
The Group’s relevant PRC subsidiaries contribute funds
to the retirement schemes to fund the retirement benefits
of the employees which are calculated based on certain
percentage of the average employee salary as stipulated
by the local municipal government. Such retirement
schemes are responsible for the entire post-retirement
benefit obligations payable to the retired employees.
The Group has no further obligations for the actual
payment of post-retirement benefits beyond the aforesaid
contributions.

The Group makes contributions to defined contribution
retirement schemes under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance and the Occupational Retirement
Scheme Ordinance in Hong Kong for all employees
in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme are held in
separate trustee administered funds. The pension plans
are generally funded by payments from employees and
by the Group. The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution retirement schemes are expensed as
incurred.

The Group’s contributions to retirement benefit schemes
were charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2014 were RMB58
million. Details of the contribution retirement schemes are
set out in note 10 of the financial statements.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company is published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. There was no change to the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2014.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company
and is appointed by the Board. The Company Secretary
is responsible for facilitating the procedure/activities
of the Board and the Board Committees and good
communication flow among the Board members,
shareholders and senior management. The appointment
and removal of the Company Secretary is subject to Board
approval. The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer and is accountable to the
Board for matters relating to the duties of the Directors,
such as by giving advice on corporate governance
developments. All members of the Board have access to
the advice and service of the Company Secretary.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Ernst & Young were reappointed independent auditor of
the Company at the 2014 annual general meeting. Ernst
& Young has written to the Audit Committee confirming
that they are independent and that there is no relationship
between Ernst & Young and the Company which may
reasonably be thought to bear on their independence. In
order to maintain their independence, Ernst & Young will
not be employed for any non-audit work by the Company
unless the non-audit work meets the criteria suggested in
the Listing Rules and has been pre-approved by the Audit
Committee.

During the year, the total remuneration in respect of
statutory audit services amounted to RMB2.9 million
(2013: RMB2.7 million), of which a sum of RMB2.6 million
(2013: RMB2.5 million) was paid to Ernst & Young. Ernst
& Young has not provided any non-audit work for the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2014,

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect of
the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December
2014 are set out in the section of “Independent Auditor’s
Report” of the report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the maintenance
of sound and effective internal control systems within
the Group. The Board has delegated to management the
implementation of such systems of internal controls as
well as the review of relevant financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management procedures.

The Board has entrusted the Audit Committee with
the responsibility to review the internal control systems
of the Group, which include financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions.
The Group’s internal control system including a defined
management structure with limits of authority is designed
to help the achievement of business objectives, safeguard
assets against unauthorised use or disposal, ensure
the maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use
or for publication, and ensure compliance with relevant
legislation and regulations. Those systems are designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and to manage rather
than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and
achievement of the Group’s objectives.

The Group’s Internal Audit Department and management
conducts reviews of the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control systems. The annual internal audit plan,
which is approved by the Audit Committee, is based on
a risk assessment methodology. The Audit committee
reviews the findings and opinions of Group Internal Audit
and management on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control systems and reports to the Board on such
reviews.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board
through the Audit Committee, have conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the internal control systems of
the Group. In respect of the year ended 31 December
2014, the Board considered the internal control systems
effective and adequate. No significant areas of concern
which might affect shareholders were identified.
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SHAREHOLDER AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company continues to enhance communications
and relationships with its shareholders and investment
community through various channels including annual
general meetings and analysts briefings on the Company’s
annual and interim results. Management attends investor
meetings on a regular basis and has participated in a
number of investor conferences. The Directors and senior
management answer questions raised by the shareholders
and investors on the performance and development of the
Group.

We maintain a corporate website (www.springlandgroup.
com.cn) to keep our shareholders and the public investors
posted of our share price information, latest business
developments, annual and interim results announcements,
financial reports, other announcements, corporate
governance policies and practices, and other relevant
shareholder information.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general
meetings of the Company. Pursuant to the Articles of
Association of the Company, shareholders holding not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company,
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company may call for an extraordinary general meeting
and put forward agenda items by sending a written
request to the Company Secretary at the Company
principal place of business in Hong Kong or head office in
the PRC.

Under Article 85 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, if a shareholder wishes to propose a person
other than a retiring Director for election as a Director
at a general meeting, the shareholder should deposit a
written notice of nomination which shall be given to the
Company within the seven days period commencing the
day after the dispatch of the notice of the meeting (or such
other period as may be determined and announced by
the Directors from time to time) and in no event ending no
later than seven days prior to the date appointed for such
meeting. The procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a director are posted on the website
of the Company.
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The Directors present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
on 21 June 2006. The Group principally engages in the
operation of department stores and supermarkets in the
PRC. There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group’s principal activities during the year. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 42
to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 39(a) to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014 and the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group as at 31 December 2014 are set out on pages 73
to 187 of this report.

During the year, an interim dividend of HK$8 cents per
ordinary share was paid. The Board recommended
the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2014 of HK$9 cents in cash per ordinary share
to the shareholders appeared on the register of members
of the Company as at 29 May 2015. This recommendation
has been incorporated in the financial statements as
a separate allocation within the equity section of the
statement of financial position.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
and of the Company during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 78
of this report and note 39(e) to the financial statements
respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under Cayman lIslands Companies Law, the Company
may pay dividends out of profit or its share premium
account in accordance with the provisions of the Articles
of Association of the Company and provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be able to
pay its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

As of 31 December 2014, the Company’s share premium
available for distribution amounted to RMB1,339 million,
of which RMB174 million has been proposed as a final
dividend for the year. Details of which are set out in note
39(e) in the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 18 to the financial
statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2014
amounted to RMB2,594 million, details of which are set
out in note 33 to the financial statements.

COMMITMENTS

Details of the commitments of the Group are set out in
note 38 to the financial statements.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published financial results and financial
position of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited financial statements, is set out
on page 188. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during 2014 and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Jiangiang (Chairman)

Mr. Tao Qingrong (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Fung Hiu Lai (resigned on 11 March 2014)
Mr. Yu Yaoming

Non-executive Director
Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, John

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Lin Zhijun

Dr. Zhang Weijiong

Mr. Wang Shuaiting (resigned on 17 January 2014)
Mr. Cheung Yat Ming (appointed on 11 March 2014)

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles of Association of
the Company, three of the Directors, namely, Mr. Tao
Qingrong, Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, John and Dr. Zhang
Weijiong shall retire by rotation and being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Mr. Wang Shuaiting resigned as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company and members of the
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Board with effect from 17 January 2014.

Mr. Fung Hiu Lai resigned as an Executive Director of the
Company with effect from 11 March 2014.

Mr. Cheung Yat Ming was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company and member
of the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Board with effect from
11 March 2014.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other matters that
need to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which shall
not be terminated within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2014
were rights to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Directors or their respective spouses or minor children,
or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company or its holding company or subsidiary or a
subsidiary of the Company’s holding company was a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire
such rights through any other corporate entities.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE

At 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in
the shares of the Company notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)
(including interests and short positions which were taken
or deemed to have been taken under such provisions of
the SFO) or the Model Code or which were required to be
entered in the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO were as follows:
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(1)

(2

Long position in the shares of the Company and
its associated corporations

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

(1) *2EREEBIERONETR

Approximate

Number of ordinary shares percentage

EEREE of the issued

Corporate share capital

Name of Director Note interests Total {(HERTRAEMN

EEHZ i EEER a5t BA

Mr. Chen Jiangiang a 1,442,500,000  1,442,500,000 58.62%

BREatk

Note: it

(@) These shares were held by Octopus (China) Holdings (@) % % {7 M Octopus (Ching) Holdings

Limited, in which is wholly owned by Octopus Holdings
Foundation. Mr. Chen as the sole shareholder of
Octopus Holdings Foundation is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Octopus (China)
Holdings Limited. Both Octopus Holdings Foundation
and Octopus (China) Holdings Limited are holding
companies of the Company, each of them is an
associated corporation of the Company under the
SFO.

Short position in the shares of the Company and
its associated corporations

As at 31 December 2014, none of the Directors and
Chief Executive of the Company had any interest or
short position in the shares of the Company or any
of its associated corporations that recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

Limited# & -+ It 2 & AOctopus Holdings
Foundation® & # B  fR 5t & £ AOctopus
Holdings Foundationfy M — %5 - 815 &
#Octopus (China) Holdings Limited$% & &3
19 ¥E B #E 2 - Octopus Holdings Foundation
HMOctopus (China) Holdings Limited3 &7 A
AR AR IRIEFESF LB ERY - e
B ABARQAMEEEE -

(2 FAATAREEEEERONXA

MR2014F12A818 - KRB EENES
T A BB E RN AR B ST B A E
R EEIRIEZSF MK HE3528
BHARNBFENECM AR X
RIEIZ ST A B A S AN D A) KRB R BT Y

BREHA -
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2014, so far as is known to any
Directors and Chief Executive of the Company, the
following persons (other than the Directors or Chief
Executive of the Company, whose interests have been
disclosed in the above section “Interests of Directors
and Chief Executive”) had interests of 5% or more in the
shares of the Company notified to the Company under the
provisions of the Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

1. Long position in the shares of the Company

FTERRER

MARREZERESITHAERTH - $K2014
F12H31H ' IRIEBEF L EEKFIBEXVIE
O2N3H MR T EME ARNT  KIREFHF
M EIE DI E336EMA AR AR E 2 &M
Fracsk TAIAL(EXTEEEREEITERA
BRI ZEHFTIREARNNEEFXZESTHA
BN A KRR RIRDE5%E A R ¢

1. ARATRGHOEFR
Approximate

percentage
of the issued
Number of share capital
Name of shareholders Capacity ordinary shares Notes HERT
RREB 54 EERHA i REAWEDIH
Octopus Holdings Foundation Interest of controlled corporation 1,442,500,000 a 58.62%
REHEE RS
Matthews International Capital Investment manager 176,546,000 b 7.17%
Management, LLC REKE
International Value Advisers, LLC Investment manager 130,676,000 c 5.31%
REKE
Notes: 2t

(@) Octopus (China) Holdings Limited is wholly-owned
by Octopus Holdings Foundation. Mr. Chen as the
sole shareholder of Octopus Holdings Foundation is
deemed to be interested in Shares held by Octopus
(China) Holdings Limited.

(b) These interests are held by Matthews International
Capital Management, LLC in the capacity of
investment manager.

() These interests are held by International Value
Advisers, LLC in the capacity of investment manager.

2. Short position in the shares of the Company
As at 31 December 2014, the Company had not
been notified of any short positions being held by
any substantial shareholder in the shares of the
Company.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 3§

(@) Octopus (China) Holdings Limitedf
Octopus Holdings Foundation® &
A o R % & AOctopus Holdings
Foundation#) M — fx 8 - # % 18 & 7
Octopus (China) Holdings Limited# &
WM R -

(o) #% % # % Jh AMatthews International
Capital Management, LLCIAIR & &£ I8 &
MHEE -

(c) #% S #25Ty Hinternational Value

Advisers, LLCIARELER F R iFH -

2. EAATRGOGIKE
R20145E12A31 8 - AQ T FmERT
MEZRBEFELAQFBRMDAXE -



INTERESTS OF ANY OTHER PERSONS

As at 31 December 2014, the Company had not been
notified of any persons other than the substantial
shareholders who had interests or short positions in
the Shares of the Company, which are required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of Part XV of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, pursuant to the general mandate given to
the Directors of the Company, the Company repurchased
a total of 49,116,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
of the Company on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$147.9 million.
37,196,000 repurchased shares were cancelled during
2014 and the remaining shares were cancelled in January
2015. The number of issued shares of the Company as of
31 December 2014 was 2,460,700,000 shares.

Subsequent to 31 December 2014 and up to the date of
this report, the Company repurchased a total of 8,780,000
shares at an aggregate consideration of approximately
HK$23.7 million. 20,700,000 repurchased shares were
cancelled in January 2015. The number of issued
shares of the Company as of the date of this report is
2,440,000,000.

Details of the share repurchase and other movements in
the share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in note 39(a) to the financial statements.

The repurchases were made for the benefit of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole with a view to
enhancing the earnings per share and net asset value per
share of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities during the year.
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SHARE OPTION

The Company adopted a share option scheme pursuant to
the resolutions of the Company passed on 30 September
2010. The share option scheme will remain in force until
29 September 2020. Since the date of adoption of the
Scheme and up to the date of this report, no options have
been granted under the Scheme by the Company.

COMPETING INTEREST

As at 31 December 2014, none of the Directors or
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries, or their
respective associates had any interests in the businesses,
other than being a director of the Company and/or its
subsidiaries and their respective associates, that compete
or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group as required to be disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under “Connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions” below, no contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company, its holding company or subsidiary or a
subsidiary of the Company’s holding company was a
party and in which a Director or controlling shareholder
or any of its subsidiaries or any company controlled
by a director or controlling shareholder had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year ended
31 December 2014.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into the following
transactions which constituted connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions of the Company as
set out in Chapter 14A to the Listing Rules on the Stock
Exchange.
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(1)

Connected transactions - Disposal of deposit &
financial product

On 15 April 2013, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, Jiangsu Springland
International Holding (Group) Ltd. (“Jiangsu
Springland”) purchased the financial product (the
“Financial Product”) from China Construction Bank
Corporation Wuxi Chengbei Branch for RMB200
million maturing on 17 April 2014. A balance of
RMB180 million remains outstanding under the
Financial Product after maturity in April 2014. In
January 2014, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, Wuxi Xishan Yaohan Lifestyle
Center Co., Ltd. (“Xishan Yaohan”), placed a one
year fixed deposit of RMB100 million with China
Construction Bank Corporation Wuxi Yingbin Branch
with an interest rate equal to 3.25% per annum (the
“Deposit”), payable upon maturity. Management of
the Company made enquiries with the banks as soon
as they became aware of this event. In the course
of enquires with the Bank, it was discovered that a
pledge has been registered on the Deposit.

On 30 April 2014, Jiangsu Springland and Xishan
Yaohan as sellers entered into an agreement with Mr.
Chen Jiangiang (the “Purchaser”), whereby Jiangsu
Springland disposed the Financial Product and
Xishan Yaohan disposed the Deposit for RMB180
million and RMB100 million respectively to Mr.
Chen. The considerations were determined after
considering the costs paid by Jiangsu Springland
for the Financial Product and Xishan Yaohan for the
Deposit. RMB280 million being the aggregate of the
balance of the Financial Product and the face value of
the Deposit, all in cash, were agreed to be paid on/
before 31 December 2014. On the completion of the
agreement, Jiangsu Springland and Xishan Yaohan
immediately recovered the balance of the Financial
Product and the Deposit at cost respectively to
prevent possible losses and the incurrence of further
time and costs by the Group and its shareholders.
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(2) Continuing connected transactions — Extension
of payment term of outstanding consideration
arrangement
On 16 December 2014, Jiangsu Springland, Xishan
Yaohan and Mr. Chen entered into the supplemental
agreement and extended the payment date for the
RMB182 million to 31 December 2016. The amount
was the outstanding consideration due from Mr. Chen
from the Agreement for the disposal of the Financial
Product and the Deposit by Jiangsu Springland and
Xishan Yaohan respectively . Starting from 1 January
2015, an interest with 3.5% per annum is charged on
the amount due from Mr. Chen.

The Purchaser, Mr. Chen, the Chairman and the
controlling shareholder of the Company, is a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the entering into of the Agreement by Jiangsu
Springland and Xishan Yaohan with Mr. Chen for the
disposal of the Financial Product and the Deposit and
extension of payment term of outstanding consideration
arrangement constituted connected transactions of
the Company under the Listing Rules. Details of the
transactions have been set out in the announcements
dated 2 May 2014 and 16 December 2014 issued by the
Company.

Views of the auditors and independent non-executive
Directors

The auditors of the Company have provided a letter to
the Board pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules
confirming that, for the year ended 31 December 2014,
the continuing connected transaction (i) has received
the approval of the Board; (i) has been entered into in
accordance with the terms of the agreements governing
the transaction; and (iii) has not exceeded the cap
disclosed in the relevant announcements made by
the Company in relation in the continuing connected
transaction.
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Independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that
the above continuing connected transaction has been
entered into by the Group in the ordinary and usual course
of its business, either on normal commercial terms or
on terms no less favorable to the Company than terms
available to or from (as appropriate) independent third
parties, and in accordance with the terms of the relevant
agreement governing the above continuing connected
transaction that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group was entered into or existed during
the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance through its continuous effort in
improving its corporate governance practices. Information
on the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 40 to 58.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2014, none of the
Group’s customers or suppliers accounted for more than
5% of the Group’s revenue or purchases. None of the
Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the five largest customers or five
largest suppliers of the Group.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to RMB2.8 million.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association of the Company, or the laws of
the Cayman Islands pursuant to which the Company shall
be obliged to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to the
existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital is
held by the public at the date of this report.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation
available to shareholders by reason of their holding of the
shares.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of the significant events after the reporting period
of the Group are set out in note 46 to the financial
statements.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by
Ernst & Young. Ernst & Young will retire as the Company’s
auditor and a resolution for their re-appointment as the
Company’s auditor will be proposed at the Company’s
forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Springland International Holdings Limited
Chen Jiangiang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Ernst & Young

EY =x

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Springland International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 73 to 187, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at
31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

B % BAE RS

ZXKETHRI ST Tel BEE : +852 2846 9888
EBPRAZEIR Fax {8 E : +852 2868 4432
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18 M % BLED R

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2014,
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

16 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Year ended 31 December 2014

REVENUE
Other income and gains

Purchase of and changes
in inventories
Staff costs
Depreciation and amortisation
Rental expenses
Other expenses
Finance costs
Share of loss of
a joint venture

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax expense

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY

EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE PARENT

Basic and diluted (RMB)
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Details of dividends payable and proposed for the year are
disclosed in note 15 to these financial statements.

Notes

iog=3

22

10

13

14

16

HE2014F12A31BILFE
2014 2013
—E-nmEF —EF-=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AREBT R ARETIT
4,276,284 4,161,600
721,171 708,795
(2,439,392) (2,310,047)
(582,732) (573,236)
(332,814) (317,375)
(98,196) (80,842)
(525,427) (494,124)
(49,201) (55,998)
(49,426) (3,658)
920,267 1,035,115
(274,696) (298,542)
645,571 736,573
634,065 730,356
11,506 6,217
645,571 736,573
0.26 0.29
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SEZEHRER

Year ended 31 December 2014

HZE2014F12 A31HLLFE
2014 2013
—E-MF —T—=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’ 000
k=3 AR TR ARET T
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEEEFR 645,571 736,573
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hi 2 mH W
INCOME
Other comprehensive income g Rl ES 5
to be reclassified to profit or loss 18 7 B9 A
in subsequent periods: ZEH Y am
Available-for-sale investments: AHHERE
Changes in fair value NFEED 33,092 17,039
Reclassification adjustments REWERFED
for gains included in the HAREER
consolidated statement of —REWEa
profit or loss — gain on disposal (31,300) -
Income tax effect EHAXTE (448) (4,260)
1,344 12,779
Exchange differences on BREBINEBEE
translation of foreign operations RIPE X =58 (2,174) 22,064
Net other comprehensive income BT ES8BA
to be reclassified to profit or loss B E A
in subsequent periods WS EE (830) 34,843
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE FEHM2EKES
INCOME FOR THE YEAR, B&FEE
NET OF TAX (830) 34,843
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FEXEWNGEERE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 644,741 771,416
Attributable to: AR & I8 FE 1l
Owners of the parent BRBHEA A 14 633,235 765,199
Non-controlling interests JEIERE B = 11,506 6,217
644,741 771,416
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid land premiums

Other intangible assets

Goodwill

Investment in a joint venture

Investment in an associate

Available-for-sale investments

Long-term prepayments

Deferred tax assets

Restricted cash

Long-term time deposits at banks

Due from the Controlling
Shareholder

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Trade receivables
Prepayments, deposits

and other receivables
Derivative financial instruments
Available-for-sale investments
Structured deposits
Restricted cash
Cash and cash equivalents

Assets of a disposal group
classified as held for sale

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short-term financing notes
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Trade and bills payables

Other payables and accruals
Tax payable

Liabilities directly associated
with the assets classified
as held for sale

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

FRBEE
AL HES
,ﬁ\ﬁﬂﬁﬂéﬁé

BT IR E E
XRE®ES
FR|ITORBEHRFR
JRE 5 22 St s 3R SR TR

FEREEEARE
REBEE
&

W B 5 kA
BRZE - RER
H fh [ 4R R IB

PTESRIT A
AHEERE
MR
TREEES
BERBLEEY

BN
BE

i
I
I e

?Lﬁ/%

&1
AR
BE

\W
[ l
m}

//Ih

REEE

S HRE &

At BRITER

BN EZRAMENRIE
Hi RN REREFER
e B IR

REBAEEFHE
REERRBAEE

Notes

K1t

18
19
20

22
23
24
25
26

31

41

27
28

29
36
24
30

31

40

32
33
34
35

40

e M BARR R

31 December 2014

201445124318

2014 2013
—E-NE —ET—=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR TR ARET T
6,448,638 6,131,606
872,334 899,433
38,349 41,412
181,494 206,494
237,851 257,277
45,166 45,166
110 146,244
614,924 181,725
54,197 49,546
227,580 154,445
162,304 121,460
182,000 =
9,064,947 8,234,808
323,055 383,383
12,164 13,026
237,630 283,225
389 =

- 14,000
115,000 1,887,000
- 400,000
1,822,664 891,923
2,510,902 3,872,557
26,400 24,738
2,537,302 3,897,295
- 930,353
299,887 941,268
1,118,740 1,162,799
1,827,705 2,228,790
78,941 78,102
3,325,273 5,341,312
4,769 3,107
3,330,042 5,344,419
(792,740) (1,447,124)
8,272,207 6,787,684
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e M BRI R

31 December 2014

201412 A31H
2014 2013
—E-F —T—=4F
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
iaE ARBTx ARETIT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings T EIRITER 33 2,294,332 992,212
Long-term payables KEJFE N FRIB 37 314,895 300,329
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBAE 26 465,757 469,259
Total non-current liabilities ERFEEER 3,074,984 1,761,800
Net assets BEFE 5,197,223 5,025,884
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners BARERA
of the parent FE 1 R &=
Issued capital B BITRA 39(a) 21,249 21,572
Treasury shares JERC 39(a) (102) -
Reserves & 4,789,015 4,607,365
Proposed final dividend BEREE RE R B2 15 174,244 167,235
4,984,406 4,796,172
Non-controlling interests FERER 212,817 229,712
Total equity 7 HAFE 5,197,223 5,025,884
Chen Jiangiang Tao Qingrong
BR 22 5 P B 4
Director Director
o EBZE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2014

EZE2014F12A31HLEFE
Attrioutable to owners of the parent
BRTREARR
Avalable-
for-sae
nvestment Exchange Proposed
revaluation ~ Statutory fluctuation final Non-
ssued  Treasury Shere Contrbuted ~ Capitl  reseve  suplus Discrefionary  resene  Refaned  cividend controing Tota
il shaes  pemim  supls  resene AERE  resene resene Ef g RIER Toid  eests  equiy
BRRA  EGR  RREE REER EABEREBGEE iviEe BRBE  GBEE  RERR  AER: g FERER  EegE
Notes RMB'OO0  RVB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'OO0  RWB'000  RMBIOO0  RMB'0O0  RMBIOO0  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000
it ABETT ARETT ARETT ARETn ARETT ARETn ARETn ARETT ARETR ARETr ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Note 39(g) ~ Note 393 Note 39(b) Note 39c) ~ Note 39(0)
hasy Ky Hisqn Ky KEsy
At1 January 2013 RO1SE1A1A 21589 - 1983792 (151 1520 (14128 464402 33,710 (2418 1771804 242589 4478307 232230 4710636
Proft for the year EREH @ = = = = = = = - 730356 - 730356 6217 136573
Otter comprefiensieincome.~~ EEA{RE
fortheyear: g8
Chenges i fair value of THERE
avaleble forsle LTERS:
nvestments, net o tax HkFE - - - - -m - - - - - 1M -
Exchange iferences on EAzHH
transaion of foeign EiZE
operations - - - - - - - - 2,064 - - 20 - 20
Totd comprenensie income. - FR2ENBSE
for eyt - - - - - um - I - T 6a T
Re-tecogniton of on-conrollng - EZAEERER
inerests reated fothe FiRERNERD
put options = o = - - - - - - - - - 200 210
Agpropration {0 statuory EREERLES
Surplus reserve - - - - - - 145040 - - (1d5040) - - - -
Dividends paid to non-controling 1§ P EBRE
shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - - 829 62
Final 2012 dividend declared BRENNERSRE - - - - - - - - - - (40589 (242589 - (2589
et 2013 didend NYERERE 1 - - %) - - - - - - - - (ieE) - (ieE)
Poposed i 013 diend EEBANERERS 15 : - (o2 - - - - - - - 12 - : :
Repuchase and cancelaton ~~ FfAMEBTITH
of shares 3 {1 - (6,485 - - - - - - - - 6,502) - 6502)
Derecognion of on-confroling £ HERHAL
eresisand recognitonof ~~~ EAREK LI
the ciference between the HERERED R
derscognised non-cortoling  EEERHRER
interests and the fiabifty
of the put options - - - - ur - - - - - - a7 angeg (221,119
131 Deceer 2013 HAOMSE AN 257 SOASNA{S O (A BRMr  RID 9B O%IA0 2% AR 29T SMAAM
SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED £ i B B2 4225 A5 R A &)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REREZBER

Year ended 31 December 2014

78

HZE2014F12 A31HLLFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
ROEE LIV
Available-
for-sale
investment Exchange Proposed
revaluation  Statutory fluctuation final Non-
Issued ~ Treasury Share Confributed ~ Capital ~ reserve  surplus Discretionary ~reserve  Retained  dividend controlling Total
capitel ~ shares  premium  suplus  resee  WHEE  resene  resene EX  eamings 3ic Total  interests equity
BRfkA  ERR  KBEE RERY  EAUE REEMBR fE0EE BEEE MERE  RERE  RERR &t EREZ  BEEE
Notes RMBO0  RMB'0OO  RMB'OO0  RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'O0  RMB'OO0  RMB'OO0  RMB'0O0  RMB'00  RMB'O00  RMB'0O0  RMBOO0  RMB'000
.3 AE®Tn ARMTR ARBTL ARMTn ARMTR ABRTn ARETr ARETR ARRTn ARMTZ ABMTn ARETn ARMTR ARRBTR
Note 39(6) ~ Note 392 Note 39(0) Note 39(c) ~ Note 39(d)
hzny iy Hizsl) fidne  FiEng
A1 Jenuay 2014 ROMEIRIR 2m S [1519 [IOTY)  (MY oM B0 1064 200 16T 4TI 2T 502588
Prft for the year EgH - - - - - - - - 63065 - 005 11506 6455M
Otter comprehenshieincome. SRR
forthe year: a8
Changes i far valte of THHERE
avltle forsdle ATRES
investmens, nef of tax BhFE - - - 134 - - - - - 134 - 134
Exchangs diferences on ik
ransaion of foreign Epze
operafions - - - - - - - - AL - - 2174 - 2174
Tote comprehensive income LT ]
forthe year - - - - - 1,344 - - (2174 634,065 - 6% 1506 644741
Re-ecogriion of non-conrollng. 525§ T
intress eted o the FhEanEED
ut options - - - - - - - - - - - 21566 221,566
Acaistion of non-ontroling WEknhER - - - - () - - - - - - (4% (66 (r.206)
Interests
Appropration fo stautory HATHE RS
Surplus resenve - - - - 115 - - (11159) - - - -
Diidends pald o non-contoling AR E P ERBE
shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - - 629 (62
Fal 03 dvidend declred  REEDNBERERS - - k) - - - - = - - (67285 (166880) - (16688)
It 2014 didend AHEDERSE 3 o - [t s 2 2 - 2 - - (e - (e
Proposed fnel 2014 dividend SEROUERERE 15 - - (i - - - - - - - iU - - -
Repurchase and shares el ) - (5 (116722 - - - - - - - - (i) - (i)
Concelation of reasuryshares ~ 5ERR N (33 ki) - - - - - - - - - - - -
Derecogniton of non-controling Rt
inerests and recogniion of
the diference between the
dercogrisednoncontolng— (FRERAED
intrests and the bty
ofthe put options - - - %1 - - - - - - 61 (205408  (225,047)
At 31 December 2014 RO14ERANA 0249 (102 1fe4dot  (1512" (577 SOTH0 B0 74T 2810604 174244 4984406 212817 5107228
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves * EBEERAKNGAVBRRIEANES

of RMB4,789,015,000 (2013: RMB4,607,365,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating
activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Amortisation of prepaid
land premiums

Amortisation of other
intangible assets

Loss on disposal of items

of property, plant and equipment
Foreign exchange differences
Gains on disposal of unquoted

current investments stated
at cost

Fair value gains, net:
Available-for-sale listed

investments (transfer from

equity on disposal)
Derivative instruments

— transactions not qualifying

as hedges

Dividend income from available-

for-sale listed investments
Finance costs
Impairment of goodwill

Share of losses of a joint venture

Interest income

Provision/(write-back of provision)
for slow-moving inventories

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in trade
receivables, prepayments,

deposits and other receivables
(Increase)/decrease in long-term

prepayments

(Decrease)/increase in trade and

bills payables,other payables
and accruals
Increase in long-term payables

Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid

Net cash flows from operating

activities

REXBFRBRERE

B A5 B i A

LTS REHAE
e
FEAT L3 R 8

H At B B

REWX - BB
SEEEEEES

P EER

BREEKAGENIELD
R B W

AT BT
AL E FIRE
CSTTITIN

TEEBTA
—TRFE
2R 5
KERHEHE LHREMN
BB A
7l & B A
[k R
DEAEEEERE
2B A
(BeEEm)
HHEERE

B D,/ (E )
LR 5 308 -
W8 - RS RE
IR D,/ (50)
F AT 1 308
() /D
BB 8 5 3B R B
H At 8 30 BT 2
() /i
£ S/ 14 7 E 2 10

REMBEE
B AEH

REXBRETRNFE

10

10

10

10

10

10

21
10

10

GEHETRER

Year ended 31 December 2014

HE2014F12A31BILFE
2014 2013
—E-NEF —E2—=
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®B TR AREFIT
920,267 1,035,115
318,062 302,326
11,689 11,987
3,063 3,062
9,240 10,185
13,448 (26,592)
(1,736) (1,672)
(31,300) =
(607) (755)
(3,301) (1,894)
49,201 55,998
25,000 =
49,426 3,658
(127,919) (122,718)
718 (1,299)
1,235,251 1,267,401
59,610 (67,932)
25,306 (622)
(4,478) 18,453
(332,175) 80,884
10,985 9,285
994,499 1,307,469
(282,458) (304,057)
712,041 1,003,412
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

Year ended 31 December 2014

80

HZE2014F12 A31HLLFE
2014 2013
—E—EF —ET—=
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR T ARBT T
Cash flows from investing RETEHFBEERE
activities
Proceeds from disposal of assets HECDKRIEKELEBKHER
of a disposal group classified as BEFEEEZMSRIE
held for sale - 6,530
Interest received B WHLE 135,091 97,267
Gains on disposal of unquoted RERKAGTERNIE LT
current investments stated at cost %8 B B Y %5 1,736 1,672
Dividends received from I ER A it H S IR E IR E
available-for-sale investments 3,301 1,894
Dividends received from IWEE & ERE
a joint venture - 4,815
Purchases of items of property, BEYE  BWENEE
plant and equipment (809,293) (689,387)
Proceeds from disposal of items HEME - BENMEE
of property, plant and equipment Fr18 5038 1,443 4,601
Government grant related to EEMN I ES 1,748 =
prepaid land premiums B 748 B BT B X
Payments of prepaid land premiums X & it HES (322,013) (34,429)
Purchases of available-for-sale BEAHEE EMRE
listed investments - (20,521)
Proceeds paid for acquisition of ST U RE B A B FUE - (45,166)
an associate
Proceeds paid for acquisition of SRR NGB (4,599) (46,534)
a subsidiary
Acquisition of a subsidiary I B B B A A - 6,789
Prepayment for acquisition TE 15 Uk B B B
of a subsidiary NI/ Q| (20,000) =
Increase in loan to a joint venture ERTEEDERIEE N (30,000) =
Proceeds from disposal of BREAMHEE LT
available-for-sale listed RE S KIA
investments 179,226 81
Decrease/(Increase) in the unquoted % Ak 7 51 1& & IE 5 45 Hf
current investments stated at cost &K A (E ) 14,000 (14,000)
Increase in amounts due JE U4 AR I BR R TR 3 A0 (182,000) =
from the Controlling Shareholder
Decrease/(Increase) in structured BT R (38 0)
deposits 1,772,000 (1,177,000)
Decrease/(Increase) in restricted XREEESHRLD (M)
cash 330,000 (550,000)
Increase in ime deposits TE 17 538 a0 (92,270) (57,464)
Net cash flows from/(used in) BRETEHFRES(FRA)BELRE
investing activities FE 978,370 (2,510,852)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

Year ended 31 December 2014

Cash flows from financing
activities

Repayment of bank borrowings

New bank borrowings

Increase in amount due to
an associate

Acquisition of non-controlling
interests

Repurchase of the Company’s
shares

Proceeds from issuance of
short-term financing notes

Repayment of principal and
interest of the short-term
financing notes

Dividends paid

Dividends paid to non-controlling
shareholders

Interest paid

Net cash flows (used in)/from
financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in
cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes, net

Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year

Analysis of balances of cash
and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances

Non-pledged time deposits
with original maturity of less than
three months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as
stated in the statement
of cash flows

HE2014F12A31BILFE
2014 2013
—E-UF —_F—=
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
KiaF ARET R AREFIT
METEFMEBRERE
ERIBITIER (2,622,686) (1,748,140)
FiERITER 3,251,391 2,287,116
& Bk & 2 R AR E 14,795 -
W I I
(20,216) =
e A KRE
(117,147) (6,502)
BITRHRE S - 896,400
EEEERESLAE
K F B
(941,310) =
BT E (323,052) (441,369)
B I Hxﬂx%ﬂxg
(8,298) (8,298)
EATFE (66,777) (51,081)
BEEE (FTH) i
HEREBTFE (833,300) 928,126
HeERBESEEY
#imn, GRd) FEEE 857,111 (579,314)
FNHRSRBEEEEY
441,623 1,026,477
SNEE RSB E - FEE
11,360 (5,540)
FRESRBRESEEY
1,310,094 441,623
RERBSEEBYERD I
B e MIRTTHE 31 534,881 436,361
BARRR=EARKZ
B A9 £ 4K 30 T HAAE K
775,213 5,262
REERERITHES
FEESEEY
1,310,094 441,623
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B 75 AR 5 3R

31 December 2014
2014412 A31H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Interests in subsidiaries

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets
Net assets

EQUITY

Issued capital

Tresaury shares
Reserves

Proposed final dividend

Total equity

Chen Jiangiang
BREE &

Director

EZ

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 3§

Notes
iaE
kRBEE
KB AR R 42
EREEEBLT
RBEE
FENRIE - e
N E b e W 58 29
ReEkFESEEY 31
MEEEHEEE
FEE
s
BEITRA 39(a)
JERER 39(a)
15 39(e)
¥k B R EARR B 15
E = 4B RE

Tao Qingrong
P B &

Director

EF

2014 2013
—EB-mF —EF-=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARB T ARETT
1,028,123 1,467,881
1,028,123 1,467,881

228 227

29,443 25,568

29,671 25,795
1,057,794 1,493,676

21,249 21,572

(102) -

862,403 1,304,869
174,244 167,235
1,057,794 1,493,676




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Springland International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman lIslands
on 21 June 2006 under the Companies Law, Cap.22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands. The registered office address
of the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The Company was listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 21
October 2010.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the operation of department stores and supermarkets
in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company (the “Directors”), the ultimate
holding company of the Group is Octopus Holdings
Foundation, a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”), which comprise standards
and interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”), and
International Accounting Standards and Standing
Interpretations Committee interpretations approved
by the International Accounting Standards Committee
that remain in effect. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance relating
to the preparation of financial statements, which
for this financial year and the comparative period
continue to be those of the predecessor Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with transitional
and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts
and Audit”, which are set out in sections 76 to 87
of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. The financial
statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for some investments and
derivative financial instruments which have been
measured at fair value. Non-current assets and
disposal groups held for sale are stated at the lower
of their carrying amounts and fair values less costs to
sell as further explained in note 2.4. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

2.1

B 75 ¥ 2= B RE

Year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A1BLLFE

ATEH

EWBEBRERBER QA (TAQE]D B
20066 H21ERIEREFHE R FES
228 (1961F A PI3 @ iz & RIEF])
EREHEAMKLAEREERA
A) o AN X 7] 5% it #% = E i U ACricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands ° A2 A H2010F 10821 BEE
BE R BRARER LT -

KRB RENRBAR (ABIAER])
i%ﬁé*ﬁqiﬂz&?% EE&ﬁ_m"
ARAERE(EX])RAR ~5HE
Y B 4% 1% HQ’A Gl Z%Octopus Holdings
Foundation * —fE R i € S M Az
BN A] o

mREE
Ut BB 15 MR TR B E I R R B
eRM 2 AR BREER (RERRE

AAEMZEERMOER R BRE) &E
ReastERRE8 gt ELDAFTRNE

et LR EREREMRE - ZEH
BWER I BB BCR ARSI B B #m B

MBRERAERRE REINEFE(RE]
B (BB EDIF622F ) HR11E76%
B7TIRIRX N B R FORE AR B R &EAt] /Y
BEERREBELZHRNRTE  ZFHHR
RN B K L B A R A AR AR AR A
NENEDI (BAREDISE32F) KR IE i 1F
HEE) - BRHORERTESRTAR
RAXFEZEAIN  APBHRRRIE
BLRAANLRE - ERBHEERD KL
REXBHREFEEEREREERT
MHER AN ERO RN FEREESR
— SR IKIFE2.4 - KB ERERIAA
R&Z27 MABEHACZRERESD
TRFRIEZBER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥R AR Y 5

Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31HILEFE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2014. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control described in the accounting policy for
subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group losses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (i) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required
if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %% i a MY =

Year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A1BLLFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following revised
standards and new interpretation for the first time for
the current year’s financial statements.

222 HERBENEE

AEBEDRAFEZHMBHRRP BIREK
AT IIRIERTER KRR o

Amendments to IFRS 10, BREREREEBEI0R . KEEE

Investment Entities

IFRS 12 and IAS 27
(Revised)
Amendments to IAS 32

Liabilities (&E3T)
Amendments to IAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for B e ER £36% HFELBEETH
Non-Financial Assets (&537) TERE
Amendments to IAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation B & =1 B 5305 PTHTRZEERH
of Hedge Accounting (& 1B3T) i HEE
IFRIC 21 Levies PR e A HE
REZEEFANT
Amendment to IFRS 2 Definition of Vesting Condition’ ERUBREENES,  FEFANEE
included in Annual (BE3T) B 2R2010%F
Improvements E01FEM FEYE
2010-2012 Cycle BERMBEREEAENR  ERAHZANYE
Amendment to IFRS 3 Accounting for Contingent Consideration (BE3T) BER2010F 2 G
included in Annual in a Business Combination’ 201268 R H EE M
Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle EIRMBRERAEIR,  RAEUAERENFE

Amendment to IFRS 13

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial

Short-term Receivables and Payables

F12% R BB 2 &R
F27H (153T)
B e EAE30%

(&{E3T) B 220106

BEEBEENLHRRE

included in Annual ZN1FEH FELE
Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle BB B RS ERE15R FRERGBTEES

Amendment to IFRS 1
included in Annual
Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

Meaning of Effective IFRSs

Lk
(BERT) BER01E
ZN1FRA FEY#E

ZB%

' Effective from 1 July 2014 T R20144F7 A1 H LR

RAMEN] MR BERE @S %
AP HRRLBEATE -

The adoption of the revised IFRSs has had no
significant financial effect on these financial
statements.
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31HILEFE

2.3NEW AND REVISED IFRSs AND
NEW DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT YET
ADOPTED

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments*
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and IAS 28 (Revised) an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture?
Amendments to IFRS 10, Investment Entries: Applying the
IFRS 12 and IAS 28 (Revised)  Consolidation Expection?
Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations?
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers®
Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative®
Amendments to IAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods
and IAS 38 of Depreciation and Amortisation?
Amendments to IAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants?
and IAS 41
Amendments to IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions'

Amendments to IAS 27 (Revised) Equity Method in Separate Financial

Statements?
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of IFRSs'
2010-2012 Cycle
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of IFRSs'
011-2013 Cycle
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of IFRSs?
2012-2014 Cycle

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2014
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016
S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018
3 Effective for an entity that first adopts IFRSs for its
annual financial statements beginning on or after 1
January 2016 and therefore is not applicable to the

Group

86 ANNUAL REPORT 2014 3§

2.3 5 AR BR AN HT 1 R ARAE ET R B BR

MBEREERRFTENE R
(RAFRP) 2 WBERE

AEBRZEMBRRLRKKATIE
PELR 4B il R A R T AT B AR B AT B R B

B g -

BIR S5 R e B B8

BIIRBT R £ A1 510, -

£28% (15(877)

B R B RS ER 108

125 - £263% (K E3T)
ERAHEEEAER
(&&30)

BRAHREEAE 143
Bt B R B 1058

B & B RIR 5% (B RT)

BB & 5HER F16% -
F385% (L)
BlIS 25 ER|Z16%, -
FNHR(ZEFT)
Bl 2 FHER £10%;

(WI*ET)

Bl & 5HER 2075
(201 ) ()
2010E 220126847

FEL#
2011EZ2013F 842
FEL#
2012 200145857
FELE

2RIA
RETERBERARAE
PEZAREHE
HRELE?

REERE  AHERZ I

WEHERSER &5

EERLEE
EPEHHHAS
FgRE"
MEAMBHTER
E/im/ /ﬁ
BE FEEy?

RERHHE  BEH

BB Rz eSS

ATARABELRN
ok

STARHBREEN
ok

ATARHBREEN
i

1 R2014F7 A1 Ak 2 A FEMFERE

34

2 R20165F1 A1 Ak 2 & RBRIFERE

34

¢ R2017F1 A1 B 2 R FER ) FE HfE

EX

4 R2018F1 A1Ak 2 A FEMFEERE

34

S #2016 1 A1 A R IR FE R
BRERXROBERSBREEN 2 ER
AR Rt R R TN E



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3NEW AND REVISED IFRSs AND

NEW DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT YET
ADOPTED (CONTINUED)

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) will affect the presentation and disclosure
of certain information in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ending 31 December 2015.
The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of these changes.

Further information about those IFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of
IFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace IAS 39 and all previous
versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group
expects to adopt IFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. The
Group expects that the adoption of IFRS 9 will have
an impact on the classification and measurement
of the Group’s financial assets. Further information
about the impact will be available nearer the
implementation date of the standard.

The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (Revised)
address an inconsistency between the requirements
in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 (Revised) in dealing with the
sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the
sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do
not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture.
The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
The Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1
January 2016.

B 7% ¥R 2R Y 5

Year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A1BLLFE

2.3 [ AR BR 40 HT 1 K% A4S BT BV B B

MBEREERRFTENE R
(RAMFRA) 2 BB E (&)

BEAN + BAECR BHED) (B %51 5E622
Z)BEERE2015F12A31B IEFE
REMBEHREAGTERNZEY R
B AEBEARTHZSEINTE -

BRBHSERARARE 2% FERY
BHREENE—FERET :

2014F7H - EIR st R Z B 2R M
BB B IS R R B R AR A © 5%
MTEEEMATARBER —RBURE
R e SR 53058 DA R B BT IS s
AERIF S 2 EBRATARA © % 2R3 A
DERFTE RS RIENT
HE - AEBETEHB2018F1 A1 B
MBS B A 3R 5 2ERI 5 05% « WS EI A&
EemEEN D ERTEELETE -8
M 2rE—SERBREIZENRN
Eie AR ES o

REA G IRE R E105R R BR &5
RIIZE285% (K18E]) 2 182K » &1 BIFR BF
EREERE105% REBR S ER %28
SR(EER) NEBEREEEEBE RS
ENRZEMEENERITEMERT
MR —HHE - ZEBTRTE EREER
HEBERAL AR ZENEEH SN
SEEENK—BELE  BRERE2HEHZK
HHEB - ERXZHRTER—HER
MWEER AZRXHEEMRISHER
RZTEENBERNER  EEATE
BIREER AL LA ERRINERA
ReZEBINEBER - AEEEHE
201651 A1 H B M ZEEE] °

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  #th BB 12 i A fR A &

87



88

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31HILEFE

2.3NEW AND REVISED IFRSs AND 2.3 18 AR BR AN 7 18 &2 L& 5T BV B R

NEW DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT YET
ADOPTED (CONTINUED)

The amendments to IFRS 11 require that an acquirer
of an interest in a joint operation in which the
activity of the joint operation constitutes a business
must apply the relevant principles for business
combinations in IFRS 3. The amendments also clarify
that a previously held interest in a joint operation is
not remeasured on the acquisition of an additional
interest in the same joint operation while joint control
is retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has been
added to IFRS 11 to specify that the amendments
do not apply when the parties sharing joint control,
including the reporting entity, are under common
control of the same ultimate controlling party. The
amendments apply to both the acquisition of the
initial interest in a joint operation and the acquisition
of any additional interests in the same joint operation.
The amendments are not expected to have any
impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group upon adoption on 1 January 2016.

IFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that
will apply to revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised
at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring goods or services to a customer.
The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognising revenue.
The standard also introduces extensive qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods
and key judgements and estimates. The standard
will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under IFRSs. The Group expects to
adopt IFRS 15 on 1 January 2017 and is currently
assessing the impact of IFRS 15 upon adoption.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3NEW AND REVISED IFRSs AND

NEW DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT YET
ADOPTED (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 clarify the
principle in IAS 16 and IAS 38 that revenue reflects
a pattern of economic benefits that are generated
from operating business (of which the asset is
part) rather than the economic benefits that are
consumed through the use of the asset. As a
result, a revenue-based method cannot be used
to depreciate property, plant and equipment and
may only be used in very limited circumstances to
amortise intangible assets. The amendments are to
be applied prospectively. The amendments are not
expected to have any impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group upon adoption on 1
January 2016 as the Group has not used a revenue-
based method for the calculation of depreciation of
its non-current assets.

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
issued in December 2013 sets out amendments to a
number of IFRSs. Except for those described in note
2.2, the Group expects to adopt the amendments
from 1 January 2015. None of the amendments are
expected to have a significant financial impact on the
Group. Details of the amendment most applicable to
the Group are as follows:

IFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that an entity
must disclose the judgements made by management
in applying the aggregation criteria in IFRS 8,
including a brief description of operating segments
that have been aggregated and the economic
characteristics used to assess whether the segments
are similar. The amendments also clarify that a
reconciliation of segment assets to total assets is
only required to be disclosed if the reconciliation is
reported to the chief operating decision maker.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s statement of profit or loss to the extent
of dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
investments in subsidiaries that are not classified as
held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity, in which the Group has
a long term interest of generally not less than 20%
of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a
position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

The Group’s investments in associates and joint
ventures are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results
and other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the
Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s investments in the associates or joint
ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates
or joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s
investments in associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate or joint control
over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the
retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 5.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition—-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified
as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument
and within the scope of IAS 39 is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value either recognised in
profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive
income. If the contingent consideration is not within
the scope of IAS 39, it is measured in accordance
with the appropriate IFRSs. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and
any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill
relates. Where the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units)
is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss
is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a
cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) and part of the operation within that unit
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain
or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial
instruments and equity investments at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair
value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best
interest.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and
best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, financial assets and non-
current assets/a disposal group classified as held for
sale), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent
with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(i

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost (or
valuation) less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. When an item of property, plant
and equipment is classified as held for sale or when
it is part of a disposal group classified as held for
sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 5, as further explained in
the accounting policy for “Non-current assets and
disposal groups held for sale”. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Land and buildings
Renovation and leasehold

20 to 40 years
2 to 10 years

improvements
Machinery 10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Furniture and office equipment 3 to 5 years
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment
including any significant part initially recognised
is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building
under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed
funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for
sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally through a sales transaction
rather than through continuing use. For this to be the
case, the asset or disposal group must be available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject
only to terms that are usual and customary for the
sale of such assets or disposal groups and its sale
must be highly probable. All assets and liabilities
of a subsidiary classified as a disposal group are
reclassified as held for sale regardless of whether the
Group retains a non-controlling interest in its former
subsidiary after the sale.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for
sale (continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than
investment properties and financial assets) classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell.
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
classified as held for sale are not depreciated or
amortised.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the fair
value as at the date of acquisition. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Lease agreement buyouts

The lease agreement buyouts represented the
Group’s payments to old tenants to buy out their
lease agreements. The lease agreement buyouts are
stated at cost less any impairment losses and are
amortised on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms of 10 to 19 years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards
and risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other
than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases.
At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the
leased asset is capitalised at the present value of
the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under
capitalised finance leases, are included in property,
plant and equipment, and depreciated over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases
are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as
to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the
lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases,
but are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group
is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets,
and rentals receivable under the operating leases
are credited to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases net of any incentives received from the lessor
are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land premiums under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the entire
lease payments are included in the cost of the land
and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant
and equipment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments, as appropriate. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value plus transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the
case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments as defined by IAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are carried in the statement of financial position
at fair value with positive net changes in fair value
presented as other income and gains and negative
net changes in fair value presented as finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss. These net
fair value changes do not include any dividends or
interest earned on these financial assets, which are
recognised in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at
the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in
IAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are
accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded
at fair value if their economic characteristics and
risks are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not held for
trading or designated as at fair value through profit
or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. Reassessment only
occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the
contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a
financial asset out of the fair value through profit or
loss category.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains in
the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in finance costs for loans and in other expenses
for receivables.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments
Available-for-sale financial investments are
non-derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted
equity investments and debt securities. Equity
investments classified as available for sale are those
which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.
Debt securities in this category are those which are
intended to be held for an indefinite period of time
and which may be sold in response to needs for
liquidity or in response to changes in the market
conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
other income, or until the investment is determined
to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or
loss in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends
earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss as other income in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the
variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant for that investment or (b)
the probabilities of the various estimates within the
range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such investments are stated at
cost less any impairment losses.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)
The Group evaluates whether the ability and
intention to sell its available-for-sale financial assets
in the near term are still appropriate. When, in rare
circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group
may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the
assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the
available-for-sale category, the fair value carrying
amount at the date of reclassification becomes its
new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss
on that asset that has been recognised in equity is
amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of
the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the
maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining
life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If
the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired,
then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to
the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to
what extent it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset
and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset have an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses whether impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment
and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not yet been incurred). The present value
of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases
because of an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement
of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument
that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment
losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of
any principal payment and amortisation) and its
current fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is
removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as
available for sale, objective evidence would include
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is
evaluated against the original cost of the investment
and “prolonged” against the period in which the
fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss —
is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available for sale are not reversed through the
statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value
after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other
factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value
of an investment is less than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available
for sale, impairment is assessed based on the same
criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost.
However, the amount recorded for impairment is the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between
the amortised cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Future
interest income continues to be accrued based on
the reduced carrying amount of the asset and is
accrued using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded
as part of finance income. Impairment losses on
debt instruments are reversed through the statement
of profit or loss if the subsequent increase in fair
value of the instruments can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

B 75 ¥ 2= B RE

Year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A1BLLFE

QAT ESTTHEBE (8)

TEMEERE (/)

TREEEBEE (B)
EESBEANHLEREREZATE
HEABETRARAKZERERR
B AIRBEEREEBERE [ K
I TASRENERAERS - W&
H TSR R E 2 A FEERENE
A BEVHIR T S o fif KRR E R BFR
o A E SRR E RS R A
EERAFENERE  XMRRETA
Wik R ERRENBRBIESRETE
BREEMEERETEEWRER - &
DERAENEEDRE ZREBET
SEBRBERED  BLERBERZI AT
BEN BEERAREMEEKES -

EMSIAEI SR HEZELH
B o UL IR B Ry - ANERERFE (2
REMER) RBEREN QA FEEERE
P 2N B 45 A8 B ) X BCRE

&7 T AW R & - RIFEER
BENEERREHRAFEZMBEE
FTERAEER - A BMEZAKRSE
TR AR R ERIT A EZER
AR R U o 3R FE AR 2 B 2 (EAARUE
BEAME - KRRFMEWAREEZE K
R E B B R AT B REE BN BIEN
BAKRRERE ZMERF o FBKA
ARBHBRAZ 87  WEHTE
ZNFAEIE B b B Y i R RERRRL
BERRELECEMHEM  AEBES
BEmlaERED -

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  #th BB 12 i A fR A &

109




110

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
bills payable, other payables, derivative financial
instruments and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term. This category includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group
that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by IAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does
not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at
the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in
IAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.

Put options to non-controlling shareholders

In connection with an acquisition of a subsidiary
by the Group, put options were granted to certain
non-controlling shareholders of the subsidiary to
sell their equity interests to the Group. The Group
does not have present ownership interest of the
shares held by those non-controlling shareholders.
The non-controlling interests are recognised at the
date of the business combination, and subsequently
measured according to the policies described in the
basis of consolidation. At each reporting date, the
non-controlling interests are then derecognised as
if they were acquired at each reporting date. The
liability of the put options is then recognised at each
reporting date at its fair value, and any difference
between the amount of non-controlling interests
derecognised and this liability is accounted for in
equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments,
such as forward currency contracts and interest rate
swaps, to hedge its foreign currency risk and interest
rate risk, respectively. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on
the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value
is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
of derivatives are taken directly to the statement of
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short-term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets
similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as
to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the amounts expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, a
joint venture and an associate, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
a joint venture and an associate, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value
is credited to a deferred income account and is
released to the statement of profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments or deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to the statement
of profit or loss by way of a reduced depreciation
charge.

Bonus point liabilities

The Group operates a loyalty point programme, which
allows customers to accumulate points when they
purchase products in the Group’s department stores
and supermarkets. The points can then be redeemed
for gifts and coupons, subject to a minimum
number of points being obtained. The coupons are
cash-equivalent when customers use them to
purchase products of the Group.

Consideration received is allocated between the
products sold and the points issued, with the
consideration allocated to the points equal to their
fair value. Fair value of the points is determined by
applying statistical analyses. The fair value of the
points issued is deferred and recognised as revenue
when the points are redeemed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the
following bases:

e revenue from direct sales of goods is recognised
when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control
over the goods sold;

° commission income from concessionaire sales
is recognised upon the sale of goods by the
relevant stores;

e rental income is recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms;

e fee income from suppliers is recognised
according to the underlying contract terms
with suppliers when these services have been
provided in accordance therewith;

e interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset; and

e dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Employee retirement benefits

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the PRC
Government, all the subsidiaries of the Group
that were established in Mainland China (the
“PRC Subsidiaries”) have participated in a local
municipal government retirement benefit scheme
(the “Scheme”), whereby the PRC Subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of
the salaries of their employees to the Scheme to
fund their retirement benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the Scheme is to
pay the ongoing contributions under the Scheme.
Contributions under the Scheme are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds. Where
funds have been borrowed generally, and used
for the purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, a
capitalisation rate of 3.3% has been applied to the
expenditure on the individual assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the Directors are
classified as a separate allocation within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until
they have been approved by the shareholders in a
general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum
and articles of association grant the Directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

The Company and certain subsidiaries incorporated
outside Mainland China have Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”) or United States dollars (“US$”) as their
functional currencies, respectively. The functional
currency of the PRC Subsidiaries is Renminbi.
As the Group mainly operates in Mainland China,
Renminbi is used as the presentation currency of the
Group. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
differences on the item whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than Renminbi.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into
the presentation currency of the Company at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into Renminbi at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Renminbi at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Renminbi
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in
the future.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgement, apart from those involving estimations,
which has the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property
leases on its property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below:

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired
at least on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
unit to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill
at 31 December 2014 was RMB181,494,000 (2013:
RMB206,494,000). Further details are contained in
note 21 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses and deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses and deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets
relating to recognised tax losses and deductible
temporary differences at 31 December 2014 was
RMB56,925,000 (2013: RMB54,489,000). The
amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December
2014 was RMB99,232,000 (2013: RMB64,936,000).
Further details are contained in note 26 to the
financial statements.

Bonus point liabilities

The amount of revenue attributable to the credits
award earned by the customers of the Group’s
loyalty point programme is estimated based on the
fair value of the credits awarded and the expected
redemption rate. The expected redemption rate is
estimated by considering the number of the credits
that will be available for redemption in the future
after allowing for credits which are not expected to
be redeemed. The carrying amount of bonus point
liabilities at 31 December 2014 was RMB31,282,000
(2013: RMB46,300,000).

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2014, the current liabilities of the
Group exceeded its current assets by approximately
RMB793 million. In the opinion of the Directors, it is
an industry practice for the retail business to keep a
low level of current ratio. The Directors have prepared
these financial statements on a going concern basis
notwithstanding the net current liability position
because the Directors expected that the Group
will generate sufficient cash inflows from the sales
proceeds on the operation of department stores and
supermarkets to meet its financial obligations when
they fall due.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised
into business units based on their products and
services and has two reportable operating segments
as follows:

—  Department store segment
—  Supermarket segment

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The
adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently
with the Group’s profit before tax except that interest
income, finance costs, share of loss of a joint venture,
dividend income, fair value gains/(losses) from the
Group’s financial instruments, fair value gains of
disposal available-for-sale listed investments, gains
on disposal of unquoted current investments, stated
at cost as well as head office and corporate expenses
are excluded from this measurement.

Segment assets exclude the Group’s investment
in a joint venture, investment in an associate,
available-for-sale investments, deferred tax assets,
restricted cash, long-term time deposits at banks,
tax recoverable, amounts due from the Controlling
Shareholder, structured deposits, derivative financial
instruments, cash and cash equivalents, assets of a
disposal group classified as held for sale and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as
these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude short-term financing notes
interest-bearing bank borrowings, derivative financial
instruments, tax payable, liabilities directly associated
with the assets classified as held for sale, deferred
tax liabilities and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on
a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Year ended
31 December 2014
HZ2014F12A31BLEE

Segment revenue
Sales to external customers

Segment results

Reconciliation:

Interest and dividend income and
unallocated gains

Corporate and other unallocated expenses

Share of loss of a joint venture

Finance costs

Profit before tax

Segment assets
Reconciliation:
Corporate and other unallocated assets
Investment in a joint venture
Investment in an associate
Assets of a disposal group classified

as held for sale

Total assets
Segment liabilities
Reconciliation:
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities
Liabilities directly associated with
the assets classified as held for sale
Total liabilities
Other segment information

Depreciation and amortisation
Corporate and other unallocated amounts

Total depreciation and amortisation
(Write-back of provision)/provision

for slow-moving inventories
Impairment of goodwill

Capital expenditure
Corporate and other unallocated amounts

Total capital expenditure *
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Year ended 31 December 2014
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A
ng

<& 2 &R

Department
store
BEE
RMB’ 000
ARBTR

&8 (&)

Super-market
B
RMB’000
AR®T

Total

@it
RMB’000
ARETR

1,702,744

2,573,540

4,276,284

822,719

7,439,677

2,502,685

257,566

(970)
25,000

583,024

135,752

1,282,561

642,208

70,772

1,688

57,476

958,471

187,558
(127,135)
(49,426)
(49,201)
920,267

8,722,238
2,570,594
237,851
45,166
26,400
11,602,249
3,144,893
3,255,364
4,769

6,405,026

328,338
4,476

332,814

718
25,000
640,500
5,277

645,777



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2014

EZE2014F12A31HLEFE
OPERATING SEGMENT 5. KREHHBER (&)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Year ended Department
31 December 2013 store Super-market Total
HZE2013F12A31A L5 E BEE B @t
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
Segment revenue 7 B W
Sales to external customers HINBEPHHE 1,684,491 2,477,109 4,161,600
Segment results DWEE 874,023 151,714 1,025,737
Reconciliation: Hk -
Interest and dividend income and FSRBREBARKS
unallocated gains Yoz 188,368
Corporate and other unallocated expenses A &) Jz E At K 7 B il 52 (119,334)
Share of loss of a joint venture PERELEER (3,568)
Finance costs BB A (55,998)
Profit before tax IR 250 AT 7 1,085,115
Segment assets AHEE 6,817,364 1,275,090 8,092,454
Reconciliation: #hk - \
Corporate and other unallocated assets R AIREMANEEE 3,712,468
Investment in a joint venture BEMERE 257,277
Investment in an associate BENRIRE 45,166
Assets of a disposal group classified BERIBEXBIER
as held for sale REGERE 24,738
Total assets BEE 12,132,103
Segment liabilities FBEE 2,879,737 641,432 3,521,169
Reconciliation: Hk -
Corporate and other unallocated liabiities A A RE M A DL & & 3,581,943
Liabilities directly associated with BREEREEAERR
the assets classified as held for sale H@NEE 3,107
Total liabilities maf 7,106,219
Other segment information HittpHEH
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH 247 352 65,943 313,295
Corporate and other unallocated amounts 72 &)} E fth & 7 B 78 4,080
Total depreciation and amortisation MEREHEA 317,375
Write-back of provision for
slow-moving inventories BHEGERERRD (880) (419) 1,299)
Capital expenditure BARHY 568,262 106,542 674,804
Corporate and other unallocated amounts A &l & H R 7 B 7 A 3,016
Total capital expenditure * BEARREY 677,820

*

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property,

plant and equipment, prepaid land premiums and other
intangible assets including assets from the acquisition

of subsidiaries.

* BAHRXBREABYE KERRERE -
BNt EEREACEVEE (215
RKEKRBHBARNEE) -
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OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Geographical information

All of the Group’s revenue is derived from customers
based in Mainland China and all of the non-current
assets of the Group are located in Mainland China.

Information about major customers

No revenue derived from sales to a single customer
or a group of customers under the common control
accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue
for the year.

REVENUE

Revenue represents the net amount received and
receivable for goods sold by the Group to outside
customers, less allowances for returns and trade
discounts; commission income from concessionaire
sales, net of sales taxes and surcharges; and
other revenue that arises in the ordinary course of
business.

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

Sales of goods — direct sales
Commission income from

concessionaire sales (Note) L ONCE=,
Total turnover e
Rental income Ha2 WA
Provision of food and beverage REER RS
service
Total revenue A

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 3§
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 2 MY =

Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31HILEFE

i & & F
AREBRBWRAREFRBEABLES © M
RNEBFBIERBEELRHE A -

TEFEFHNEHR
RAFEWE|E - RHARZEH TH
—HARPHHEEAREEKA10%KIA
J: o

WA
WAAEERIIBEFPHEERZE
Y 0 e W TR TR AR B I B 5 T H R
KERAELEHEMSBMATRHBEED
NHINE : AR —REBERETELDN
HA e

WADIT25IET

2014 2013
—F-mF —F—=
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T R ARBTT
2,790,087 2,656,809
1,359,633 1,386,741
4,149,720 4,043,550
120,272 105,500
6,292 12,550
4,276,284 4,161,600




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %% i a MY =

Year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A1BLLFE

REVENUE (CONTINUED) 6.

Note:

The commission income from concessionaire sales is
analysed as follows:

Gross revenue from concessionaire & & 54§45 & Fr 18 718
sales

Commission income from BFEEEsmalA

concessionaire sales

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 7.

Other income Heth g A

Fee income from suppliers 2R B R R A E AU A

Interest income FLEMA

Dividend income from available- KEAHEE EH
for-sale listed investments TE AR BWA

Subsidy income [N

Others HAb

Gains W =

PE X %8 - FEE
RERKAGENIELD

Foreign exchange differences, net
Gains on disposal of unquoted

current investments stated at cost %5 Bi & & Uk 25
Fair value gains, net: N EWEE - FEE
Available-for-sale listed At HE FWIRE

(EEREBHEA)

investments (transfer from
equity on disposal)

Derivative instruments pE2mIAE
— transactions not —REFEE
qualifying as hedge EBRLIR S

A (&)
Wit -

FABLHERSKRADHTAOT

2014 2013
—g-mF —T-=%
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥TFR ARBTT
8,139,055 8,373,147
1,359,633 1,386,741
Hih A K Kz
2014 2013
—F-mF —T=%F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET R ARBTT
528,449 516,590
127,919 122,718
3,301 1,894
22,523 26,506
5,336 12,668
687,528 680,376
- 25,992
1,736 1,672
31,300 -
607 755
33,643 28,419
721,171 708,795

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  #th BB 1% AR G BR A &




128

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥R AR Y 5

Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31HILEFE

8. OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses mainly include impairment of
goodwill, utility expenses, advertising and promotion
expenses, loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment, office expenses, maintenance costs,
travelling expenses, entertainment expenses,
property tax, government surcharges and other
miscellaneous expenses.

9. FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

Interest on short-term EHIRmE SN E
financing notes

Interest on bank borrowings ARAFAZIEED
wholly repayable within HR1T B RA S
five years

Less: Interest capitalised R - BARMEFE
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HAb B

HEAXETZRREHERELER K
EfRx BEEEEER Y% BER
RENREEBR MAERAX  #ER
RMER ZKE XBHBEE - WE
B B I E A E A AR S o

B & A A

BERKADTT
2014 2013
—E-DNF —E—=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ T ARBF T
10,957 33,953
78,612 51,081
(40,368) (29,036)
49,201 55,998




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after

B 7% ¥R 2R Y 5

Year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A1BLLFE

10. BR B AT &= A

AEENRBIDENEMR, GEA) T

charging/(crediting): | %18
2014 20183
—E-mF —E—=F
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
k=3 AR®ETR ARETTT
Cost of inventories sold FEHEERA 2,438,674 2,311,346
Provision/(write-back of BETERE

provision) for slow-moving (B EED)

inventories 718 (1,299)
Depreciation e 18 318,062 302,326
Amortisation of prepaid land B i E S

premiums 19 11,689 11,987
Amortisation of other intangible H {4 7 & EE

assets 20 3,063 3,062
Impairment of goodwill* R 21 25,000 -
Loss on disposal of items of BREME  BEIEE

property, plant and SEEES

equipment 9,240 10,185
Minimum lease payments KREMETHREHRS

under operating leases:

Land and buildings T REF 98,196 80,842
Auditors’ remuneration 1% S5 A BN & 2,936 2,724
Staff costs including Directors’ EIXA(BREZERTHK

and chief executive’s BEEHM) (HiF11)

remuneration (note 11):

Wages, salaries and bonuses T&  Helkitda 435,062 439,008

Pension scheme contributions BIREE AR 58,155 56,240

Other social security costs HiteRBRER 89,515 77,988
Foreign exchange differences, fEN % FHE

net 13,448 (25,992)
Dividend income from KEMHEE EMEREN

available-for-sale listed SN ON

investments 7 (3,301) (1,894)
Gains on disposal of unquoted BRERKAFENIE LT

current investments stated 2R E s

at cost 7 (1,736) (1,672)
Fair value gains, net: NFEMNE  FE

Available-for-sale listed ARHE FHRE

investments (transfer from (eEmgeE )
equity on disposal) 7 (31,300) =
Derivative instruments TESRITA
- transactions not —PIHEEHPER
qualifying as hedge ZR5 7 (607) (759)
Share of loss of a

joint venture DMEEELEBE 22 49,426 3,658

* The impairment of goodwill is included in “Other & EEREEERSESARERMIE

expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

X< -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 2 MY =

Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31HILEFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF

11.

EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for
the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules
and section 78 of Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), with reference
to section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows:

Fees

Other e

moluments:

Salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind

Pension scheme contributions

e

H A 357 B -
e RMEEMANG

BAKRESEFEIHR

(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive
directors during the year were as follows:

Mr

Mr
Mr

130

. Lin Zhijun

. Zhang Weijiong

. Cheung Yat Ming @
. Wang Shuaiting @
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MEELRE
SR A AR ST £
RIS AL
FARVE LD

EE RITHAR

RIE E R R R EFECR BNED) (5622
B)WET8HKRM R11 - W2 RATF R A
fGRP) (£328) B161GFM R BEESE M7
BEHNEHERROMSWT

2014 2013
=F-AF —E—=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARMT R ARBT T
536 576

4,373 3,990

100 96

4,473 4,086
5,009 4,662

(@ BUHHTEF

REBHMRAS NGB YIFNTES

MESIT :

2014 2013

—E—MF —_F—=
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET AREETF T
189 192
189 192
158 =
- 192
536 576




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
(CONTINUED)

(a) Independent non-executive directors (continued)
There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year.

() Mr. Cheung Yat Ming was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director and
member of the audit committee, nomination
committee and remuneration committee of
the Board on 11 March 2014.

(i)  Mr. Wang Shuaiting resigned as an
independent non-executive Director and
member of the audit committee, nomination
committee and remuneration committee
of the Board with effect from 17 January
2014.

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and
the chief executive

11.

B 7% ¥R 2R Y 5

Year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A1BLLFE

EERTHRARFH (&)

(@) BUIHTEE (&)
KA BRI FE (N 45 3B S FF B AT
EEMmEMHE -

() Fw®—BIELEMN2014F3H11H
EREARNRRBYIERNITE
E AEEEERLZTES 2
HEESRTMEEGNKE -

(i) EBDEE % A& 1201451 8178
BEANNBBYIERMITES -
AEESEZZEL  REZE
BEekiMEeaem BRI -

(b) BITEE FHTEERTHAEZ

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
in kind contributions Total
Fees e 1.1 BIE remuneration
BE REVIZ B L FMas
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TRT AR¥Tx AR¥T=®
2014 20144
Executive directors: WITES:
Mr. Chen Jiangiang BREmEE - 1,024 13 1,037
Mr. Tao Qingrong P B 58 L D - 1,902 13 1,915
Mr. Fung Hiu Lai ® Jil:2 Sl - 118 - 118
Mr. Yu Yaoming MEALAE - 1,140 74 1,214
- 4,184 100 4,284
Non-executive directors: HTES
Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, John BB £ - 189 - 189
- 4,373 100 4,473
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥R AR Y 5

Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31HILEFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
(CONTINUED)

MN.ESRITHRAZTMH (F)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and b) BITEE HEHTEFERTHEH
the chief executive (continued) (%)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
inkind  contributions Total
Fees e R FRE  remuneration
we  REWHNz ST FHa st
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®ETR AR®ETx ARET T

2013 20135

Executive directors: HOTES:

Mr. Chen Jiangiang BBtk - 1,038 12 1,050

Mr. Tao Qingrong " PR B 58 4 O = 1,281 12 1,293

Mr. Fung Hiu Lai ® pil - sl - 425 - 425

Mr. Yu Yaoming MERLAE - 910 72 982

3,654 96 3,750

Non-executive directors: FHTES

Mr. Wang Lin T FEE - 144 - 144

Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, John  HEB LA - 192 - 192

- 3,990 96 4,086

(i)  Mr. Tao Qingrong is also the chief executive iy MELLENSAEBNITE
of the Group. B

(i) Mr. Fung Hiu Lai resigned as executive (i) SRR %E A N2014F3 /1R
Director of the Company with effect from 11 BEARNANTHNITESREE -
March 2014.

(i)  Mr. Wang Lin resigned as a non-executive (i) £ &L EM2013F10H25H
Director and member of the audit BE AN BYIERITES -
committee, nomination committee and AEEGEZLZED  REZER
remuneration committee of the Board with BEelkFMEZEem BRI -

effect from 25 October 2013.

There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year
included three (2013: three) directors, details of
whose remuneration are set out in note 11 above.
Details of the remuneration of the remaining two
(2013: two) highest paid employees who are neither
a director nor chief executive of the Company for the
year are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and e EMEREDMR D
benefits in kind

Pension scheme contributions RIRE T B R

The number of non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell
within following bands is as follows:

Nil to RMB1,000,000 EEARE—BET
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 ARB—FEZ—1Z&
ARE—BRETET

B 7% ¥R 2R Y 5

Year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A1BLLFE

12. TV & = & & Fr i

REBHRE IR HEEETIRE
£ (2013F :3RER)FMFB RN L
fizE11 - Egpo (M TAREFHIREIT
BAEEH)NEABEOMESFBOT

2014 2013
—F-mF = =

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARMF T ARBTT

2,164 1,753

78 73

2,242 1,826

FBEZEMFTRARTSHMESR
M ABAE THIF B E N ETHR -

Number of employees

EEH
2014 2013
—E2-mF —E=F
- 1
2 1
2 2
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥R AR Y 5

Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31HILEFE

13.INCOME TAX

13. T8 %

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis
on profit arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions
in which members of the Group are domiciled and
operate. The Group and the Company are not liable
for income tax in Hong Kong as they did not have
assessable income sourced from Hong Kong during
the year.

The Company is a tax-exempted company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands.

Under the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
Corporate Income Tax Law (the “New CIT Law”), the
income tax rate became 25% starting from 1 January
2008. Therefore, provision for the PRC income tax
has been made at the applicable income tax rate of
25% (2013: 25%) on the assessable profits of the
PRC Subsidiaries.

AEBANERBELERAEERKE QA
REEM LK EMERDEERMELESK
MEHEANMAER - ARERAR
BIBABMETEMEN ARERAH
HIR Y R B BB ERTUA -

ARARB/RFASESEMRINEH A
Al e

RIEREARLME ([FE]) BEMB
PR ([FEEMFRIE] - B200841
A1HREHEA25% @ Al > ¥
B B} B8 A A FE R BE PR E B TS B R
25% (20134F : 25% ) #E 1T B AT 15 5 43¢
f& o

2014 2013
—F-mF —F—=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARETT

Current — PRC corporate income ~ BIHi— & A rp B 1> # B 15 71

tax charge for the year - 257,692 277,809
Deferred (note 26) EIERIA (K72226) 17,004 20,733
Total tax charge for the year FRIBF T 85 274,696 298,542
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %% i a MY =

Year ended 31 December 2014

HZE2014F12A31HILFE
13.INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 13. Fr 8% (&)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit AN 7 N B R E o BB A |l st Fr e
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction BIERE R A TE B R & BB B A= B P
in which the Company and the majority of its BRAMMERY BIEERRETENT

subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the ERYOHRMOT

effective tax rate is as follows:

2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARETT

Profit before tax B B B v A 920,267 1,035,115

Tax at the statutory tax rate of BIETE M E25% AT E IR

25% (20183: 25%) (2013%F : 25%) 230,067 258,779
Expenses not deductible for tax AR A A 2 9,316 6,001
Losses attributable to a DMEEETERNEIE

joint venture 12,357 915

Effect of withholding tax on the TEF0FR 5 BB B A B AT 9K
distributable profits of the PRC i A B 5 2

Subsidiaries 14,382 16,613
Tax losses not recognised AERBIBEE 8,574 16,234
Tax charge at the Group’s BEAREEERTEAED

effective rate FHIERX 274,696 208,542
The share of tax credit attributable to a joint venture DIEEEEREER S ARE1,138,000
amounting to RMB1,138,000 (2013: RMB1,219,000) 7L (20134 : A R®1,219,0007T) E &
is included in “Share of loss of a joint venture” in the HESANRBESRZOEEEDENEE
consolidated statement of profit or loss. ==Y
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31HILEFE

14. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO 14. B R A B ABLER

OWNERS OF THE PARENT

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of
the parent for the year ended 31 December 2014
includes a loss of RMB3,021,000 (2013: a loss of
RMB844,000), which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company (note 39(e)).

B E2014F12831HIEFE A
AEAABLEEZIBEEEEAR
#3,021,0007C (20134F : 1B A R #E
844,0007T) ' ERAR R HRE TR
8 (Fff5£39()) °

15. DIVIDENDS 15. Ix B
2014 2013
—E-F —E—=%F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET AREFIT
Interim — HK$8 cents AR HR — B B eIl
(2013: HK$10 cents) (20134 : BEE101L)

per ordinary share

Proposed final - HK$9 cents BORBREIRE — @R
(2013: HK$8.5 cents) TS L
per ordinary share (20134 : B #8.5(0)

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to
the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The amount which the PRC Subsidiaries can legally
distribute by way of dividend is determined by
reference to the distributable profits as reflected in
their PRC statutory financial statements prepared in
accordance with the accounting rules and regulations
in the PRC (“PRC GAAP”).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE

17.

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share
amount is based on the profit for the year attributable
to the ordinary equity holders of the parent of
RMB634,065,000 (2013: RMB730,356,000), and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
2,472,022,956 (2013: 2,499,847,238) in issue during
the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares
in issue during those years.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The PRC Subsidiaries participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit plans organised by the
relevant government authorities for their employees
in Mainland China and contribute to these plans
based on a certain percentage of the salaries of the
employees on a monthly basis, up to a maximum
fixed monetary amount, as stipulated by the relevant
government authorities. The government authorities
undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations payable to all existing and future retired
employees under these plans.

The Group has no further obligation for post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions made. The
contributions to these plans are recognised as
employee benefit expenses when incurred.

B 7% ¥R 2R Y 5

Year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A1BLLFE

16. B AR EBEREFEARGS

17.

JR 72z A

EREREHNDERFERF QR EER
BB AL R T A R #634,065,0007T
(20134 : A R#730,356,0007T) A& A
BETE R I 19 812,472,022,056%
(20134 : 2,499,847,2380% ) 5+ & -

AEERBFEHARBTHEBRBE
EHEYENESTA -

BERIKER
RETRARZEZROAE  TEMEA
AIE2HBAEHFERNKRGE - 2RTE
MEBAREEHAEZERENELRAK
B HI& 1% X (8 &0 P72 30 [ 73 B0 1 35 3 B
SEMETELL P FRERAKSE - EILEHE
T HEARFEESMAERA LRKE
Ry E B AERNEEBRKET -

B Lt st - AR EE R E A
BAREBAMK - AZFRHEOHERR
BERERASEBERNFAX -
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Year ended 31 December 2014

HE2014F12A31HLFE
18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 18. ¥ - MERKE
EQUIPMENT
Renovation Furniture
Land and and leasehold Motor and office ~ Construction
buildings improvements Machinery vehicles equipment  in progress Total
BRR
1HREF  BEREE BE RE BOERE HEIR @it
RMB’ 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARBTT AREBTr ARETr  AR%ETR  ARETR  ARETR
31 December 2014 R2014F12731A
At 1 January 2014, net of R201461818 -
accumulated depreciation BB 2EE 4,651,419 468,315 302,982 5,249 66,531 637,110 6,131,606
Additions HE 5,991 42,735 5,911 497 12,551 578,092 645,777
Depreciation provided for the year EERERE (156,698) (87,540) (48,476) (2,044) (28,304) - (318,062)
Transfers g 1,711 90,373 9,209 - 4511 (105,870) -
Disposals RE (503) (8,653) (492) (95) (940) - (10,683)
At 31 December 2014, net of 2014512318 -
accumulated depreciation RBEINE 4,501,920 505,230 269,134 3,607 59,415 1,109,332 6,448,638
At 31 December 2014; R#2014%512A318 :
Cost A 5,356,314 805,935 547,759 11,646 168,303 1,109,332 7,999,289
Accumulated depreciation 2ifiE (854,304) (300,705) (278,625 (8039)  (108,888) - (1,550,651)
Net carrying amount REE 4,501,920 505,230 269,134 3,607 59,415 1,109,332 6,448,638
31 December 2013 R2013512731H
At 1 January 2013, net of 20131 1A
accumulated depreciation RREiHE 4,736,799 354,208 321,83 7,356 74,412 311,249 5,805,327
Additions RE 29,220 82,245 20,935 148 16,993 478,126 627,667
Acquisition of a sulbsidlary WEREAR = 15,436 18 3 165 66 15,724
Depreciation provided for theyear ~ FEHERE (153,771) (75,784) (46,396) (2,267) (24,108) - (302,326
Transfers g 42,120 96,571 10,212 - 1,389 (150,292) -
Disposals RE (2.949) (4,381) (3.070) @7 2,320) (2,039) (14,786)
At 31 December 2013, net of R2013E12A318
accumulated depreciation RB2iE 4,651,419 468315 302,982 5,29 66,531 637110 6,131,606
At 31 December 2013; R#2013%512A318 :
Cost A 5,349,183 693,280 535,376 12,085 157,214 637,110 7,384,248
Accumulated depreciation Z2iHE (697,764) (024,965) (232,394) (6,836) (90,683) - (1,252,642)
Net carrying amount RAFE 4,651,419 468,315 302,982 5,249 66,531 637,110 6,131,606

138 ANNUAL REPORT 2014 445



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2014

HZE2014F12A1BLLFE
18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 18. ¥ - MENKE (&)
EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
At 31 December 2014, the application for R2014F12A318 - AEENEAEE
transfer the land use right certificate to property AR #418,818,0007T (20134 : AREE
ownership certificate for the Group’s land and 1,223,102,0007T) By Lt R EFEH 5
buildings amounting to RMB418,818,000 (2013: XFBERER -
RMB1,223,102,000) was still in progress.
19. PREPAID LAND PREMIUMS 10. BTt HZES
2014 2013
—F-mF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARBT ARETT

Carrying amount at 1 January M A1TERREE 899,433 890,023
Additions R - 34,429
Government grant related HIEM L ES
to prepaid land premiums B 8 B BT RS X (1,748) =
Amortisation capitalised FEHHEERNMERME -
as property, plant and = K 5%
equipment for the year (13,662) (13,032)
Recognised as expenses BRRFEMX
during the year (11,689) (11,987)
Carrying amount at 31 December 12 A31H M IR E & 872,334 899,433
The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and HELTHWERPRERN  WRBEHRLOE
is held under a long-term lease. HRFA -
20. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. BB EE
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARETT

Lease agreement buyouts HEHZER
Carrying amount at 1 January R A1EMIREE 41,412 44,474
Recognised as expenses BREFERAX
during the year (3,063) (3,062)
Carrying amount at 31 December 712831 H M REE 38,349 41,412
The lease agreement buyouts represented the HEWEEWIEAREEMRE P2
Group’s payment to old tenants to buy out lease BEBEES:  WiKESEEHESHRN
agreements, and were amortised over the lease terms HE4Y o
on the straight-line basis. .
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31HILEFE

21. GOODWILL

At 1 January 2013:
Cost

Net carrying amount
Cost at 1 January 20183,

net of accumulated impairment
Acquisition of a subsidiary

At 31 December 2013

At 31 December 2013:
Cost

Net carrying amount

Cost at 1 January 2014,
net of accumulated impairment
Impairment during the year (Note)

Cost and net carrying amount
at 31 December 2014

At 31 December 2014
Cost
Accumulated impairment

Net carrying amount
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R2013%F1 18
BN

FRmEHE

R2013F1 A1B KA :

R R RE
Yo — K B A =

2013412831 H

20135124311 :

DN

FREFE

R201451 B1HRAK

R RFHRE
RERE (B et)

2014512 A31H
AR & BREDF B

M2014%F12H31H

BN
REHRE

FREFE

RMB’ 000
ARBTT

184,167

184,167

184,167
22,327

206,494

206,494

206,494

206,494
(25,000)

181,494

206,494
(25,000)

181,494




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is
allocated to the department store cash-generating
unit for impairment testing. The recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a
five-year period approved by senior management.
The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
is 15% (2013: 15%).

The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of
the cash-generating unit beyond the five-year period
from the end of the reporting period is 3% for all
years. This growth rate is below the average growth
rate of the retail industry for the past 10 years. Senior
management of the Company believes that using a
lower growth rate is a more conservative and reliable
choice for the purpose of this impairment testing.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation
of the department store cash-generating unit for
31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013. The
following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill.

Store revenue:

the bases used to determine the future earnings
potential are average historical sales and expected
growth rates of the retail market in Mainland China.

Gross margins:

the basis used to determine the value assigned to the
budgeted gross margins is the average gross margins
achieved in the year immediately before the budget
year, increased for expected efficiency improvements,
and expected market development.

Expenses:

the basic factors used to determine the values
assigned are staff costs, rental expenses and other
expenses. Values assigned to the key assumptions
reflect past experience and management’s
commitment to maintain the Company’s operating
expenses at an acceptable level.

B 75 ¥ 2= B RE

Year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A1BLLFE

21. B & (&)

SR RER: S
BRERAHELENBEEIREERE
ERSELSBEMERBIR ReEE
B A A U B & 28 5 AR B F B EE
HET AitE%eE 2REBESAE
BAEFBEREZEREHMAOGTBIE
HRAUESRERLN - IEFEERER
= TER#E A A B3R & B15% (20134 ¢
15%) °

FIEFERRNEANB RS HREFRF
HHERRSELEMMNRSREMER
BB R R 3% ° LR EERIBE10F
TETENFHEREER - KRASRE
BABMHE  ERABENEREZR
BRI S JBART R A SERYEEE -

BRE®BRTE2014F12A318 &
2013F12A31HBEEE B e RELE
Lo AT EFIEEE R R EERE

B EERE -

BEEWRE :

AR BT ARETIE N HERATEB
EHERRARTANGEETHNE
R -

R

ANEEREEMNEBENEERRE
BEEEMN - FMERNFHEMNEK
RIBET AR RIERT 5 E MM

R :

AREEREEENERARZSE TK
A -HERXREMAX - DETEE
R A EE R BRB E A 5 & B 1R B A& e
AR BB E B S M I AT R KK o
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21. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
Discount rate:

the discount rate used is after tax and reflects
management’s estimate of the risks specific to the
cash-generating unit. In determining an appropriate
discount rate for the unit, regard has been given to
the applicable borrowing rate of the industry in the
current year.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

With regard to the assessment of value in use of the
department store cash-generating unit, management
believes that no reasonably possible change in any of
the above key assumptions would cause the carrying
value, including goodwill, of the cash-generating unit
to materially exceed the recoverable amount.

Note:

As at 31 December 2014, as the progress of upgrade
and optimization of Yangzhou Fengxiang Commerce Co.,
Ltd. (“Yangzhou Fengxiang”) did not meet management’s
expectation, management has recognised an impairment
charge of RMB25,000,000 in the current year against
goodwill with a carrying amount of RMB56,727,000 as at 31
December 2013. The impairment charge is recorded within
“Other expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss this year.

The impairment testing result of Yangzhou Fengxiang is as
follow:

Recoverable amount (value in use)
Carrying amount

Testing result

Percentage of equity attributable to the Group
Impairment of goodwill charged in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31HILEFE

21. B & (&)

7 R 5 ()
BEIRE |

FIAMBAXRERT  IRREEEHE
ELRSBUBARBRNMGET - IEBE
EEABMREE CEBBRFE
EAMBEREER -

BREFHHBE
EHBEEReELBEMEREREL
AEfEE  EEEMRRE LR ETAERRR
AREANSEEH I EHFEREES
BUuMmGEHE(BRERE) BEBRNEAK
O & 58 -

Hiaz -

R2014F12A318 ' A THMNEFBEER
Al ([BMNERE ) A RBUEERREEE
EBIEH  BEEERTEH2013F12A31HHE
R BR E (B A R #56,727,000 T F AR B E
A R #25,000,0007T ° B fEE & A FE WK
RZHEMEAS P -

BMEFOREAASERAT

2014
—E-IE
RMB’ 000
AR® TR
A EE CGEREE) 378,000
BREE 423,700
BIE 45 52 (45,400)
7N 2 B FE 1 AR R Lt 151 55%
TARAERERPHEERELERS
(25,000)



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A1BLLFE

22.INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 2. EELERE

2014 2013
—E-NF —_ZE—=
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARBTT

Share of net assets DIHEEFE 102,256 151,682
Goodwill on acquisition U gz 105,595 105,595

207,851 257,277
Loan to a joint venture HEETGEER 30,000 =
As at 31 December MW12A31H 237,851 257,277
The loan to a joint venture is unsecured, interest-free HAEBDPENERTEIEA - £ 8 KE
and has no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion B EERERE EERAMERELSS
of the Directors, this loan is considered as part of the DEIGEFEER — D o

Company’s net investment in the joint venture.
Particulars of the Group’s joint venture are as follows: RNREFBESEDPESBWOT

Percentage of

Bl
Particulars of Ownership
issued shares held Place of interest Voting Profit Principal

Name 5B registration FiEk power  sharing activity
&8 BRETRAFE it B REE  EHEA TEEH
Zhenjiang Baisheng Registered capital of PRC/ Operation of

Commercial Genter US$10,000,000 Mainland China 50 50 50 department stores

Co., Ltd. HER i,/ BERER
ETREEN 100083 T Rl

ARAR
The investment in the joint venture is held through a AATIBBHE2ENBATIEAEHAEE
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. HEWIEE -
The percentages of voting rights and profit sharing of AR ENIEERINESEMNBNE D
this joint venture are the same as the percentage of BEAREESE DL ER -

the ownership interest.
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31HILEFE

22.INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

(CONTINUED)

The following table illustrates the summarised
Group’s share financial information of the Group’s

joint venture:

Share of the joint venture's
assets and liabilities:

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Share of the joint venture’s results:

Revenue
Other income

Total expenses
Tax credit

Loss after tax

144
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DERERE

BERAE:

mEEE
FEREBEE
mEAE
FRBAE

BEFE

WA
H AU A

B < #5
MR R

HiEER

BELRRE (&
TEREHATAREDEEERRNUE
BERHEE -
2014 2013
—F-mF == =
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARMF T AREETFT
4,897 23,164
197,861 215,781
(59,814) (45,771)
(40,688) (41,492)
102,256 151,682
AMEEERRMEE
2014 2013
— ik —F=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARMF T AREET T
10,176 22,526
1,953 2,947
12,129 25,473
(62,693) (30,350)
1,138 1,219
(49,426) (3,658)
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Year ended 31 December 2014

HE2014F12A31BILFE
23.INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 23.BE RN K®RE
2014 2013
—E-NF —Z—=
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARETT

Share of net assets DB EFRE 45,166 45,166
As at 31 December Mm12H318 45,166 45,166
Particulars of the Group's associate are as follows: NEBBE NTIHBOT -

Percentage of

Particulars Place of BAl
of issued registration  Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name shares held and business interest power sharing activity
£R RECROTRGHEE EMRERFEL FEREE = RREE  EERA IBRH
Yixing Rongtong Registered capital of PRC/Mainland 35 35 35 Operation of
Trade & Commerce RMB129,046,000 China supermarket
Limited & A RE /R RN, -t
ERRBEEARAT AKH129,046,0007C
The investment in the associate is held through AATBBER2EWB R FEAEHL
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. NEHIRE -
The percentages of voting rights and profit sharing of AN T IS =R R RS A E 9 R
this associate are the same as the percentage of the HAEREREDZE D LER -

ownership interest.

As the associate was still under construction, there BB N T IERESE R - BRAE
was no profit or loss during the year. The following ERBEANSEE L THEKREERTAK
table illustrates the summarised financial information EFHS(FBE AT ERBE o

of the associate shared by the Group.

2014 2013
—E2-mF —F=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARBETT

Current assets MENEE 5,218 15,808
Non-current assets IEREBEE 40,133 30,281
Current liabilities REBEE (185) (923)

Net assets BEFE 45,166 45,166 .
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Year ended 31 December 2014

HE2014F12A31HILEFE
24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE 24, M HERE
INVESTMENTS
2014 2013
—F-mF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR TR ARET T
Listed equity investments, at fair ~ EWRAZES » UAFETE
value:
Shanghai fabis) - 146,134
Unlisted equity investments, EEMBRAFES - IEKANGHE
at cost 110 110
Total non-current available- ERMBAHELERERE
for-sale investments 110 146,244
Unlisted equity investments, FELEMBRAES  BEKAFE
at cost - 14,000
Total current available-for-sale MEBAHHERERTE
investments - 14,000

During the year, the gross gains in respect of the
Group’s listed equity investments at fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income amounted
to RMB33,092,000 (2013: gains of RMB17,039,000),
of which RMB31,300,000 (2013: Nil) was reclassified
from other comprehensive income to the statement of
profit or loss for the year.

As at 31 December 2014, certain unlisted equity
investments with a carrying amount of RMB110,000
(2013: RMB14,110,000) were stated at cost less
impairment. The Directors are of the opinion that their
fair value cannot be measured reliably.

25.LONG-TERM PREPAYMENTS

Rental prepayments FENEE
Prepayment for acquisition

of a subsidiary
Prepayment for purchases of land

and buildings

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 3§

Yo B B B & R TR 3R

25.

FBE L REFENFR

RER  ERAFEFAEMEZEKEN
AEBETRAZFELFNBRZEAR
#33,092,0007T (20134 : B F| A R #&
17,039,0007T) + HE A AR#31,300,000
JC (20134 : &) A a s T ESD
HEFERZEEKF -

R2014F12A831H  EEEAARE
110,0007T (20134 : AR ¥14,110,000
TC) K9 FE £ T AR AN 2B 5 AN BR R B 14 F AR
KIR - EERAZSHENATEE

L EEDEE

REEAKE

2014 2013

—F-mF = =
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®EF T ARETF T
21,982 17,504
20,000 -
572,942 164,221
614,924 181,725
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Year ended 31 December 2014

EZE2014F12A31HLEFE
26. DEFERRED TAX 26. IEFE B 1H
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities REBHEMNELHREEERBENE
during the year are as follows: N :
Deferred tax assets BEEBEEE
Losses available
for offsetting Assets Accrued Bonus
against future disposal rental point  Available-
taxable profits loss  expenses liabilities for-sale
THEEAR REZE  EiEe €8 investments Others? Total
ERBEEANNER B#& BXx BORE THEERZE Higo @zt
RMB’ 000 RMB'’000 RMB' 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARETE AR%TE ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETR
Gross deferred tax assets M2013%1A1A
at 1 January 2013 EERBEELE 14,615 11,668 5,878 9,334 4,708 11,299 57,502
Deferred tax charged to equity Rzt AEZH
during the year BERHE - - - - (4,260) - 4,260)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) Mzt AMER
to the statement of profit or MR E
loss during the year (note 13)  (#1:£13) (6,220) 1,728 2,321 2,241 S 1177 1,247
Gross deferred tax assets "2013%12A31R
at 31 December 2013 and 201451 B1BH
1 January 2014 BRFBEERSE 8,395 13,396 8,199 11,575 448 12,476 54,489
Deferred tax charged to equity & Rzt B A
during the year BERE - - - - (448) - (448)
Deferred tax credited/(charged)  F R AMZER
to the statement of profit or MEERE
loss during the year (note 18)  (#1i#13) 3,287 955 2,747 (3,754) - (351) 2,884
Gross deferred tax assets 201451231 B &
at 31 December 2014 EXHEAEERS 11,682 14,351 10,946 7,821 - 12,125 56,925

Note: /;/91 Er‘ir_- ;

()  Others mainly arise from temporary differences caused
by pre-operating expenses, accrued expenses and
inventory provision.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB99,232,000 (2013: RMB64,936,000) that will
expire in one to five years for offsetting against future
taxable profits, as they have arisen in subsidiaries
that have been loss-making for some time and it is
not considered probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

() HtE2REZEFFT  BIHEXK
FERESHNERHER -

ERBEARAMR—ZEZRFEARNIHEH A
REINAREHE NS EAA
R #99,232,0007t (2013F: A R #&
64,936,0007T) M IEB B K ER AR
EHBEEE FAELEZSHREEEDY
MEBAGCEE —BER - ABFT
SELARHENANKINRESIE -
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31HILEFE

26. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax liabilities

Gross deferred tax liabilities R2013F1 A1B K9
at 1 January 2013 ELHIBAEARE

Realisation during the year FNEER

Deferred tax charged/(credited) to W2 AUz K Y
the statement of profit or loss ERRE (M 5#13)
during the year (note 13)

Gross deferred tax liabilities M2013512H31H
at 31 December 2013 and &2014F1 18
1 January 2014 EEHRRBEER

Realisation during the year FRNEER

Deferred tax charged/(credited) to  F R ARFEEH
the statement of profit or loss BB 213)
during the year (note 13)

Gross deferred tax liabilities R2014%12H31H
at 31 December 2014 MIELERER EEHE

148
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26. E LB E ()

Fair value
adjustments
arising from

acquisition of

EEBHEAR

subsidiaries
EWEEKE  Withholding
DAEEN taxes! Others® Total
AVEEE  BARY B @it
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARET T ARET T ARET T
377,688 36,602 60,621 474,911
- (22,689) - (22,689)
(12,524) 16,613 17,891 21,980
365,164 30,526 78,512 474,202
- (25,605) - (25,605)
(15,455) 14,382 20,961 19,888
349,709 19,303 99,473 468,485




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR R E U

Year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A1BLLFE

26. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 26. EER1E (48)

Deferred tax liabilities (continued) FEERHIEEE (8)
Notes: izt -

(0

(i)

For presentation purposes,

Pursuant to the New CIT Law, a 10% withholding tax
is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after
31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may
be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 5% according to
managements’ best estimation. The Group is therefore
liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

In the opinion of the Directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will, in the foreseeable
future, distribute earnings with an aggregate amount
of temporary differences of RMB921,840,000
(2013: RMB634,200,000) associated with investments
in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised at 31 December
2014.

Others mainly arise from temporary differences caused

by capitalised interest and accelerated tax deduction
of property, plant and equipment.

certain deferred

tax assets and liabilities have been offset in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The
following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances
of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

(0

(ii

MRENBENME -

BB EMERE - EP BRI
BIINE (B ERINEIR A EFTEIRA R B
BHRZ10%TEMF - it R E B20084F1
A18 # 4% @A K2007F12831H
?ﬁﬂ@@%‘hﬁﬂqﬂﬂqﬂéﬁi%&é%ﬁﬁ
ALEEEF BB HE - A REE
TR HRIFENF c MAKEME © BRIR
EEEMABEGTERARE A% - E
I NEE BB RA MK E R
FIF200841 A1 H #E B B F 2k H iR
BB -

MR2014F12A31H » EERAETER
4% & KT B A R4 7] B R A 45 R A AT
fE o B 25t & 8 A A K #921,840,000
7t (20134 : A R #634,200,0007T) 49
&éuﬂﬁ TR ERELANELT
BHABBERRTER -

HipF ERE AN S5 B R Z 8
K B KRR IR AL -

ETELERAEEER

BECREEMBEINRNKREHE - ATH

M Z

HE WU AREERREN RS

RETTZ DT

2014 2013

—E-OF —E—=F

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR TR ARBTF T
Net deferred tax assets &R E B T AR 0 2% R
recognised in the consolidated BB RE T IE & B F 5

statement of financial position 54,197 49,546
Net deferred tax liabilities i =y Eﬁf*ﬂﬁ(xﬂ?ﬁﬁﬁw

recognised in the consolidated BRET A B EFE
statement of financial position (465,757) (469,259)
(411,560) (419,713) .
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31HILEFE

27.

28.

INVENTORIES

Store merchandise, at cost or net  JE#i78 @ IR A
realisable value

Low value consumables

EEHEmM

At 31 December 2014, the Group’s inventories
with a carrying amount of RMB17,813,000 (2013:
RMB5,267,000) were carried at fair value less costs
to sell.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

All of the Group’s sales are on a cash basis except
for certain bulk sales of merchandise which are credit
sales. The credit terms offered to customers are
generally one month.

None of the balances of the trade receivables at each
reporting date is either past due or impaired.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables at each
reporting date, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

Within one month —@AR

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 3§

A R A (E

27.

28.

rH
2014 2013
—F-mF ==
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T R AREBETT
322,044 382,096
1,011 1,287
323,055 383,383

M2014F12A831H AEBEREEA
A R #17,813,0007T (20134 : AR ¥
5,267,0007T) MFE + TIER A FER
SHEK A FRETE °

FEW & 5 IR
REFTARERBEREEHEN &
SEFAHEORASEEET BT
EFMEESR—RA—EA -

RERE B RNAERKE SRS H
WEBH - ELFRE -

SEHEKRESRRREZEY
OoMREBRITAT

2014 2013
—E2-mF =F—=
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR® T ARBTT
12,164 13,026
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Year ended 31 December 2014

29. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND

30.

OTHER RECEIVABLES
Group

Value-added tax recoverable
Prepayments to suppliers

Other receivables from suppliers
Prepaid rental and deposits
POS receivables

Interest receivables

Other deposits and receivables

Company

Prepaid rental and deposits

a] U B 3% (B B

1) 44 8 7 B A KR

1] 45 JE 7 L 4tb B UR 5K 1B
BAESRES
POSJE I 3k 18

& U F) &,
Hiviz & & R KE

BNEERkEE

None of the above assets is either past due or
impaired. The financial assets included in the above
balances relate to receivables for which there was no

recent history of default.

STRUCTURED DEPOSITS

Structured deposits in licensed

banks in the PRC, at amortised

cost

R EARKMBEFE
RITOEBMEF
DA SHAK 5T &

HE2014F12A31BILFE
20. FETRIE - REREMEKRRK
b= |

rEE

2014 2013

—E-mF —E—=F

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AREBT T AREFIT

7,081 6,523

22,910 28,035

108,014 97,764

34,280 52,361

31,604 36,355

8,903 30,054

24,838 32,133

237,630 283,225
VNN

2014 2013

—E—-NF —E—=F

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AREBT T AREFIT

228 227

PR EETEBHIRE -

A Lt 4

FRAP O B A A BT HA I S R RO ER Y

FEWRIHE R -

30. EWMUEER

2014 2013
—E-DNF —_E—=
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR® T ARET T
115,000 1,887,000
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31HILEFE

30. STRUCTURED DEPOSITS

31.

(CONTINUED)

These structured deposits have terms of less than
one year and have expected annual rates of return
up to 5.9% (2013: 6.3%). Pursuant to the underlying
contracts or notices, these structured deposits are
capital guaranteed upon the maturity date.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AND RESTRICTED CASH

Group

Cash and bank balances
Time deposits

Be MRTTES
EHTE R

Less: Restricted cash with maturity 3 @ — & R E| H89 F R

date within one year
Restricted cash with maturity

date over one year

Long-term time deposits

at banks

Cash and cash equivalents

Company

Cash and bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents
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—FUENER
FR|BITHRS
EHIF K

RekReFEY

B RRITES

RehBREFED

30. FRMEFER (&)

FEBEFERBERIN —F X%
EHI &S A5.9%H F F X (20134 :
6.3%) - RIFCKBZBFENALN  BLE
BUFFNE BB RRAHE -

NLAERBSEEBYNZIRER

rEE
2014 2013
—2-mEF —F-=%
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR T ARBTT
534,881 436,361
1,677,667 1,131,467
2,212,548 1,567,828
- (400,000)
(227,580) (154,445)
(162,304) (121,460)
1,822,664 891,923
¥ NN
2014 2013
—E-OF —E—=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T R ARET T
29,443 25,568
29,443 25,568




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AND RESTRICTED CASH
(CONTINUED)

The Group’s cash and bank balances and time
deposits at each reporting date are denominated in
the following currencies:

RMB AR
us$ ETT
HK$ BT

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made
for varying periods of between three months and five
years depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective time
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks. The carrying amounts of the cash
and cash equivalents and time deposits approximate
to their fair values.

Pursuant to the relevant rules and regulations
issued by the Ministry of Commerce of the People’s
Republic of China, the Group was required to deposit
bank balances (or through issuing the letter of bank
guarantee to deposit) in the Group’s designated
accounts, which amount was no less than 30%
of the balance of advances from customers for
sales of prepaid cards. As at 31 December 2014,
certain of the Group’s restricted cash amounted
to RMB100,396,000 (2013: RMB554,445,000)
represents the above balances deposited in the
Group’s designated accounts.

As at 31 December 2014, certain of the Group’s
restricted cash amounted to RMB127,184,000 (2013:
Nil) were pledged to banks for bank loans facilities
granted to the Group as disclosed in note 33.

B 7% ¥R 2R Y 5

Year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A1BLLFE

M1LRAERAESEEY (&)

AEERZHRE BHNR S RRITEH
REBFRE T EEFE :

2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AREBT T AR¥BFIT
1,970,079 1,453,223
205,307 45,678
37,162 68,927
2,212,548 1,567,828

F175 FURIE ST B RITH HF R B
IBHFE - EHERE=EAEEEH
RAE . BT AEENEEESBRA
T IR A T E T HOR K B R
B RITEBEAREBRT -BER
BeSEY THTRNEABELA
AL -

RIE A AR A3 pg 75 20 08 2 M A8 RS
EHCAEBFEGEA(KBBRESIRT
REAER) FTLPREERNTERNER
FHMRIESHTEIORH N EREBIET
R P - R2014%12H31H » K& B A
R #100,396,0007T (20134 : AR
554,445,00070) X REEESEF A
SEMETERR -

MR2014F12A31H  AEE AR
127,184,0007T (20134 : ) TR &
MESEERRRITIEAR TASEER
TR ER - WK ES3IE -
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31HILEFE

32.

33.

SHORT-TERM FINANCING NOTES

On 29 March 2013, the Group issued its short-term
financing notes at par value of RMB900 million in the
national inter-bank market in the PRC. The nominal
interest rate is 4.59% per annum and the effective
interest rate is 5.01% per annum. The principal
together with the interest thereon were fully paid on
29 March 2014.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK

BORROWINGS

Bank loans: IRITER
Secured BER
Unsecured IR

Bank loans repayable:

Within one year or on demand —E AR
Over one year but within —FUEERER
two years
Over two years but within MEAEEBRER
five years
Total bank borrowings RITE KRB
Less: Portion classified as current & : DA RE A EA:
liabilities
Long-term portion REIE o

Bank loans bear interest at fixed rates or floating
rates.

The Group’s bank loans bore effective interest rates
from 1.9% to 2.6% per annum as at 31 December
2014 and 1.4% to 6.0% per annum as at
31 December 2013.

As at 31 December 2014, certain of the Group’s
restricted cash amounted to RMB127,184,000 (2013:
Nil) were pledged to banks for bank loans facilities
granted to the Group.
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FEEERITENR

32. EHImE %

R2013F 3298, KEEEH HIETTH
MEHTTEmEBEBARKEIOEE T
REHRES BEFFEEL59% -
BEEENRES01% - LR & HF) B &
RA%E B R2014F3 290 28X it »

33. 5T ERITER
2014 2013
—E—-F —T—=4%F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR TR ARET T
391,731 =
2,202,488 1,933,480
2,594,219 1,933,480
299,887 941,268
737,953 308,303
1,556,379 683,909
2,594,219 1,933,480
2,594,219 1,933,480

o

(299,887) (941,268)
2,294,332 992,212

RITEFIREEN K FEB KL -

H2014F 12 A1 B AL BMIEITERE
W R R BH1.9%E2.6% K% E2013512

AB1HH1.4%%E6.0% °

MN2014F12A31H - AEE AR
127,184,0007T (20134 : ) TR &
BESEBERRRTEAR TAREER

TTHE KRR ©



33.

34.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTEREST-BEARING BANK
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
The Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings at

each reporting date are denominated in the following
currencies:

RMB AR
us$ ETT
HK$ BT
TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables at
each reporting date, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

Within three months =@ARN

Over three months but within =@ A LA EEBREAR
six months

Over six months but NEAANK EE—FR
within one year

Over one year —F AL

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on terms of up to 60 days.

B 7% ¥R 2R Y 5

Year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A1BLLFE

33. 5t B R IT AR (&)

AREBEREHRE B RN BRITERZ
THE®BEE :

2014 2013
—E-NF —_ZE—=
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARBTT

- 1,000
2,091,421 1,543,736
502,798 388,744
2,594,219 1,933,480

MNENEZREREBNRE
REWEBMENESREREN R
REEEMRRANAT -

2014 2013
=F-MmF —E—=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARBETT

943,263 1,022,658
84,998 64,100
62,650 34,164
27,829 41,877

1,118,740 1,162,799

ENESREY /RS BBEAECORA

+ 3
B o
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31HILEFE

35. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Payables to suppliers’ employees

Deposits from suppliers
Value-added taxes
Other tax payable

Payable for capital expenditure

Payable for staff costs
Bonus point liabilities

Advances from customers

Payable for acquisition of
a joint venture

Payable for acquisition of
a subsidiary

Amount due to an associate

Payable for acquisition of

non-controlling interests

Interest payable
Dividends payable
Other payables

FENS B P B B 3R
HERRE

AR

H & 5 B TR

e B AR X
JERT B TARA

BBV AERE
EPENRE
WiE—HEEERENIA

U 8 — B /B8 2 B FE AN SR IR

J& Bt & X R R0R

Ust I 2 A o B N 30 0R

P8
FERTRR
Ho At F& A 3R

The above balances are unsecured and non-interest-

bearing.

36. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS

Forward currency contracts

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 3§

36.

35. Htt B RIE R BT E

2014 2013
—E-—MF —FT—=
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARE T AREEF T
15,915 17,490
75,319 77,055
11,898 50,018
31,287 34,033
74,977 220,445
169,156 175,075
31,282 46,300
1,290,892 1,515,002
18,498 18,431
- 4,599
14,795 =
1,000 -
11,665 5,100
108 =
80,913 65,242
1,827,705 2,228,790
g T EEEW R E o
fTES®MIT A
2014 2013
—F-OF —F=%
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®E T AREEF T
389 =




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37.LONG-TERM PAYABLES

Long-term portion of accrued
rental expenses i

Put options to non-controlling BT IEERAR R AR
shareholders © o ER O

Note:

(i) Put options were granted to certain non-controlling
shareholders of a subsidiary to sell their equity interest
in the subsidiary to the Group at a pre-determined
price in connection with the acquisition of the
subsidiary in November 2009. The put options are
exercisable from 1 January 2010 and have no expiry
date. Holders of the put options need to notify the
Group of the exercise of the options in written form
before November of a calendar year and the Group
has to complete the required transaction and pay
the non-controlling shareholders before 1 May of the
year subsequent to the year in which the notice of
the exercise of put options is received. The balance
represents the present value of amounts payable by
the Group to acquire the non-controlling interests as
if the non-controlling interests were fully acquired at
each of the reporting dates.

EtHEERA RS

(i)

B 7% ¥R 2R Y 5

Year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A1BLLFE

37. RHIE IR

2014 2013
—F-mF ==
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T R ARBTT
43,784 32,799
271,111 267,530
314,895 300,329

Bt

B2009F 11 A —MWBARIME -
BERZMBARSE TIEEBRBRRE TR
HEE BRSUIRECERENASEE
& H A AE o ROH HI A R 20104F1 A1
BRI T - WEFIHA - RO R
BABRBEBEFEI1AZRILEEBAA
SETFERGHESE  AEBEEAR
R ITE R EBANNFEERFS5A1
H 2 BISEAKFT 75 A2 5 & A SE4% AR A% 3R 1+
Koo ERIEAEBEURE IR RIS E
NRBEREEB LR EERS B
WEEFT Bz SR it -
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31HILEFE

38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES,
OPERATING LEASE
ARRANGEMENTS AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENTS

(@) Operating lease arrangements
Group as lessee

The Group leases certain of its land and
buildings under operating lease arrangements
with lease terms ranging from one to twenty
years.

At 31 December 2014, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

. HAREE  CEHEZTHRE
AN

(a)

follows:

Within one year —F A

In the second to fifth years, F - EZEFRHF(BEEEMF)
inclusive

After five years AFMNE

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 3§

KEeBERH

A& EFERAMHA
AEBEKELEHERHEERT
Tk HHA—E=_TF-

MN2014512831H - KEERET
ATRGEE L REN A RREENE
ST ¢

2014 2013
=F-AF —E—=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARBETT

95,743 72,720
398,120 396,683
1,021,315 1,213,010
1,515,178 1,682,413
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A1BLLFE

38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES,
OPERATING LEASE
ARRANGEMENTS AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Operating lease arrangements (continued)
Group as lessor

The Group leases out certain of its land and
buildings under operating lease arrangements
with lease terms ranging from one to twenty
years.

At 31 December 2014, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under

ARAEYE ()

(a) BREHERG (H)
A& EFER LA

B.HAREE  CEHEZTHRE

AEERBELEMEERHHEET
Tk HHA—E=_TF-

MN2014512831H - KEERET
RIS A 2 E B R TR AR A FE U AR

non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants SREIE -
falling due as follows:
2014 2013
—E—MmF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR® TR ARET T
Within one year —F R 121,154 54,390
In the second to fifth years, HF - EZEFRHF(BHEEEMF)
inclusive 132,421 90,970
After five years FEFEME 51,796 57,602
305,371 202,962
Capital commitments (b) B AEIE
2014 2013
—E-DNF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR TR ARET T
Contracted, but not BB RBEE
provided for:
Property, plant and Y BB KRB
equipment 1,313,603 1,063,642
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31HILEFE

39. ISSUED CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(@) Issued capital
Authorised

Ordinary shares

L

Ordinary shares issued and fully paid

As at 1 January 2013

Shares repurchased
and cancelled

As at 31 December 20183,
and 1 January 2014

Shares repurchased
and cancelled

As at 31 December 2014

160 ANNUAL REPORT 2014 455

R2013%F1 818

% 32 B8 () A0 3 85

M2013%F12HA31H &
20141818

% 3% % [0 70 5E 85

MR2014F12H31H

39. ERITRAK B

(a) BEITRAX
JETE
2014
No. of shares at
HK$0.01 each

2013

No. of shares at
HK$0.01 each

Thousands Thousands

—E-mF —ET—=F

BREE FREEB

0.018 T 0.01 7T

HERGHE ol R 6

TR T

10,000,000 10,000,000

BEZETRHEZHK

No. of shares at
HK$0.01 each
Thousands
SREE
0.01%8 Ty

f&1h g2 RMB’ 000

Tz ARBETF T

2,500,000 21,589

(2,104) (17)

2,497,896 21,672

(37,196) (323)

2,460,700 21,249




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39.I1SSUED CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Issued capital (Continued)

During the year, the Company repurchased its
own shares through the Stock Exchange as
follows:

B 7% ¥R 2R Y 5

Year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A1BLLFE

39. B BRITRAK &% (&)

(a) BBETRA(E)

RAREE  NRRBE B FAERE
ARRMDEAT

No. of shares at Price per share Aggregate

HK$0.01 each BRRE Aggregate consideration

Thousands Highest Lowest consideration equivalent to

SREE B& 5337 BRE HERERE

Month of repurchase 0.01& L HK$ HK$ HK$’ 000 RMB’ 000

B A4 RO BE BT BT TET ARETRT
TR

January 2014 2014F1H 8,086 3.96 3.82 31,695 24,920

April 2014 201454HR 3,951 3.19 2.91 12,451 9,889

May 2014 2014F5H 17,521 3.13 2.57 49,718 39,564

June 2014 2014%6 A 7,438 2.99 2.87 21,862 17,353

July 2014 201457 200 3.25 3.21 647 515

37,196 116,373 92,241

October 2014 2014108 315 2.87 2.87 906 718

December 2014 2014%F12 3 11,605 2.70 2.46 30,663 24,188

11,920 31,569 24,906

49,116 147,942 117,147

The Company repurchased 49,116,000
shares during the year ended 31 December
2014. The nominal value of approximately
HK$491,000, equivalent to RMB425,000
(2013: HK$20,000, equivalent to RMB17,000)
was credited to treasury shares account, and
the premium paid or payable and the related
costs incurred for the share repurchase of
approximately HK$147,451,000, equivalent
to RMB116,722,000 (2013: HK$8,227,000,
equivalent to RMB6,485,000) was charged
against share premium account of the Company.

H E2014F12A31H IEFE * &K
A 7 B 49,116,0000% B = - J& K

R #425,0007T (20134 : 20,000
BT HE R AR®17,0000T) B
FAEFREEFE - kD5
ENENNREREENIER
X 7R #9147,451,0007 7T B E R
A R #116,722,0007T (20134 :
8,227,000 7t - HHE R AR
6,485,0007T) B st AR A R BR 1904
BEERF -
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31HILEFE

39. ISSUED CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Issued capital (Continued)

Included in the repurchased shares, 37,196,000
shares were cancelled during the year ended
31 December 2014. The nominal value of
approximately HK$372,000, equivalent to
RMB323,000 (2013: HK$20,000, equivalent to
RMB17,000), was credited to issued capital
account from treasury shares accounts.

The remaining 11,920,000 shares were not
cancelled and still recognised as treasury shares
as at 31 December 2014. The nominal value
was approximately HK$119,000, equivalent to
RMB102,000 (2013: Nil).

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus represents the difference
between (i) the Company’s cost of investments
in the subsidiaries that were acquired via a
business combination under common control
in the prior year and (i) the aggregate of the
nominal values of the paid-up capital of these
subsidiaries upon acquisition.

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the
PRC and the respective articles of association
of the PRC Subsidiaries, each of the PRC
Subsidiaries is required to allocate 10% of its
profit after tax, as determined in accordance
with PRC GAAP, to the statutory surplus reserve
(the “SSR”) until this reserve reaches 50% of its
registered capital.

The SSR is non-distributable except in the
event of a liquidation and, subject to certain
restrictions set out in the relevant PRC
regulations, can be used to offset accumulated
losses or be capitalised as paid-up capital.
However, the balance of the statutory reserve
fund must be maintained at a minimum of 25%
of the registered capital after these usages.
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39. B BRITRAK &% (&)

(a) ERITRAE (&)

B E2014F12A31H EFE ' @
B2 IX 2= R 1937,196,0000% & & #E
B IRANEE A A372,0007% T ¢
HERAREES323,0007T (20134 :
20,000 7T+ #8&E R A K #17,000
JC) HEFERIRPE A B BITRA -

R2014%F12 A31H

11,920,0000% & K ) 85 © I3 R
BEFR - BRAEEL A119,000
Bt HE R AR®102,0007T

(2013 : f&®) o

(b) EHE

ERRREOARAERE BHAME
Z AR B R R R IR 156 pF B R
P /B8 2 ) B 4% B A 7S (i) e 8 By 2%
EFMB AR E MR AR EAEN

E8 e

() ZELES

RIEFEAFDERPEMEQES
BHAEBER  FENEBARAER/
HEr B &R N H10% (REBEHEQ
RENERNEE) PEEEELTE
e (DEERER])  BEEZRF
TEHHEEHEMEARNE0% -

FEERBERRBRERIITA S
& HEEEBT AT BIARAMEA
HETRH TR AREHERTEREX
BERMEREHER - BERERHE
BiR RATLAHEER/HRARKEERE

L EFMEARN25% o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %% i a MY =

Year ended 31 December 2014

39.I1SSUED CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Discretionary reserve

(e)

In accordance with the Company Law of the
PRC and the respective articles of association
of the PRC Subsidiaries, certain of the PRC
Subsidiaries transferred a certain percentage
of their profit after tax, at the discretion of the
PRC Subsidiaries’ boards of directors, to the
discretionary reserve. The discretionary reserve
can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to
increase the registered capital.

HE2014F12A31BILFE

39. B BRITRAK &% (&)

(d) BERE

R ERFDER D EK B R ES
EMAERER  ETHEMNEBERA
ERERBREMNOREB D (B
EXeMEET) ERBERHE - BB
AT AN EEBEFRENEER
IEINFEME A -

Company (e) &xAF
Exchange
Share fluctuation Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
RORE EXRDEE R BR #E
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARETT AR®TR ARBTRT ARETR
At 1 January 2013 R2013F1 418 1,983,792 (229,625) (24,263) 1,729,904
Total comprehensive income FEXEUERE
for the year - (51,691) (844) (52,535)
Interim 2013 dividend 2013F H EfE 8 (198,780) - - (198,780)
Repurchase of shares R (6,485) - - (6,485)
Proposed final 2013 dividend R #2013F
RARE (167,235) - - (167,235)
At 31 December 2013 and #®2013F12H31H
1 January 2014 %2014%F1A18 1,611,292 (281,316) (25,107) 1,304,869
Total comprehensive income FEXENERE
for the year - 7,446 (3,021) 4,425
Final 2013 dividend declared EE 20134
KRS 349 - - 349
Interim 2014 dividend 2014F RTS8 (156,274) - - (156,274)
Repurchase of shares REEE (116,722) - - (116,722)
Proposed final 2014 dividend R E20145F
RERRE (174,244) - - (174,244)
At 31 December 2014 R2014512H31H 1,164,401 (273,670) (28,128) 862,403
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Year ended 31 December 2014
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40. ASSETS OF A DISPOSAL GROUP

41.

CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
AND DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED
LIABILITIES

At the acquisition date of Yangzhou Fengxiang
in the year 2012, the Group decided to
dispose of certain non-current assets and a
subsidiary company acquired from that business
combination, which are not relevant to the principal
operation of the Group. According to IFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations, the Group classified these non-current
assets and the subsidiary company as held for sale at
the acquisition date and measured them at fair values
less costs to sell.

During the year 2013, the Group had disposed of part
of these held for sale non-current assets amounting
to RMB6,000,000. The Group did not change the
intention of selling the rest of the subsidiary company,
and they were still classified as held for sale. As at 31
December 2014, the disposal of the rest of the held
for sale subsidiary company were still in progress.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the
Group had the following material transactions with
related parties during the year:

(@) Transactions with related parties

On 15 April 20183, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, Jiangsu Springland
International Holding (Group) Ltd. (“Jiangsu
Springland”) purchased a financial product (the
“Financial Product”) from China Construction
Bank Corporation Wuxi Chengbei Branch for
RMB200,000,000 maturing on 17 April 2014.
However, a balance of RMB180,000,000
remained outstanding under the Financial
Product after the maturity on 17 April 2014. In
the course of enquires with the bank, it was
discovered that a pledge has been registered
on a one year fixed deposit of RMB100,000,000
with China Construction Bank Corporation Wuxi
Yingbin Branch, which is placed in January
2014, by an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, Wuxi Xishan Yaohan Lifestyle
Center Co., Ltd. (“Xishan Yaohan”), with an
interest rate equal to 3.25% per annum (the
“Deposit”), payable upon maturity.
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0. CRIEREXBIERABTER

41.

EEENEEBABRAR

R2012FWBHMEF 2 AL A&
BRERER THRAREBAHTDER
B BEASEFEXBEEN  FAD
BER—FKTRAA - KIEBKRBBHRS
HRIESSEAF B 1 EH R EER B
BEXRF  ANEBERZERRDEER
MBRRARNEERE D RRERERE
YRR FEERBEEXAGTE -

R2013F B AEBEEB AT AR
6,000,000t FEFEIERDEESEH
WEENEHEHRT TRAINER @ b
MNEEREAFEGFEEE - 12014
F12A31H  # T HESGFETARNE
BERBNEETH o

BELTRS
BRI RE L EHRBENR B

B AEBAFEEES BN TFEA
%%

(a) EHEEANKS

R2013F4 A15H » /T %k Z 3h B (R
TR EE AR AR (CLEREM]) -
AAREEEENEAR - [P EH
EHRRITKRMDAER QG EHE I
SITHEE AREASTH IR E @
(BB EM]) » WR20145F4 817
BEIH - AmerzE B ARE18E
IR BT E @R 2014F4 178 B 87
BEARWE - ERBITHERBE
o N EEIBEGGILN\EEEE
BisaRAR ([HLUE*E]) - K
NEIEEEEN B AT 20145
1ATERR TR RERBRITROER
NeEHNE L T2 AREAETT
FUW K A£3.25%H — FHF H1F
ROITEHERD) BEEHER -
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A1BLLFE

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(@) Transactions with related parties

M BEIRS (&)

(a) REEFHXS (H)

(continued)

On 30 April 2014, to prevent possible losses
and incurrence of further time and costs by the
Group, Jiangsu Springland and Xishan Yaohan
as sellers entered into an agreement with Mr.
Chen Jiangiang (the “Controlling Shareholder”)
as purchaser, whereby Jiangsu Springland
agreed to dispose of the Financial Product to the
Controlling Shareholder for a cash consideration
equal to RMB180,000,000 and Xishan Yaohan
agreed to dispose the Deposit to the Controlling
Shareholder for a cash consideration equal to
RMB100,000,000. The considerations were
determined after considering the costs paid by
Jiangsu Springland for the Financial Product and
Xishan Yaohan for the Deposit, respectively. The
considerations shall be paid by the Controlling
Shareholder on/before 31 December 2014.

During the year ended 31 December 2014,
RMB98,000,000 of the considerations was
paid by the Controlling Shareholder and
the outstanding considerations due from
the Controlling Shareholder amounted to
RMB182,000,000 as at 31 December 2014.
On 16 December 2014, Jiangsu Springland,
Xishan Yaohan and the Controlling Shareholder
entered into a supplemental agreement whereby
the outstanding consideration became interest
bearing at a rate of 3.5% per annum from
1 January 2015 and the payment date was
extended to 31 December 2016.

20144 A30H @ At & AN & E
AREELETAEBANARELEES
MERMER  TaFRERME LN
BEAIEAE B ERRER T A ([1E%
BENDIEEE FRI e - TERE
o [E B MR AR B E AR
B8R ERMERKBILNAA
HRE AR R IR S HEET
HETHTR HEDER I&HE
AR E RN E SRS L NAEFT
WEBEHRAMAZ AR AEET -
BREAERKERR2014512H31H
RIS o

HZE2014F12831H It F & -
THRBEREIZINEHEARK
98,000,0007T * K20144F12 A31
H Y EL&HRBERIZBRBERAEA
R #182,000,0007T ° FA20144F 12
RA16H - T I - 8510\ (A e
EIRIRRET L - HEER
20151 A1 8 £ 5 X fF F 7 R
3.5%F) 8 KA B BHERZE2016%F
128318 °
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31HILEFE

41.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties

Due from the Controlling

JRE M5 22 BB SR SR TR

Shareholder

Loan to a joint venture

Amounts due to

RETELERANE

JE AT B 8 2 ) UR

an associate

(i

(ii)

As disclosed above, the Group had an
outstanding balance due from the Controlling
Shareholder of RMB182,000,000 as at 31
December 2014 (2013: Nil). This balance is
unsecured, bears interest at a rate of 3.5%
from 1 January 2015 and shall be repaid on/
before 31 December 2016.

As disclosed above, the Group had an
outstanding balance of a loan to a joint
venture of RMB30,000,000 as at 31
December 2014 (2013: Nil). This balance is
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed
terms of repayment.

Included in the other payables and
accruals account, the Group had an
outstanding balance due to an associate
of RMB14,795,000 as at 31 December
2014 (2013: Nil). This balance is unsecured,
interest-free and has no fixed terms of
repayment.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 3§

M BEIRS (&)

(b) ERBAET HYAEER

31 December

31 December

2014 2013
20145 20134
12H31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARBET T
182,000 =
30,000 =
(14,795) =

(ii

(i)

IR E I E - AEER2014
F12 8318 FE U B% A% 1 3K
H A AR182,000,0005T
(20134 : 4&) o Ll gRrZETIEE
IR - 52015F1 A1 HRFF
X 53.5%H E 20166127
B1HZZRIEE °

KiE Eil R - ANEER2014
F12A31MHRETETFTEERAFM
B 3k gk 5 A R #30,000,000
JC (20134 : #) o FiisrEETY
IR BB REETERY
BR o

KEBN20145FE12831H &
SHEEMENRRESERT
MEMNBEARRBAARKE
14,795,0007T (20134 : #&) °
LugrEE T ERE 28 BE
EEERER -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

(c) Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group

Short-term employee benefits & 2 {E S % FAl

Post-employment benefits BRE

Total compensation paid TG EEERAS
to key management O % B 48 58
personnel

Further details of directors’ and the chief
executive’s emoluments are included in note 11
to the financial statements.

B 7% ¥R 2R Y 5

Year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A1BLLFE

M BEIRS (&)

(c) AEEFTEREBAESNTHMH

2014 2013
—E-DNF —F—=
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARETT

7,828 6,928
244 228
8,072 7,156

REBEEERITHRAHFIOE—
FREBRMBRRMFTIHE -

42. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 42. At B A Bl RE &=

Company VNN |
2014 2013
—E-F —F—=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR T AREF T
Unlisted shares, at cost B AFHEMNIELETRG - -
Loans to subsidiaries REFHBAFTHER 1,028,123 1,467,881
1,028,123 1,467,881

The amounts advanced to the subsidiaries included
in the interests in subsidiaries above are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.
In the opinion of the directors, these advances are
considered as part of the Company’s investments in
its subsidiaries.

FAALAMERRRENBNHE AR
BIRIATSEER - 28 REREEERY
BR-EZRRZEERARBAREY
B ARIREN—&D

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  #th BB 1% AR G BR A &

167



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥R AR Y 5

Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31HILEFE

42. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

168

(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Group are as

42. R B A AR (F)

AEETEMBEARFBET :

follows:
Percentage
Place and date of Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/ issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operations share capital Company Principal
Name HEMAL/ BILK BRfT/ BT AEBEL activities
AAER KEwHRAH SERRAHE BEEDL TEEHR
Springland International Group BVI US$1 100% Investment holding
Company Limited @ 12 June 2006 E REER
EmEREEBR A7) EREUHES
200656 H12H
Cleavebury Limited © Hong Kong HK$1 100% Investment holding
25 January 2006 1AL RERR
BB
20065 1H25H
Novel Vanguard Investment Limited @ BVI US$1 100%  Investment holding
MBRERR AR 21 November 2011 1% REZKR
ERELHS
201111 A21H
Sonton Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$38,000,000 100%  Investment holding
RACERBERARY 17 June 1993 38,000,000% 7T RERR
BB
1993F6A17H
Jiangsu Springland International PRC/Mainland China  US$360,000,000 100% Investment holding
Holdings (Group) Ltd. 12 February 1996 360,000,0003% T REER
TEEMRRZREBFR AR B/ R
199625128
Shanghai Springland Enterprise PRC/Mainland China  RMB100,000,000 100% Investment holding
Investment Co., Ltd. @ 6 November 1996 AR REZR
TERENCEREFRAFO mE /B 100,000,0007%
199611 H6H
Changshu Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @@ 29 July 2004 ARE department stores
BANEHEERRAROW B/ HRE R 20,000,0007T KEREE
200447 H29H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(CONTINUED)

42. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Group are as

follows: (continued)

B 7% ¥R 2R Y 5

Year ended 31 December 2014

HE2014F12A31BILFE

42. R B A AR (F)

ZS-S

]

TEMBARFENT - (&)

Percentage
Place and date of Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/ issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operations share capital Company Principal
Name HEMRL RILR BERT/ER KE@ERS activities
ARER KEHERAN SERRAHE BEASL TEER
Danyang Springland Department Store PRC/Mainland China RMB60,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 17 March 2004 AR department stores
REERBEEERATY hE/RERN 60,000,0007T BEBEE
200453 H17H
Jiangsu Datonghua Shopping Centre PRC/Mainland China RMB35,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 14 March 2001 AR supermarkets
IHEAGERYROERD O HE/RE R 35,000,0007T mEBm
20013 A14H
Jiangyin Springland Department Store PRC/Mainland China  RMB130,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd.® 5 June 2003 AR department stores
TIREHNBEERARO HE/HREMNM  130,000,0007 and supermarkets
2003F6A5H KEREE
i
Jintan Datonghua Shopping Centre PRC/Mainland China  RMB215,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 17 April 2003 AR department stores
SEAFEBMFLERAAP B/ E R 215,000,000 and supermarkets
2003F4A17H BREBEE
gl
Liyang Datonghua Shopping Centre PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB10,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 28 June 2002 AR supermarkets
REEAGERYROERD A HE/RE N 10,000,0007T mEBm
20026 H28H
Liyang Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China  RMB110,000,000 100% Operation of
Centre Co., Ltd. ¥ 29 April 2002 ARE department stores
EENEHEEROERD A HE/RE N 110,000,0007¢ BEBEE
200244 A29H

Liyang No.1 Department Store
Co., Ltd. @
EHmHRAE—ERRARY

PRC/Mainland China
22 May 2001
HE/HE R
200145 H22H

RMB1,225,000
AR®
1,225,0007C

100% Property holding
RENE

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  #th BB 12 i A fR A &

169




170

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31HILEFE

42.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Group are as
follows: (continued)

42. R B A AR (F)

ZS-S

]

TEMBARFENT - (&)

Percentage
Place and date of Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/ issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operations share capital Company Principal
Name HEMRL RILR BRI/ ER AEBELN activities
ARER RewBRAHE ETERRAEE BEASL TEEK
Ma’anshan Yaohan Trading Center PRC/Mainland China  RMB141,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 22 August 2008 AR department stores
BRUNEHEEERAA RE /B A 141,000,0007¢ BEREE
200848 H22H
Wuxi Springland Investment PRC/Mainland China  RMB490,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co., Ltd. ® 15 April 1980 AR REER
BHENREEEERAF RE /B A 490,000,0007%
19804 H15R
Wuxi Angexin Technology Co., Ltd. © PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 100% Provision of
BHTERENBRERRAC 27 July 2006 AR technology service
hE /R E R 5,000,0007T RS AR
200647 H27H
Wuxi Datonghua Shopping Co., Ltd. “ PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100% Operation of
EHAGERYBRAFY 25 September 2006 AR supermarkets
hE /R E R 20,000,0007% il
20069 H25H
Wuxi Huiquan Logistics Co., Ltd. © PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100% Provision of
BHEXMRERAF 26 March 2007 AR logistics service
hE /R E R 10,000,000 REDT RS
200743 H26H
Wuxi Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China  RMB301,911,000 100% Operation of
Centre Co., Ltd. 25 March 1994 AR department stores
BE \EHEEERLOERARY mE/HREANM 301,911,000 BEREE
199463 H25R
Wuxi Yuandongli Consulting Co., Ltd. © PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 100% Provision of
EHRENEABRARO 26 April 2006 AR consultation service
hE /R E R 2,000,0007T REEARS
20064 H26H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(CONTINUED)

42. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Group are as

follows: (continued)

B 7% ¥R 2R Y 5

Year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A1BLLFE

42. R B A AR (F)

ZS-S

i)

TEMBARFENT - (&)

Percentage
Place and date of Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/ issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operations share capital Company Principal
Name HEMRL RILR BERT/ER KE@ERS activities
ARER RewBRAHE ETERRAEE BEASL TEEH
Yixing Springland Department Store PRC/Mainland China RMB80,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 24 May 2000 ARE department stores
HEZEWAERERADAC hE/RERN 80,000,0007T BEREE
200045 H24H
Yixing Housa Plaza Co., Ltd. @ PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 100% Operation of
HEMMEERERAR 13 February 2004 ARE department stores
R B/ R E R 30,000,0007T BRERER
200452 A13H
Zhenjiang Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China  RMB350,000,000 100% Operation of
Center Co., Ltd. @ 28 August 2006 AR department stores
EIMNEHEEARAFY B/ E A 350,000,000 and supermarkets
20068 A28H BREBEE
R
Nantong Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China RMB31,938,786 58.08% Operation of
Joint Stock Company Limited 16 September 1993 ARE department stores
mENEHEEROER AR RE /B A 31,938,7867C BEREE
1993F9H16R
Nantong Boda Tengfei Advertising PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 52.27% Provision of
Co., Ltd. @ 19 January 2006 AR advertising service
HREABERESERAR R/ RE R 500,0007T RERE SRS
20061 H19H
Changxing Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China RMB75,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 17 November 2009 AR department stores
RENEHEBERAAY B/ E R 75,000,0007T and supermarkets
2009411 A178 BEREER
Hm
Taixing Datonghua Shopping Center PRC/Mainland China  RMB10,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 2 December 2010 AR supermarkets
REMAREBRDRLERAFY RE /BN 10,000,000 mEBm
2010%12A2H
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31HILEFE

42. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Group are as

follows: (continued)

42. R B A AR (F)

ZS-S

i)

TEMBARFENT - (&)

Percentage
Place and date of Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/ issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operations share capital Company Principal
Name HEMRL RILR BERT/ER KE@ERS activities
ARER RewBRAYH EERREAEE BEASL TEEH
Changzhou Yaohan Department Store PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 17 September 2010 ARE department stores
FMNEHEEEERA A REL R E A 10,000,0007T and supermarkets
201069A17H BEBEER
iyl
Nanjing Datonghua City-Supermarket PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 14 September 2010 ARE supermarkets
BRAGERTBHARD A 00 hE/RE R 3,000,0007¢ gEBm
2010694 14H
Anging Yuexin Xinglida Real Estate PRC/Mainland China  RMB130,000,000 100% Property holding
Development Co., Ltd. ¢ 8 February 2007 AR RENE
ZEHGCRNEEHEREZEREARAY HE/RERN 130,000,000
200792 A8H
Xuancheng Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China  RMB153,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 1 September 2011 ARE department stores
ERNEHEBEERAAY B/ E R 153,000,0007T and supermarkets
201149718 BEREBER
T
Jiangsu Green Land Agriculture PRC/Mainland China RMB5,100,000 100% Supply of vegetables
Technology Development Co., Ltd. 23 August 2011 ARE fHEB %
THAE B ERBERER DAY hE/RE R 5,100,0007
201148 423H
Yangzhou Fengxiang Commerce PRC/Mainland China US$10,000,000 55% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 28 June 1993 10,000,000% 7T department stores
BMNEBHEEEFERRAY B/ E R BEREE
1993F6 H28H
Jiaxing Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China  RMB624,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. 11 September 2012 AR department stores
. =EN\EHHEERAR B/ E R 624,000,0007 and supermarket
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR R E U

Year ended 31 December 2014

HZE2014F12A31HILFE
42.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 2. RME AR N ER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Group are as NREFBFERBAFGBENOT : (&)
follows: (continued)
Percentage
Place and date of Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/ issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operations share capital Company Principal
Name HEMRL RILR BRI/ ER AEBELN activities
NEER RewBRAHE ETERRAEE ERASH TEEK
Nanjing Yaohan Commerce & PRC/Mainland China RMB19,000,000 100% Operation of
Trade Co., Ltd.® 5 November 2007 AR department stores
EMRNEHEEERARY RE /R E R 19,000,0007T KEBER
200711 A5H
Wuxi BeitangDatonghua Shopping PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB10,000,000 100% Operation of
Center Co., Ltd. @ 21June 2013 AR supermarkets
BHLBAGEBNER A mE/ BN 10,000,0007¢ meBm
2013F6H21H
Wuxi Xishan Yaohan Lifestyle PRC/Mainland China  US$102,040,000 100% Operation of
Center Co., Ltd.® 14 August 2013 102,040,000% T department stores
EHBUNEHEEETESERARR R/ R E R MEBEE
2013F8H14H
Wuhu Yaohan Lifestyle PRC/Mainland China  RMB400,000,000 100% Operation of
Center Co., Ltd.@ 10 December 2014 AR department stores
ERNAHEEEESARLOFP B/ R E R 400,000,0007T LERER
2014512 A10H
(a) Except for Springland International Group Company @ BELEREEARIARNERER
Limited and Novel Vanguard Investment Limited, which RABAADAERERI LA
are directly owned by the Company, all of the above EEATHRARABEREENHBA
Group companies are indirectly owned subsidiaries of Al °
the Company.
(b) On 23 May 2014, the company’s name was changed (b) B’\2014¢5H235 aZ’A ] % 78 A
from Changshu Springland Department Store Co., EMBEEARAREEAEA NGRS
Ltd. (FAZEHWBHEABR2AR]) to Changshu Yaohan BHBRAA o
Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd. (F#/\BHEE AR A7)
(c) The subsidiary was liquidated by the Group during the (c) EZE2014F12A31HILFE - ZHERQ
year ended 31 December 2014. RIEHEBEEE -
(d) Types of legal entities: (d) EEERER:
M Wholly-foreign-owned enterprise O 2EIIEBEEDE
@ Sino-foreign equity joint venture @ RIS ERE
@ Limited liability company invested by a foreign B HIERECERENEREE
invested enterprise N
@ Limited liability company @ BREFAH
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31HILEFE

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY

43. ZBAETWEMT R

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of REHREHE  SESH TENERE
financial instruments at each reporting date are as (N
follows:
31 December 2014 2014%F12H31H
Group ~E
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets
at fair value
through profit
or loss - Held Available-
for trading for-sale
BAYE Loans and financial
sTAERE  receivables assets
MeEmEE- EXR A HE Total
BEXS g SREE @t
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR AR®BTR ARETR
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE - - 110 110
Trade receivables B & 558 - 12,164 - 12,164
Due from the Controlling JE W2 B B R SR
Shareholder - 182,000 - 182,000
Financial assets included in FABMNKE - &E
prepayments, deposits R MR
and other receivables NeRMEE - 173,359 - 173,359
Structured deposits HEREER - 115,000 - 115,000
Restricted cash XREKES - 227,580 - 227,580
Long-term time deposits FRIFITHRE
at banks EHER - 162,304 - 162,304
Derivative financial instruments fTESRMIA 389 - - 389
Cash and cash equivalents BehBEEEY - 1,822,664 - 1,822,664
389 2,695,071 110 2,695,570
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %% i a MY =

Year ended 31 December 2014

HZE2014F12A31HILFE
43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 43. ZERIE s HWERM T A (&)
CATEGORY (CONTINUED)
Financial liabilities N
Financial
liabilities
at fair value
through profit Financial
or loss - held liabilities at
for trading amortised
BAYE cost
TABEE  REHRAE
MemBaE- ERELY Total
BERS tREE @
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT AR¥Tx ARBT
Trade and bills payables EREZFRERENEE - 1,118,740 1,118,740
Financial liabilities included in other FARMERTIER
payables and accruals EABRANSBAE - 293,190 293,190
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FBRITIER - 2,504,219 2,594,219
Financial liabilities included in long-term AR BEMAFIER
payables TRAE - 271,111 271,111

4,277,260 4,277,260
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31HILEFE

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013
Group

Financial assets

Available-for-sale investments AEHERE
Trade receivables BB 5 A
Financial assets included in FABNTE - Ee
prepayments, deposits R o YRR
and other receivables NeMEE
Structured deposits HEEMETR
Restricted cash XREKES
Long-term time deposits BRRTHRS
at banks EHER
Cash and cash equivalents RekBREEED

176 ANNUAL REPORT 2014 455

43. ZBRETHEMT A (&)

2013512 H31H

&
EMEE
Financial assets
at fair value
through profit
or loss - Held Available-
for trading for-sale
NS Loans and financial
AR receivables assets
HeRMBEE- Bk A HE Total
BERS FEYFRIA SHEE Bt
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTL ARBTT AREFT AREFTL
- - 160,244 160,244
- 13,026 - 13,026
- 196,306 - 196,306
- 1,887,000 - 1,887,000
- 554,445 - 554,445
- 121,460 - 121,460
- 891,923 - 891,923
- 3,664,160 160,244 3,824,404




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A1BLLFE

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (CONTINUED)

43. ZBRETHEMT A (&)

Financial liabilities cRAE
Financial
liabilities
at fair value
through profit Financial
or loss - held liabilities at
for trading amortised
N cost
AABRE  RESENA
MeERaRE- EREL:) Total
BER S tRER @5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARET:R
Trade and bills payables ENESHERENRE - 1,162,799 1,162,799
Financial liabilities included in other ATAE M RN RIE R
payables and accruals EFERNCHEE - 408,362 408,362
Short-term financing notes RHRES - 930,353 930,353
Interest-bearing bank borrowings TERTER - 1,933,480 1,933,480
Financial liabilities included in long-term AR FER
payables SRAR - 267,529 267,529
- 4,702,523 4,702,523
31 December 2014
2014%12H31H
Financial assets - Company EMEE-AXQT
Loans and
receivables
-¢7952
FE W R IE
RMB’ 000
AR® TR
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 29,443
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31HILEFE

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013
2013412 A31H

Financial assets - Company

Cash and cash equivalents IR& MBS EEY

44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values
of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash,
structured deposits, available-for-sale investments,
trade receivables, trade and bills payables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals and loans to subsidiaries
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to
the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of short-term financing notes and
interest-bearing bank borrowings have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities, which are also approximate to their
carrying amounts. The Group’s own non-performance
risk for interest-bearing bank borrowings as at 31
December 2014 was assessed to be insignificant.
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43. ZBRETHEMT A (&)

THMEE-AQF

Loans and
receivables
Bk

JE U5 Sk IE
RMB’ 000
ARET T

25,568

4. cHMITENAFERATESE
MR

BEEBEFHRERRASEFEY X
RERES HBUEFR AIHHBER
B RBRESFIA EBNEZHANE
MRE  FHARMKIE R RHME
WHRES E R EE 5t AR MENR
A BEFERAREAHBRRAERNA
FER AREHRRE  ZFEENX
BEMNAFERAREERS -

BE—EREENZHAEREEE -
E—RARNRST SRAENLR
& ENIETEEET AFEELSD - T
R R B R A 3 A T A

RHTREENAFEMGTESRITER
METERREBEMERRRSRAOEIRL
HEE 2ZRAMBELUTAMNRRES
ERRARMIIEBREE - ARER2014
F12A31A BRRITERN BB IFEK
2\ B 152 58 TE A2 N EEAHY e



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2014

EZE20145F12A31AILFE

44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE M TRTENATFERATFESE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL AMZRAE ()

INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The fair values of listed equity investments are based ISR ENATFEDERESR S

on quoted market prices. FrEM&EE °

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments $$@ﬁ?%gﬁﬁ'ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁgﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬂlﬁ

with a licensed bank. Derivative financial instruments, W TESRTHE  BREMNEES

including forward currency contracts, are measured ) - ﬁ}ﬂ?’EE\ME%QEE*%ﬂﬂ &G

using valuation techniques similar to forward pricing REE fE E R - WARBERTE - 1R

and swap models, using present value calculations. ARREZEMERAERRBEH L ER

The models incorporate various market observable 8 NS H BB B SR IR R R R

inputs including the credit quality of counterparties, AR - ZRHEBAONEEEERRERES

foreign exchange spot and forward rates and FE-H-

interest rate curves. The carrying amounts of forward

currency contracts are the same as their fair values.

Fair value hierarchy AT EEREE B

The following table illustrate the fair value ATERBINRASEE R T ANRFE

measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial EMRE

instruments:

Assets measured at fair value KR FEFSENEE

Group rEE

As at 831 December 2014: Ro014F12H31A -

Fair value measurement using
ATEHRDRA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

ERT R EXAT EXFRA

MEE BRBAE BERAE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-& et E=H X

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR  AR®TR ARBTR AR®TR

Derivative financial instruments TESRTA - 389 - 389
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31HILEFE

44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 44,

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Assets measured at fair value (continued)
As at 31 December 2013

Quoted prices

EMITANAFERQIFES
SESAC Y

AFEEHREE (H)
TR FEFTENEE (&)
R2014F12H31H -

Fair value measurement using
AT ENRA

Significant Significant

observable  unobservable

inputs inputs

BAA EV |

BRRAE BEBAE
Level 2 Level 3 Total
-/ E=& ok

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT ARETT ARETE

= = 146,134

in active
markets
BB
KRB
Level 1
EF—H
RMB’ 000
ARET T
Available-for-sale investments AHNERE 146,134
There were no liabilities measured at fair value as at
31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial
assets and financial liabilities (2013: Nil).
45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45.

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other
than derivatives, comprise bank loans, short-term
financing notes and cash and short-term deposits.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such
as trade receivables and trade and bills payables,
which arise directly from its operations.
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MN2014512 83180 » KREE W EIZQAF
B =M EE (2013F  £&) -

FR TEMEEENHEAEERAF
BENETES —HMFE_HoEEHR -
TR A S HE =R (20134 : &) o

MEEREEREBEERBK

AEENTIZERIA  BRITERI
BRERRTEFEHMES R MEH
TR -ZETRIANTIEZAEIR/AE
SEEELEES AKEHASTEE
MHEEERELNEREERAE
WMENE Z A - BN E S FKAREN

=i -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45.
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in
market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s
bank loans with floating interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to
a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, of the Group’s
profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate
borrowings).

Year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ2014512831HLLFE

us$ Ev
HK$ BT
Us$ ETT
HK$ BT

Year ended 31 December 2013 HE2013F12A31H ILFE

us$ ETT
HK$ BT
Us$ ETT
HK$ BT

B 7% ¥R 2R Y 5

Year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A1BLLFE

BHREREERFRRBE (&)

AEBERTEELENTIERBRERN X
Rk SRR FEERBERBES
R EFeFHLREEE LASAE
R e ER - g T

AR AR
AEBAAZOTSMNEEBERER
BAEBIZFBH XA SNRITERE
g o

o

TRHABAEENRBATG N CBBEE
BERNFE)NSEARESY (EME
Hits EHERFTEOBERT) HGURRE -

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit

basis points before tax
BEEm  BRBAER
R 2) i, G& )

RMB’ 000
AR T

50 (10,115)
50 (27)
(50) 10,115
(50) 27
50 (5,079)
50 (164)
(50) 5,079
(50) 164
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31HILEFE

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45. M EMEEEEREEK (&)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland
China and all transactions are conducted in RMB.
Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities were
denominated in RMB, except for the certain bank
balances denominated in US$ and HK$ as disclosed
in note 31 and bank loans denominated in US$ and
HK$ as disclosed in note 33.

Certain of the Group’s cash and bank balances, time
deposits and bank loans are denominated in US$ or
HK$ which expose the Group to foreign currency risk
attributable to the fluctuations in the exchange rates
of US$/HK$ against RMB, the functional currency of
the respective group entities.

The management monitors foreign exchange risk
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arises.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 3% (2013: 3%) increase and decrease in RMB
against the relevant foreign currencies 3% (2013:
3%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the end of the
reporting period for a 3% (2013: 3%) change in

foreign currency rates.
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AEBOFEHERNTFEAEBMER
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AEEETRITEHRERS - |RITEK
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B TRARE GHREEERNE
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EREEERINERR  YRAFTERE
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TRFFMAEREARE S IEHEINEE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

45.

B 7% ¥R 2R Y 5

Year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A1BLLFE

BHREREERFRRBE (&)

Foreign currency risk (continued) ShEEE B (4])
US$ Impact HK$ Impact
EY-2 Brwg
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —T-—=F ZE-NF =—T—=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR ARETT AR%¥TR ARETT
Increase/(decrease) in profit Bt gT A E AV AN,
before tax: CR)
if RMB weakens against BARBEEINET K
foreign currency (35,932) (32,218) (15,156) (11,794)
if RMB strengthens against HEAREHINE EIR
foreign currency 35,932 32,218 15,156 11,794

The sensitivity analysis above only analysed the
Group’s year end inherent foreign exchange risk
exposure and does not represent the exposure during
the year as the value of the monetary items and the
exchange rates fluctuate during the year.

Credit risk

The Group has no concentration of credit risk. The
Group’s cash and cash equivalents and structured
deposits are mainly deposits with state-owned banks
in Mainland China. The credit risk of the Group’s
financial assets, which comprise cash and cash
equivalents, structured deposits, trade receivables
and other receivables, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

HRFAEEEBEEREXKE  HL
BHEFRESITESAEEFRNES I
EE fl B o3 AT > 7 3 TS BE S R & AF LB o

FERR
AEBYEREERBESTER - AKHE
MR LR EBYNEBEETREE
REBRRFEAMLEBEERITHFR
AEEREBRERE MRS FEYNE
BHETER - BWE 5508 A K& E Rk
REEANEREENEREERS T
BHFAZNRSEERR -
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31HILEFE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of
funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool.
This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g.,
trade receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of bank loans. Pursuant to the credit facility
intention letters provided by certain banks, the
banks had agreed to provide additional loans up to
RMB3,110,000,000 subject to available facilities,
upon the Group’s request.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45. M EMEEEEREEK (&)

RBEERAR
AEBMNBRERADASITAENES
RROER ZTAEEZRESMIAR
TREE(WRYESFIA) MBI HAE &
KERLEEPNEFRERE -

AEBMEEEEARFETER R
BESHEBEHENETEMENFE -
BEAEBZK  ERIEERITHR
SEREEE BOUBERERHEARE
3,110,000,000TH) E FRFEE ©

BEAREHR AREHLRE ED
8 (R AT R A REE) BRI TR
B -

3t012 1t05 Over 5

2014 Less than months years years
Ondemand 3 months =z -z bif:3 Total
20145 REX®R =fEAR +=f8A ikad HE 8g
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETR AR%®Tn AR®TR ARE®TR AR%Tn ARETR
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 58 F 1T - 136,218 234,979 2,398,364 - 2,769,561
Trade and bills payables ENESFTER
ENZER 230,549 873,561 14,630 - - 1,118,740
Financial liabilties included in STARMERFIER
other payables and accruals B ERRERARE 271,804 - - - - 217,804
Financial liabilities included in SARBERFE
long-term payables MemafkE - - - o, 11 N YAR TR
508,353 1,009,779 249,609 2,669,475 - 4,437,216
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Year ended 31 December 2014

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares. The Group is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the years ended
31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by capital plus net debt. Net
debt includes short-term financing notes, interest-
bearing bank borrowings, trade and bills payables
other payables and accruals less structured deposits,
restricted cash, long-term time deposits at banks and
cash and cash equivalents. Capital represents equity
attributable to owners of the parent. The Group’s
policy is to keep the gearing ratio at a reasonable
level. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting
periods were as follows:

HZE2014F12A1BLLFE
45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45. S EREE B ZERBUR (8)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (Continued) FRBESER (&)
3t0 12 1105 QOver 5
2013 Less than months years years
Ondemand 3 months =% =B iF Total
20135 REXKE =AAR  +=fA b3 JAE 8%
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETT AREBTT ARETE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &t 8 8817 £ 3 - 224485 742935 1,042,411 - 2,009,831
Short-term financing notes RHRES - 941,310 - - - 941,310
Trade and bills payables ENEFTERERNZE 353,279 809,520 - - - 1,162,799
Financial liabilities included in 3t AE B 2E ]2
other payables and accruals EirERANERAR 408,361 - - - - 408,361
Financial liabilities included in st ARHIE(IFE
long-term payables MemaRE - - - 267,529 - 267529
761,640 1975315 742,935 1,309,940 - 4,789,830
Capital management EAXRERE

AEFBEAERNTIEZERBRRRER
SEERBELE  THBERENERL
K AXHEEBERY BRRERK
RHEs

AEBRELERAOESGmMEERER
EREEVIELARE - BEF AL
BEARGEE AEERTABRIMNFRRE
RS  MBERRBREERNKEITHRK -
N5 B 1 78 38 ST fr] SN EB iE 0 A & AN AR
F o B E2014%12 8318 N2013F12
RAB1BIFE BAEEBEZE  BEX
BRAWESE -

AEBENEERBLXRERER  ME
2 B R o R AMA 575 B RR DA B AN IR 5
FE BB FREREHRES R
RITEX  BNEZHRANENRE -
Hib N RAREERAREBIET
R XREBES FRE|ETORYE
PERMAEMREEEY  BXEES
NEEB AEEED - NEEHNERRS
BEEABLREREAEKE - KT
THREERBELERNOT
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31HILEFE

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Capital management (continued)

Group

Short-term financing notes
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Trade and bills payables
Other payables and accruals
Less: Structured deposits
Restricted cash
Long-term time deposits
at banks
Cash and cash equivalents

Net debt

Equity attributable to owners
of the parent

Equity and net debt

Gearing ratio
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RHRE S

FHERITE R

N B ZREMENRIE

Hi BN REREFER

W AR TE K
XRE®ESD
FRETHRD

TR

ReMREFEYD

B8

SRAEE ARGER

o RERFE

BERMBLEX

EXREE(H)

45. IR EE B E R BUR (#)

2014 2013
—E-DNF —_F—=

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR T ARET T
- 930,353
2,594,219 1,933,480
1,118,740 1,162,799
1,827,705 2,228,790
(115,000) (1,887,000)
(227,580) (554,445)
(162,304) (121,460)
(1,822,664) (891,923)
3,213,116 2,800,594
4,984,406 4,796,172
8,197,522 7,596,766
39% 37%




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

(a)

Subsequent to 31 December 2014 and up to the
date of this report, the Company repurchased
a total of 8,780,000 shares at an aggregate
consideration of HK$23,700,000, equivalent
to RMB18,716,000. 20,700,000 repurchased
shares were cancelled during January of 2015.
The number of issued shares of the Company as
at the date of this report is 2,440,000,000.

On 22 January 2015, the Company entered into
an agreement with jiangsu Hengshun Vinegar-
Industry Co., Ltd (T&EIBEEZRD B R A R])
to acquire the rest of 50% interest of Zhenjiang
Baisheng Commercial Center Co., Ltd at a
consideration of RMB176,300,000.

47. APPROVAL OF THESE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

These financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on
16 March 2015.

B 7% ¥R 2R Y 5

Year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A1BLLFE

46. REHREH

(@)

MN2014FE12A31H B E AR 4E H
B A A AR 4 8,780,000
f& B 0 - BB /28,700,000
THE R AR18,716,0007T °
20,700,000/ |1 #& i 17 B 720154
1AM - AARBEARS A
Z BETRMNEE A2,440,000,000
Hﬁ °

R20154F1 228 » AR &) BT &
BB ERNDABRAREN—HH
RUEEET A RE AR A A50%
R m s BREAARE
176,300,0007T °

47. BB R A HLE

ZH M ERNA2015F3F16AKREES
HE I B o
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

EFEHBERE

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t+-HLEE
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—F-%TF —FT——F —T-——-F -—T-=F CZE-NOF
RMB million
(NRE®EET)
FINANCIAL RESULTS BgEE
TSP (note 1) HEMBTEBE f1i21) 6,853 8,697 9,859 11,135 11,049
Revenue TN 2,990 3,602 3,807 4,162 4,276
Profit from operation mERF 659 848 948 1,026 983
Profit for the year F 5 7 375 592 656 737 646
Profit attributable to ISUNGIEZ= PN
owners of the parent g Al 372 581 651 730 634
Earnings per share BARE R ER
attributable to ordinary BEAEGER
equity holders of the B (ARES)
parent (RMB cents) (Hf2) 18 23 26 29 26
(note 2)
As at 31 December
R+=ZB=+-H
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
“F-%F -%T——% —T--fF —FT-=Ff C—B-QOf
RMB million
(NR®EEET)
SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL Bt R E
POSITION
Non-current assets ERBEE 4,507 5,908 7,515 8,235 9,065
Current assets REEE 2,203 2,845 2,867 3,897 2,537
Total assets BEE 6,710 8,753 10,382 12,132 11,602
Current liabilities MEEaE 2,178 3,117 4,253 5,344 3,330
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 716 1,476 1,418 1,762 3,075

Total liabilities BakE 2,894 4,593 5,671 7,106 6,405

Net assets BEFE 3,816 4,160 4,711 5,026 5,197

Notes: B at:

(1) TSP represents the sum of gross revenue from (1) HEMSRBELBESTELEHEE &
concessionaire sales, revenue from direct sales and rental EHEWARBEKWABLSEE -
Income.

2) The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the 2 #HE—_ZTZTF+_A=1+—HIFE

year ended 31 December 2010 is based on the profit
attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the parent
for the year ended 31 December 2010, adjusted for the
weight average number of ordinary shares in issue as if
2,098,630,000 shares in issue on the assumption that the
capitalisation issue, had occurred at the beginning of the

year.
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